
a
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

Lorl A Weaver H9 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 003-27i-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Katja S. Fox
Director

May 23. 2024

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (VC#161611), Bow,
New Hampshire, for the continued implementation and operation of a facilitating organization to
oversee New Hampshire's Student Assistance Programs, by exercising a renewal option, by
increasing the price limitation by $4,256,020 from $9,200,000 to $13,456,020 and by extending
the completion date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2026, effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor
and Council approval. 100% Other Funds (Governor Commission Funds).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 27, 2022, item #9,
amended on December 7, 2022, item #8, and most recently amended on June 14, 2023, Item
#35.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue its implementation and
operation as a Facilitating Operation that develops and supports the infrastructure of statewide
Student Assistance Programs. The Contractor will continue to ensure financial, operational,
technical assistance and training supports for Student Assistance Programs including
subcontracting with school districts or other organizations (sub awardees).

Approximately 15,500 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2025 and
2026.

The Contractor will continue to contract with sub awardees chosen through a competitive
bid process facilitated by the Contractor and monitored closely by the Department. Currently 21
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Student assistant program and affiliated professionals are subcontracted. The Contractor will seek
to expand the number of SAPs from 21 to 45. Tt|*e Contractor will continue to ensure each sub
awardee provides services in fidelity with the Project SUCCESS, (Schools Using Coordinated
Community Efforts to Strengthen Students), model, to New Hampshire youth in high need
communities with the goal of preventing and reducing underage drinking, high risk drinking, and
the use of non-medical prescription drugs, including opioids and illicit drug use.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing monthly reports provided
by the Contractor and conducting annual site visits to review program and financial documents.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to five (5) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council aipproval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for one
(1) of the three (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the ability of Student
Assistance Programs to expand statewide would be limited, resulting In less available substance
misuse prevention education.

Area seived; Statewide.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully su^itted,

cJr

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seruicea' Mission is la join comniunilies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and indepen^ice.



FISCAL DETAILS

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS 100% OTHER FUNDS)

Vendor

Name
JSI Research Vendor«161611

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2023 074/500589
Contracts for'Prog

Svc
92058502 $1,200,000 $0 $1,200,000

2024' 074/500589

)

Contracts for Prog

Svc
92058502 $1,475,000 $0 $1,475,000

2025. ■  074/500589
Contracts for Prog

■ ■ Svc ■
92058502 $1,475,000 $2,128,010 $3,603,010

2026 074/500589
Contracts for Prog

^ Svc
92058502 $0 $2,128,010 $2,128,010

$4,150,000 $4,256,020 $8,406,020

05-95-94-940010-24650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE
HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ARPA DHHS FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

Vendor

Name
JSI Research Vendor #161611

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2023 074/500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
;  •

00FRF602P

H9510A
$2,100,000 ̂ $0 $2,100,000

H9510A $2,100,000 $0 $2,100,000

05-95-92-920510-33800000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: B
DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, PREVENTION SVS (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

EHAVIORAL HEALTH

Vendor

Name
JSI Research Vendor #161611

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased) ■

Amount

Revised Budget

2024 074/500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92057502 $1,475,000 $0 $1,475,000

2025 074/500589 Contracts for Prog
Svc

92057502 $1,475,000 SO $1,475,000 -

1 Subtotal $2,950,000 SO $2,950,000

1  1 1 $9,200,000 1 $4,256,020 | $13,456,020 . |
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State of New Hampshire
- Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 27, 2022, (Item #9), as amended^on December 7, 2022, (Item #8), and as amended on June 14,
2023, (item #35), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

. $13,456,020

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.4., to read:

1.4. The Contractor shall distribute funding in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws
and regulations, via a competitive process except for the money earmarked for the two (2)
Nashua SAPs. The Contractor; in collaboration with the Department, will develop and conduct
the competitive bid process including a funding rubric'for school districts and other
organizations to apply to implement SAPs based on the Project SUCCESS model in identified
NH middle and high schools including:

1.4.1. , Universal or School Wide Prevention Strategies:

1.4.2. Prevention Curriculum Based Education in a minimum of two (2) grade levels (e.g.
seventh grade and ninth grade);

1.4.3. Using the Global Appraisal of Individual Needs-Short-Screener (GAIN-SS) to screen
students for behavioral health issues who are referred to the program;

1.4.4. Using the screening results to refer students out to services or assign them to
.  individual and/or peer support sessions;

1.4.5.' Providing parent education and consultation on substance misuse and mental health
issues relative to adolescents;

1.4.6. Providing consultation to school staff and administration as needed; and

1.4.7. Ensuring consent is acquired from each participant and their parent or guardian, as
applicable, for all services provided through this Agreement.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

.  1.1. 15.61% Federal Funds, American Rescue Plan Act, Governor's Office for Emergency
Relief and Recovery (GOFERR).

1.2. 21.26% Federal Funds, Mental Health Block Grant, as awarded on Februao' "iQ, 2022
by the Substance Abuse Mental Health Administration Services, Substar

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc." A-S-1.3

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A03 Paqe1of4 Date
v7.12.23 /

}use
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Prevention, Treatment Recovery, Assistance Listing Number #93.959 FAIN#
11085821,11087053.

1.3. 62.47 % Other Funds (Governor Commission Funds)

1.4. 0.66 % General Funds.

5. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment "of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through C-4, Amendment #3, Budget.

6. Modify Exhibit. 0-3, Amendment, #2. Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-3
Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #3, Budget which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contrac^^^t^i^lg^
RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A03 Page 2 of 4 Date
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/23/2024

Date

—OocuSlsncd by:

Wfcil S,
— 2A0FEC7i:)ei684F3...

Name: Katja s. fox

Title: .
Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

5/23/2024

Date

—OocuStgnM by:

— F850C21F46E0439..

Name: Katie Robert

Title: ^
Director

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A03
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1,3

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

^DecuSlgnec vy.

-74B7M844941460...

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DpcuSlpned by.

5/23/2024 '
Dite Name:

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A03 Page 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL.01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program

Budget Period 7/1/2024-6/30/2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 26.20%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $300,000

2. Fringe Benefits $142,110

3. Consultants $2,000

4. Equipment $0

5.(a) SuDolies - Educational $0

5.(b) SuDolies - Lab $0

5.(0) SuDolies - Pharmacv $0

5.(dV SuDolies - Medical $0

5.(e) SuDDlies Office ,  . $0

6. Travel $1,000

7. Software V  ' $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $1,000
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $3,500
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) SAP Trainings

(this includes'room rentals to hold trainings
food, materials, and supplies)

1

$20,000

Other (please specify) '  $0
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $4,485,362

Total Direct Costs $4,954,972

Total Indirect Costs $123,038

TOTAL $5,078,010

\

Contractor Initial
(i

Date
5/23/2024
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RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance^Program

Budget Period 771/2025 - 6/30/2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 26.20%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salarv & Waqes $295,000

2. Fringe Benefits $139,742

3. Consultants ■  $2,000

4. Equipment ,  . ■ . $0

5.(a) SuDDlies - Educational $0

5.(b) SuDolies • Lab $0

5.(c) SuDolies - Pharmacv $0

5/d^ SuDDlies - Medical $0

S.^e^ SuDDlies Office $0

6. Travel $1,000

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 2500

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) SAP Traingings

(this includes room rentals to hold
trainings) $15,000

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $1,553,495

Total Direct Costs $2,008,737

Total Indirect Costs $119,273

TOTAL $2,128,010

r

Contractor Initial

Date

5/23/2024
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17,

2016.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0006112344

Kb

<5^

^3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of February A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctaiy of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Antonia Powell hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. ^ .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on January 11 2024 .. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Katherine Robert (may list more than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf, of JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and-all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)

listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation.
To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts
with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

uateo: Mav ZUZt* AmonU is. id OS £[>T>

Signature of Elected Officer

Name: Antonia Powell

Title: Assistant Clerk/Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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^cORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

12/26/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ,

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies'may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

AHT Insurance, A Baldwin Risk Partner
458 South Ave
V\/hitman MA 02382

l.icensn#- rA«0Rfifl74R

Contact
NAME;

800-648-4807 nov 781 -447-7230
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

IN3URERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC«

INSURER A Federal Insurance Company 20281

INSURED JOHNSNOei
JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
John Snow, Inc.
World Education. Inc.
44 Farnsworth Street
Boston MA 02210-1206

INSURER B ACE American Insurance Company 22667

INSURER C Great Northern Insurance Compa 20303

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 314957123 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS.SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY
/

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POUCY r~| JECT HlOC
OTHER:

'USD
SUSR"

POLICY NUMBER

35873320

POLICY EFF
(MM/PD/YYYYI

9/9/2023

POLICY EXP
iMM/Dprrrm

10/1/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMA'GETO REMtED
PREMISES fEa occurrwKO

MED EXP (Any one pef»on)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea ecddefiO

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$ 10,000

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

73546634. 9/9/2023 10/1/2024 $1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Par person) $1,000,000'

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
'AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acckJent) $1,000,000

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accideni)

$1,000,000

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

79661066 9/9/2023 10/1/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE $20,000,000

AGGREGATE $ 20,000,000

RETENTION $
OTH
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPROPR1ETOR/PARTNER/EXECUT1VE
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
l( yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belOiw

71733182 9/9/2023 10/1/2024, PER
STATUTE

□
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Errors & Omissioru/Cyber 096621772 11/30/2023 10/1/2024 PerOccurence
Aggregate

5,000,000
5,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarfca Scliedule, may be attached II more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

.  1

'  SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRIBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN"
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

,~(fl ^
ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD (
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JST Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human service fields.
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Community Health Institute
•I

✓

Mission Statement

The Community Uealth Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire's
health carc system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents.
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Consolidated Financial Statements and

Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
Affiliates

September 30, 2022
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Grant Thornton

OKANT THORNTON ILR

75 State St.. 13* Floof

Boston. MA 02100

D ♦1617 723 7000

F  ♦1617 723 3640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc.

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. and affiliates (the "Organization"), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as of September 30, 2022, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, rn
all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as of September 30,
2022, and the results of its operations and its cash .flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.'

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We t:>elieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of matter
As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company adopted ASC 842,
Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern
for one year after the date the financial staternents are available to be issued.

GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP is th« U.S. niemt»r firm of Grant Thornton Iniemallona] Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and aach of its memtier firms
are separata legal entities arxl ate not a workKvlde partrwrshlp.
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@ Grant Thornton

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a

substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  - Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit

findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 23, 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2022

ASSETS

Current assets i

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Right'Of-use assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities ^

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued vacation

Lease liabilities

Advances for program work

Total current liabilities

Long-term lease liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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$  135,644.320

62,892,167

369,148

226,208

94,095,116

8,329,980

301,556,939

6,140,810

46,287,443

1,924,467

$  35^909,659

76.892,610

2,581,182

6,256,935

118,984,554

204,715,281

40,113,086

110,330,625

750,667

111,081,292

$ 355,909.659
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2022

Net assets without donor restrictions

Support and revenue

Public support

Global Fund

Government grants and contracts

U.S. Government

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts

Contributed net assets (see Note 3}

Program income

Contributions

Net assets released from restriction

In-kind project contributions

Other income

Interest income

Total support and revenue

Expenses
Program services

International programs

Domestic programs

Total program services

Supporting services

Management and general

Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other expenses

Income taxes

Unallowable costs

Total expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions, net of net asset releases of $1,165

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year
t

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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$ 520,244.115

292,813,688

9,655,120

93,052,631

29,935,825

182,785

2,492,119

1,165

2,031,763

1,051,847

'  624,681

952,285,739

810,650,968

56.826.805

867,477,773

37,596,448

1,134,482

38,730,930

727,764

'  1,137,202

908,073,669

44,212,070

202,251

44.414,321

66,666,971

$  111,081,292
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2022

Program Services Supporting Services

International

Programs

Domestic

Programs Total

Management

and General Fundralslng Total

Commodities $  468,455,677 S $ 468.455.677 $ 5 S 488.455.677

Freight costs 53,466.245 • 53.466,245 - - ' 53.466.245

Salaries 36.932.616 33,975,418 70.908.034 23.656.668 954.645 95.519,347

Consultants 21,333.897 9,788,237 31.122,134 3.582.321 24,303 34,728,758

Cooperating national.salaries 62.664,496 1,261,654 63.926,150 549.662 • 64,475,812

Travel 26.709,942 • 1,249,082 27.959,024 550.719 - 28.509,743

Allowance and training 7.774,631 236.941 8.013.572 704.063 21.311 8.738,946

Subgrants 31.324,937 207,651 31.532,588 36.025 1.778 31,570,391

Subcontracts 53,221,609 5,020,271 58,241,880 168,305 - 58,410,185

Equipment, material and supplies 14,228,848 607.686 14,836,534 1.462,607 3.435 16,302,576

Other costs 30.428,054 4,406,185 34.834,239 5,290,602 129.010 40,253,851

Information technology 83,074 • 83,074 320,999 • 404.073

Non-commodity 871,175 • 871.175 • - 871.175

Quality assurance 6,623 - 6.623 - - 6,623

VAT 635,635 71,680 707.315 - - 707.315

In-kind project expenses 2,513,509 - 2,513,509 - - 2,513.509

Depreciation - - 1.274.477 - 1.274.477

Total expense $ 810,650,968 S 56,826,805 $ 867,477,773 $ 37,596,448 1,134,482 $ 906,208,703

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30,2022

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change In net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

• provided by operating activities;
Depreciation

Contributed net assets, net of cash received

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Other assets

Inventory

Right-of-use assets

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Accrued vacation

Advances for program work

Lease liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of property and equipment

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

-  I

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$  44,414,321

1,274,477

(9,379,099)

(6,345,756)

(202,448)

(49,181)

(5,005,608)

(278,468)

(8,643,634)

(46,287,443)

(9,846,920)

452,192

32.795,538

46,370,021

39,267,992

(39,483)

.  39,228,509

,  96,415,811

$  135,644,320

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

8



DocuSign Envelope ID; 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
✓

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022

NOTE 1 . ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. ("R&T") was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
on April 11, 1979! R&T provides education and research primarily to non-profit health and human service,
agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current funding is principally from the United States Agency
for International Development {"AID") and the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

R&T is the sole member of World Education, Inc. ("WEI"), The Partnership for Supply Chain Management,
Inc. ("PfSCM"), and the sole shareholder (effective November 29, 2021) of John Snow, Inc. ("JSI"). R&T is
accorded with such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of appointment and
removal of the affiliates board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of
incorporation, and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial
assets of affiliates.

WEI was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in partnership with
community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and the United States, it provides
professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs. Th^e
programs integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth and
national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education, agricultural
practices, literacy, and income generation. WEI's financial data is consolidated utilizing its fiscal year-end
financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022.

PfSCM was incorporated on February 14, 2005, under the laws of Massachusetts. PFSCM began
operations on October 1, 2005. PFSCM's project teams collaborate with institutions that are among the
most trusted names in international public health and development. This includes four institutions, each
offering unique capabilities that ensure that high-quality ARV drugs, HIV tests, and other supplies for
treating HIV/AIDS are available to the people, patients, clinicians, laboratory technicians, and others who
need them.

I

JSI is an international management-consulting firm organized on May 29, 1975, in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. JSI provides'research and cpnsulting services to public health programs, health care and
service sectors. Its mission is to work with clients to improve the quality of their operations. Current funding
is principally with the United States Agency for International Development. Community Economics
Corporation ("CEC") and John Snow India Private Limited ("JSIPL") are JSI affiliates and wholly owned
subsidiaries of JSI. Effective November 29, 2021, R&T became the sole shareholder of JSI, a previously
related party. See Note 3 for further discussion.

R&T and its affiliates, excluding JSI, are tax'exempt organizations under 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code ("IRC").

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of R&T, WEI, JSI (from November 29, 2021),
and PfSCM, (collectively referred to as the "Organization"). All intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("U.S. GAAP"). Net assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

.  September 30, 2022 v

donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are
classified and reported as follows;

Net Assets Without Donor Restriction's - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed' restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the Organization
has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

Use of Estimates ^

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $8,590,186 at September 30, 2022.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives (5 - 27.5 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased
with grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned
to the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grapt and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.

'  Revenue Recognition

Grants and Contacts

The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria (the Global Fund), and
U.S. government agencies, prirharily USAID and the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.

/

The Organization recognizes revenue from external organizations for services provided under exchange
and non-exchange grants and contracts. Unconditional grants, contracts, and contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period received in the appropriate net asset category, based on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions. If donor-imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue is reported
as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions and are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenues whose restrictions are met in the
same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction.

Revenues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditions in the form of both a barrier to
entitlement and a refund of amounts paid (and a release from obligation to make future payments). The

• Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
conditions are satisfied. At September 30, 2022, the Organization had $374,342,877 of conditional grants
and contracts not recognized as revenue in the statement of activities.

10
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September 30, 2022

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization .satisfies performance
obligations, which in some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. In the case of the
procurement and delivery of commodities revenues are recognized upon receipt by the customer. As of
September 30, 2022; included in advances for program work is $85,104,283 of deferred revenue related to.
exchange transactions, which will be recognized as revenue upon completion of delivery of commodities
and receipt by the customer. Also included in the advances for program work, is $33,880,271 of non-
exchange grant funding received In advance of revenue being earned.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

R&T, PfSCM, and WEI are exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and are not
private foundations as described in Section 509.

JSI is corporation that is subject to Federal, state, and other jurisdiction income taxes.

Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilities-are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. These assets and liabilities are measured using rates expected to be in effect when
these timing differences reverse. Valuation allowances are provided to the extent that tax assets are not
likely to be recovered.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. A valuation
allowance is established against a deferred tax asset when it is more likely than not that the asset or any
portion thereof will not be realized.

JSI has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to the results of
its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities, federal or
state. JSI has filed all of its known and required returns in a timely manner including, as permitted, allowed
extensions. Following administrative practice of the taxing authorities, the tax years 2017 through 2022
remain open years subject to possible examination and review.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques.

11
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD using the first in, first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program \work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from.outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectabie amounts through a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2022 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $52,037,795 of amounts billed and $10,854,372 of amounts unbilled at September 30, 2022.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Updated ("ASU") 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842),
and issued additional accounting standards updates which provided changes, modifications, clarifications,
and interpretations related to this guidance thereafter (collectively, "Topic 842"). Topic 842 amends a
number of aspects of lease accounting, including requiririg lessees to recognize almost all leases with a
term greater than one year as a right-of-use (ROU) asset and corresponding liability, measured as the
present value of the future lease payments. JSI adopted Topic 842 asof January 1,2022 using the modified
retrospective transition method.

The new standard provides a number of optional practical expedients in transition. JSI elected the practical
expedients to not reassess its prior conclusions about lease identification under the new standard, to not
reassess lease classification, and to not reassess initial direct costs. JSI has not elected the practical
expedient to use hindsight in determining the lease term at the adoption date and has not elected the
practical expedient pertaining to land easements as this is not applicable to the current contract portfolio.

The new guidance also provides practical expedients and accounting policy elections for ongoing lease
accounting. JSI has elected the recognition exemption for short term leases for all leases that qualify. Under
this exemption, JSI will not recognize ROU assets or lease liabilities for those leases that qualify as a short-
term lease (a lease term of 12 months of less), which includes not recognizing ROU assets or lease liabilities
for existing short-term leases of those assets in transition. JSI has elected the practical expedient to not
separate lease and non-lease components for all existing asset classes. 'JSI has elected the nonpublic
business entity accounting policy alternative to use a risk-free discount rate instead of JSI's incremental
borrowing rate for all existing asset classes.

Upon adoption, JSI recognized operating lease right-of-use assets of approximately $46,300,000 and
operating lease liabilities of approximately $46,400,000.

12
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NOTE 3 - CHANGE IN CONTROL

Prior to November 29. 2021, JSI_was a related party to R&T. as the sole shareholder of JSI, was also an
executive and Board member of R&T. Effective November 29, 2021, R&T received a donation for the
outstanding shares of JSI, and as such became the sole shareholder. As a result, R&T recorded a
contribution received for the net assets of JSI, at the date of donation. Details of the assets and liabilities
received by R&T as of the date of the donation are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,556,725
Accounts receivable 12,223,327
Employee advances 80,672
-Prepaid expenses and other current assets 968,067
Other assets 1,151,293
Property and equipment ^ 4,653,057
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 9,697,317

Net assets , $ 29,935,824

NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKCASH

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government. The
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances as of September 30, 2022:

Accumulated

>  Cost Depreciation Net

Furniture and equipment $  4,394,050 $  4,307,290 $ 86,760

Leasehold improvements 11,991,767 '  5,937,717 6,054,050

$  16,385,817 $  10,245,007 $ 6,140.810

Depreciation expense was $1,274,477 for the year ended September 30, 2022.

13
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NOTE 6 - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of 'the following at Septernber 30, 2022:

Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation $ 19,289,075

Various donors 30,430,204
Global iPund 68,195,782
Doris Duke Charitable Foundation 1,069,493

$ 118,984,554

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue is recognized.

NOTE 7 - DEBT

WEI has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The revolving line of
credit is subject to annual renewal each September. Borrowings are due on demand. Interest is charged
by utilizing a fluctuating, rate based on the one-month Bloomberg Short-term Bank ("BSBY") yield plus
2.50%, which at September 30, 2022 was 5.59%. The loan is collateralized by a first priority interest in all
the assets of WEI. As of September'30. 2022, there were no outstanding borrowings under this agreement.

JSI has a revolving demand loan with a bank. The loan allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. Interest is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on a per annum rate equal to 2.00% above the one-month
BSBY, payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30, 2022 was 5.09%. The loan is collateralized by
a security agreement with a first lien on all business assets of JSI and R&T, including assignment of
promissory notes and security documents between the two companies. The bank's agreement to advance
funds is subject to an annual review in April. As of September 30, 2022, there were no outstanding
borrowings under this agreement.

NOTE 8-CONTINGENCIES - ^

t

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization \i, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.
Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an audit, would be immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the AID on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2022,
actual indirect cost rates have been approved by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc and JSI
through December 31, 2015 and WEI through June 30, 2021. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 9 - NET ASSETS

Donor restricted net assets as of September 30, 2022 are restricted for use In specific programs and/or
projects that are specified by the donor.

14
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Included in net assets without donor restrictions as of September 30, 2022, are common stock and retained
earnings {of JSI) totaling $2,925 and $27,911,650, respectively.

As of September 30, 2022, JSI has 875 shares of $1 par value common stock authorized, issued and
outstanding. As of September 30,2022, JSIPL has 1,000 shares of no-par value common stock authorized,
and 1.00 shares issued and outstanding.

NOTE 10 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Show, Inc.

As discussed in Note 3, JSI was donated to R&T on November 29, 2021. R&T and JSI purchase consulting
services from each other. The two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill federal and
state governments. Any transactions from November 29, 2021 forward, between JSI and R&T, have been
eliminated in consolidation. Prior to NoverViber 29, 2021, JSI billed R&T $3,635,932 for consulting services
(technical support). This amount is reflected under program services - consulting totaling $3,139,516 and
prograrn services - other costs totaling $496,416, on the consolidated statements of functional expenses,
respectively. In addition, during the year, end September 30, 2022, R&T performed consulting services
(technical support) for JSI, totaling $1,219,068. -'

R&T received $1,500,000 unrestricted contribution from a Board member, during the year ended
September 30, 2022.

WEI has an agreement with JSI whereby JSI will provide administrative and technical support as requested
•from time to time by WEI, on arms-length terms, as agreed by WEI and JSI. Transactions between WEI
and JSI from September 1, 2022 to November 29, 2022, are summarized as follows;

Administrative and technical support ; . ' $ 297,840
Other direct charges (including rent of $176,008) 243,308

$  541,148

Other

The Organization has an agreerrient to purchases services from a company that JSI holds a minority
interest in. Transactions with this company were charged to sub-contracts expense and totaled $1,481,155
for the year ended September 30, 2022. JSrs (40%) ownership interest in this company has been
accounted for as an equity investment, which is included within other assets in the accompanying statement
of financial position. The balance of this investment was approximately $786,000 as of September 30,2022.

NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT PLANS

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharihg/401(k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. R&T
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll,
to the plan. In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of employee contributions made
to the plan. Employees who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are
automatically enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. Pension expense was $3,260,428
for the year ended September 30, 2022.

WEI has a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan covering substantially all of its employees. WEI
contritjutes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
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Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants.of the plan are fully and
imrhediately vested when contributions are made. Pension was $404,103 for the year ended June 30, 2022.

JSI has a defined contribution profit sharing/401 (k) plan covering substantially all its employees. Employee
contributions are voluntary. As of July 1. 2018, JSI contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's
monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll. In addition, employees will receive a 100% match on
the first 2% of contributions made to their retirement account. Employees who are contributing less than
2% of their pay to their retirement account will automatically be enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or
annually in July. Pension expense was $1,678,825 for the year ended September 30, 2022.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

R&T leases space for general offices under operating leases expiring from 2023 through 2027. The leases
contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.

During the years ended September 30, 2022, rent expense under long-term lease obligations were
$612,812. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30, 2022 are: '

2023 $ 493,931
2024 417.663
2025 430,889
2026 349,742

2027 . -

$  1,692,225

WEI leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the year ended June 30,
2022 was $1,094,171.

JSI leases space for general offices under operating leases expiring at various dates through
2030. The leases contain renewal options for five to ten-year periods, which are primarily considered
operating right-of-use assets under ASC 842.

JSI future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of September 30, 2022
are:

2023 $ 6,258.994
2024 6,219,901

2025 4,217,793
2026 6,158,962
2027 6,498,956.

Thereafter 18,887,667

$ 48,242,274

During the year ended September 30, 2022, operating lease costs for JSI were $4,156,256. JSI does not
have any finance leases.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED .

September 30, 2022

J

Supplemental information related to JSI's leases as of September 30, 2022, consist of the following:

Weighted-average remaining lease term (In months) 90
Weighted-average discount rate 1.62%

The following summarizes cash flow and supplemental noncash information related to JSI's leases for the
■ year ended September 30, 2022: *

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash fiows from operating leases $- 4,839,276
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new lease liabilities 46,287,443

NOTE 13 - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources for the year
ended September 30, 2022:

% of Total

Revenue Income

The Global Fund (PfSCM) $ 533,596,600 56%
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T, JSI and WEI) $ 262,116,971 27% -

NOTE 14 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to'management's review and approval.

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2022, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one year due donor-imposed restrictions:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 135,644,320

Receivables for program work 62,892,168

Total financial assets available within one year 198,536,488

Less donor restricted assets (750,667)

Total financial assets available to management for
general expenditures within one year $ 197,785,821

I  •

The organization also has two committed lines of credit with availability of $7 million, which it could draw
upon in the event of an unanticipated liquidity need (see Note 7).
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2022

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 23, 2023, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be Issued. On November 3, 2022, the R&T Board of
Directors unanimously voted to approve a merger of WEI into R&T, effective July 1, 2023.

18



DocuSign Envelope ID: 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

wm ■

JS)

44 Farnsworth St

Boston, MA. 02210

+1 617 482 0617

JSr RESEARCH & TRAINING INSTITUTE, INC.

RESOLUTION IN WRITING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Abdourahmane Diallo, MD, MPH /

Board Member .

World Health Organization Representative, Kenya
/

Alina Rocha Menocaj

Board Member

Principal Research Fellovy, Politics and Governance

Hafiz Adamjee, M.S.

Board Member

Retired, former executive at Novartis

Kulleni Gebreyes

Board Member

Principal at Deloitte

Margaret Crotty

Board Member (ex officio JSI CEO)

President/CEO

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.

Board Member

William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of Management

Nneka Moblsson

Board Member

Co-founder and CEO of mymdoc and Faculty Advisor at IHI

Sandro Galea, MD, MPH, DrPH

Board Chair

Dean and Robert A. Kriox Professor

Topsy Kola-Oyeneyin

Board Member

Partner at McKinsey & Company
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Amy Daniels

Education

BOSTON COLLEGE

Master ofSocial Work

University of New Hampshire

Bachelor ofSocial Work

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire
'Senior Consultant. 2014 • present .

NH Center for Excellence on Addiction. Projects Director. January 2016-present. Direct statewide training and technical
assistance center serving professionals across the substance misuse continuum of care. Leading state-level initiatives to support
provider- and system-level change across the substance misuse continuum of care which has included leading a large team and
multiple projects in consultation, training, technical assistance, data analysis and evaluation for alcohol and other drug misuse
prevention, hann reduction, substance use disorder treatment, recovery support services, continuum of care development, and
integration of behavioral health into primaiy care. Work has included:
•  authoring annual NH Governor's Commission on Altohol and other Drugs reports,
•  co-authoring NH's strategic plan to address OUD and other substance use disorders, -
•  developing Communities of Practice and Project ECHO learning opportunities, and
•  providing systems change consultation as a nationally recognized SBIRT expert.

NH Student Assistance Network. 7u/)' 2022 - present. Founding director of the facilitating organization for student
assistance programs. Provide subcontracts to eligible school districts, and multifaceted technical assistance and training
to counselors and school administrators.

NH Mcdicaid to Schools Technical Assistance Center. February 2021 - present. Founding director of TA Center
designed to support school districts and slate agencies to maximize utilization of federal Medicaid resources for eligible
participants in school sellings to streamline access to behavioral health for, students and families.

NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drugs. January 2016 - present. Provide expertise and support to
the Commission including policy analysis and recommendations, aggregating and reporting, and TA to task forces and
workgroups formed by the Commission.

NH Opioid Litigation Case Research. July 2020-October 2020. Retained to identify and collect data for opioid
epidemic mitigation related programming in New Hampshire. j'

Opioid Resource Net>vork Prevention Convening White Paper. - March 2020. Co-authoring summary and
recommendations document after national meeting of alcohol and other drug prevention experts.

HRSA Behavioral Health Center for Excellence. October 2019-December 2020. Providing subject matter expertise
and technical assistance to HRSA grantees throughout the United States.

NH State Youth Treatment Initiative. April 2017 - 2020. Authored the planning grant awarded to NH DHHS by
SAMHSA. Providing subject matter expertise, strategic planning, and systems development TA to plan and implement a
comprehensive system of care for youth and young adults with substance use disorders. ^

NHCF Youth SBIRT Initiative. 2014 - 2017. Development of written guidance, website, and supportive
implementation materials. TA and training onsite, through a learning collaborative, and at national conferences
throughout the US. Nationally recognized SBIRT expertise.
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New Futures, Concord, Nil
Policy Director. 2010-2014
Responsible for advocacy to maximize the implementation of the Affordable Care Act in New Hampshire, particularly in policy
areas impacting the potential increase of access to treatment for substance use disorders through Medicaid expansion and parity in
the federally facilitated Marketplace.

Waypolnt (Child and Family Services of New Hampshire), Statewide, NH
Youth and Young Adult Programs Director, 1992-2010
Progressive 18 year career at statewide, non-profit child services organization. Developed, implemented and directed
•  alcohol and other drug prevention programs;
•  comprehensive youth/young adult substance use disorder outpatient and intensive outpatient services;
•  runaway and homeless youth prevenlion.and emergency response; and
•  homeless street outreach programs in communities throughout NH.

Including federal, state, local and charitable grant writing and contract management; development and oversight of$1.5 million
annual budget and management and supervision of 20+ staff members.

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Sociology Adjunct Professor. 2017-2018
Develop and delivered Bachelor's level classes including Introduction to Sociology, and the Sociology of Social Problems.

Hcsser College, Concord and Manchester, NH
Psychology/Sociology Adjunct Professor, 2008-2012
Developed and delivered Bachelor's level classes including Intro to Sociology, Intro to Psychology, and Intro to Human Behavior.

Direct Services, various locations, NH, 1988-1992

Professional Awards

Lifetime Achievement Award

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association, 2012

Executive Director's Award

New Futures. 2011

Recent Publications

National Council ON Bi-haviorai. l-lryVLTH Practice Transkormation Ti-am mlmber. Improving Adolescent Health:

Facilitating Change for Excellence in SBIRT (2020).

LaPave, L.R., Bradley, M., Murray, A;R., Pepin, A.L., Sprangers, K.S. & Thies K.M. (2018). Lessons learned from
implementing screening, brief intervention, and referral to treatment for youth and young adults in primary care
settings. Inlecrative Pediatrics and Child Care. KH. 8-13.
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Lauren Ferridge

Education

Dartmouth Colli-gb

Bachelors IS Biology CONC. Epidemiology asd Global Health, 2023

Experience

JSI Research & Training, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts
Projecl Associale I. July 2023-Presenl

Viral Hepatitis Elimination Plan - Provide viral hepatitis prevention and surveillance services in collaboration with the
NH Division of Public Health Services, Maine Centers for Disease Control (ME CDC), and the Vermont Department of
Health (VT DOM). Specific tasks include high-level qualitative analysis of interviews, participation in iterative
development of elimination goals and objectives, presenting findings and facilitating brainstomiing in virtual
workgroups to over 100 external stakeholders. Adept at using software applications to support project processes ,
including Miro, Canva, and Zoom.

Dementia Hub Project - Conducting a community assessment in the seacoast area of New Hampshire to design and
provide useftii, sustainable, and accessible caregiver support for those looking after family members with dementia.
Independently conducted a literature review (within first months with JSI) on the scientific models and pilot programs
for caregiver support. The final review included 40+ peer-reviewed sources about caregiver support for caregivers of
both dementia and other chronic illnesses spanning several different journals and search engines. The infonnation of the
review was presented to grassroots stakeholders to guide the creation of their caregiver support program.

NH Student Assistance Network - Developing, aligning, and promoting the Student Assistance Program (SAP), in
collaboration with the NH Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Ser\'ices, to provide group and individual technical assistance,
community learning collaboratives, and support for evaluation and sustainability programing for.schools with SAPs.
Conducting administrative tasks with efficiency, a high level of autonomy, and attention to detail; organizing site visits,
designing and preparing materials for internal, extremal, and TA meetings. Taking on creative and research roles to
develop a Vaping Toolkit to disseminate amongst schools.

NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, Assisiance to Coordination and Cooperaiion Task Force -
Providing technical assistance and logistical support to NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs. Ditties
include organizing and prepare materials for task force meetings, taking detailed minutes at meetings, promptly creating
fonnal summary and minutes to be shared on the Center for Excellence website.

EngcnderHcalth Washington, D.C.
Gender, Youth, andSociallnchision (GYSI) Intern, 2022

Researched and analyzed current literature to compile a thematic literature review exploring the impact of sports
inclusion and interventions on adolescent sexual and reproductive health. Interacted with existing partners and inspired
new collaborations to complete a concept note supporting integrating sports into gender equality programming that was
presented to the broader Engender Health community at the conclusion of the internship. .

Dartmouth Global Health Fellow Hanover, NH

Program Participant. 2022-2023
Engage in activities in global health methods, equity, access, security, and leadership to consider complex global
challenges around health and wellness, human rights, health security and health diplomacy. Developed skills including
communication, diversity awareness, public health policy analysis through a variety of events including a pandemic
outbreak simulation. " . - .

Certifications

CITI Human Subjects Researchfor Social and Behavioral Research. Exp. August 2028

LFerridge



HIPAA For Business Associates. Exp. Aug 2024

Dartmouth Global health Fellow Certification. 2022-2023
Awarded by the John Sloan Dickey Center for International Understanding for excelling in requirements of the GHF program.

Community Service

Volunteer with the Period Poverty Project. 2023
Assisted a Hanover based group to make washable and reusable menstrual pads to send to orphanages and schools in West Africa.

Computer Skills

Highly skilled at using Canva and Miro.
Proficient in G-suite and Microsoft programs including Excel.
Familiarity with STATA.
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Hannah Owen

JS! Research & Training. Inc. dba Community Health Institute

Education

Tufts University

M.S. Infectious Disease and Global Health 2019

University of New Hampshire

B.S. Biomedical Science 2017

Experience

JSl Research and Training Instilutc, Inc., dba Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Analyst, February 2023 • present
Project Associate, February 2020 • Februaiy 2023

Ciirrent Projects

Rhode Island Social Host Law Campaign
Serves as Project Director responsible for scope development, client relations, managing the work
plan and budget, and coordinating management meetings. Also supported facilitation of television
and radio advertising run. Previously conducted formative research on underage drinking habits
and the provision of alcohol to underage persons by older friends and family members. The
campaign, Rhode Rules for Rhode Island, aims to increase awareness about the Rhode Island
Social Host law through social media and partner engagement awareness strategies, in the 20
Rhode Island towns covered by the Partners for Success Coordinators. The campaign was also
named a finalist for the 2022 Ragan PR Daily Awards under the Public Ser\'ice Campaign
category.

Maine Prcdiabctcs Marketing
Serves as Project Director responsible for scope development, client relations, managing the work
plan and budget, coordinating management meetings, and project reporting. Also previously
conducted formative research for the development of a marketing plan targeting Maine residents at
risk for diabetes, and supported the refresh and redesign of the program's existing website,
RethinkDiabetes.org, including User Experience testing. The Rethink Diabetes program aims to
increase awareness of prediabetes and diabetes and to connect Mainers to existing diabetes
prevention and management services.

NH Student Assistance Nct>vork -

Serves as Contract Manager responsible for contract and budget management. Manages over 20
subcontracts and budgets as well as the project contract budget. Works closely with subcontractor
to ensure subcontract requirement adherence and to aid in subcontract budget development. The
NH Student Assistance Network develops and promotes Student Assistance Programs and
provides group and individual technical assistance, a Community of Practice learning
collaborative, and support with evaluation and sustainability planning. Also wrote a section of the
winning proposal related to back office fiinctions and contract management.
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NH Prevention Ccrtiflcatidn Board Admlnlstratration and Project Management
Sen'es as Board Administrator responsible for managing the application andtertification process
of Certified Prevention Specialists in New Hampshire through the NH Prevention Certification
Board. As Project Manager responsible for task tracking, workflow management, and coordinating
committee tneetings. Also responsible for developing a quarterly newsletter and project
susiainability plan.

Past Projects

BIngc-Frce 603: What's Your Reason, Young Adult Binge Drinking Prevention Campaign
Served as Project Associate to facilitate outreach to organize young adult focus groups. Binge
Drinking Prevention in NH. Research for this campaign has involved peer group or network
identification and validation in NH, the theories of social marketing and behavior change and may"
involve social media, traditional media, and youth leadership with a statewide media buy. .

The Partnership @drugfrccNH
Served as Project Manager responsible for tracking deliverables, communicating with the client,
project announcement e-blasts to partners, managing work plans, managing the budget, and
quarterly reporting. Also assisted with the collecting of substance use disorder resources, the
writing of website content, and assisting in the development of online survey testing and the
analysis and presentation of the collected data. The campaign involves the theories of social
marketing and behavior change, social media, and traditional media.

NH Maternal Marijuana and Alcohol Campaign
Ser\'ed as Project Associate to research and describe the current knowledge regarding marijuana
and alcohol use during pregnancy. Formative research includes online survey testing (MaxDifT,
conjoint), focus groups and digital a/b testing. Creative develoi3ment included video production
and a statewide digital campaign. The campaign, Today Is For Me., includes a provider toolkit to
support campaign messages. Work included collaboration with the NH Governor's Commission
on Alcohol and Other Drugs, Perinatal Substance Exposure Task Force.

NH Community-Based Partnership for Comprehensive Tobacco Control
Served as Project Manager of marketing tasks responsible for tracking deliverables,
communicating with the clients, managing the work plan, coordinating management meetings, and
quarterly reporting. Also conducted formative research to support the development of a statewide
multi-media marketing strategy for mass-reach communication interventions of a comprehensive
tobacco prevention and cessation; including a youth vaping prevention campaign, a youth vaping
cessation campaign, an adult cessation campaign, and development of materials and campaign
elements for other priority audiences including individuals living with a mental health diagnosis
and other audiences.

COVID Traveler's Campaign
Sei"ved as Project Manager responsible for tracking deliverables, communicating with the clients,
managing the work plan, and coordinating management meetings. Also conducted formative
research, including an environmental scan of existing COVID-19 traveling campaigns, to support
the development of a statewide multi-nTedia marketing campaign that will aim to educate NH
visitors on COVID-19 best practices to avoid disease transmission.

EASTIE Youth Vaping Prevention
Served as Project Manager responsible for tracking deliverables, communicating with the clients,
managing the budget, and coordinating management meetings. Supported the development of the
youth-created social media campaign aiming to prevent vape usage among adolescents in East
Boston.

Vcr^mont Mentally Healthy
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Served as Project Associate and Research Lead responsible for the fonnative research needed to
provide the client with recommendations for developing a marketing campaign. The campaign
will focus on connecting individuals to mental health care as well as destigmatizing mental health
diagnoses. Formative research included an environmental scan of existing marketing campaigns
focused on mental health and a literature review.

NH Immunization Program Toolkit Development
Served as Project Associate and Research Lead responsible for formative research of
immunization marketing campaigns and immunization toolkits. The formative research was used
to develop two toolkits; one for NH schools to use to educate parents about the imponance of
pediatric vaccination and encourage parents to get their children caught up on vaccines, and one to
share with NH pediatric providers that they can use to educate parents about the importance of
pediatric vaccination and encourage parents to get their children caught up on vaccines.

Vaccine Center Service Link

Served as Project Associate responsible for formative research of immunization marketing
campaigns targeting older adults and marketing campaigns connecting older adults to
health-related services available. The formative research will be used to develop a marketing
campaign targeting older adults living in NH. The goals of this campaign were to increase vaccine
uptake in this population and to raise awareness about the public health services available to the
target audience.

NH Radon Program
Serves as Project Manager responsible for task tracking and quarterly reporting. Also responsible
for policy research on radon statutes in New England and helped develop a comprehensive policy
scan report for the client. Also aided in the development of radon educational materials for fifth
and seventh grade teachers including lesson plans, slide decks, and work books. .

Santa Clara County Childhood Immunization
Served as Budget Manager and Co-Research Lead responsible for formative research of child
immunization marketing campaigns targeting parents and caregivers. The formative research was
used to develop a marketing campaign targeting parents and caregivers of children ages 0-14 years
living in Santa Clara County. The goal of this campaign was to increase routine childhood vaccine
uptake with an added focus on the COVID-19 vaccine approved in children. The campaign,
Vaccines Are Another Pan of Growing Up, went on to win an Honorable Mention in the PR Daily
Content Marketing Awards for best public health campaign. The campaign also won a Health +
Wellness Design award from Graphic Design USA Magazine.

Publications and Presentations

LaCanibba B, Bunda A, Savage K, Owen (Sargent) H, Akiki M, Foxall T, Andrade A. Developmental and
cell-specific expression ofCacnaldsplice variants. (April 2019)

Presented at the National Conference for Undergraduate Research 2014
Presented atthe American Society of Microbiology General Meeting 2014
Presented at the Northern Vermont University Student Research Conference 2014
Presented at the Univereity of New Hampshire Undergraduate Research Conference 2017

Honors and Awards

Northern Vermont University
Student Transition, Achievement. Retention, and Teaching Scholarship
2013
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University of New Hampshire
Summer Undei-graduate Reseatvh Fellowship
2016

Computer Skills

Proficient in Microsoft Suite

Proficient in Google Suite
Skilled in survey development using Qualtrics® and Sur\'eyMonkey® software
Experienced in the use of EndNote"'"'''
Experienced in the use of Airtable for task tracking management

Additional trainings and skills

Training: Facing Addiction in America: Tutorial on the Surgeon General's Report on Alcohol, Drugs,
and Mealth by Addiction Technology Transfer Center Network | September 2020
Training: Understanding Substance Use Disorders by Addiction Technology Transfer Center Network |
September 2020
Training: Foundations of Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion by Commonl lealth ACTION | May 2021
Education: Basics of Radon | June 2022
Skilled at literature review and proposal writing .
Experienced in the research design process
Experienced in data review and presentation
Trained in project budget creation and management
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Julie Yerkes, Ed. M., CPS

Education

Harvard Graduate School of Education, Cambridge, MA
Ed. M. Human Development and Psychology: Risk and Prevention

Middledury College, Middleburv, VT. ^
B.A. English and Italian; Concentration: Secondaiy Education

Experience

JSI, Boston, Massachusetts
Prevention Programs Manager, Janua\y 2020 - present
Provide Substance Misuse Prevention content knowledge and expertise for statewide technical assistance resource center on a
variety of substance use prevention projects. Consult on the development, implementation and evaluation of evidence-based
policies, programs, and practices in substance misuse prevention services._pirect the Community Engagement for the
Partnership© drugfreeNH, convening stakeholders from across the state to increase substance use prevention communication
knowledge, skills, and best practices. Facilitate NH Service to Science, a process through which innovative prevention programs
can demonstrate effectiveness and earn the designation of Evidence Base Prdgram. Provide TA to programs seeking Service to
Science designation.

NH Teen Institute, Manchester, New Hampshire
Parent Education Coordinator, July 2017 — Januarv 2020
Nenvorked and built relationships with prevention professionals, schools, community groups, and prevention coalitions across
New Hampshire. Organized parent education program in each of the 13 regional public health networks. Collected data and
engaged in program evaluation-as part of program fidelity efforts and outcome tracking. Oversaw management and reporting
requirements of state and/or local contracts. Stayed current on ATOD trends, research, and best practices. Presented at state and
national conferences. Provided professional development for individuals working with youth.

School of Creative and Performing Arts, New York, New York
Associate Director. January 2008 - July 2017
Identified gaps in services and adjusted systems to meet changing needs of clients and staff. Developed and streamlined systems
to increase quality, efficiency, and consistency of programming while minimizing risk. Researched rules, regulationSi and best
practices and developed educational and training materials for faculty and staff. Deyeloped systems to address student health
issues and staff responsiveness. Coordinated operational areas in order to meet the niission of the school and program objectives.
Ensured successful high-quality implementation of program across four campuses, focusing on student safety and wellbeing,
positive relationship with host-universities, and professional satisfaction for staff. Provided technical assistance, training, and
advisement to campus directors.

New Hampshire Institute of Politics, Manchester, NH
Civic Education Programs Manager. November 2005 - January 2008
Developed and enhanced school- and community- based prevention programs. Created and implemented professional
development opportunities for teachers and school administrators. Worked with individual and groups of students to enhance their
leadership skills. Researched, tracked, and monitored trends within state and national prevention and education fields.
Represented the NHIOP at state and national meetings and conferences.

The Medical Foundation. Boston, Massachusetts

Prevention Specialist Intern. September 2002-July 2003
Developed and implemented ATOD and violence prevention curricula in middle and high schools and conimunity health centers
in underserved urban communities. Supported student development throughout prevention training program. Facilitated group
cohesion and created a respectful community among students from diverse cultural and economic backgrounds. Built
relationships with school administrators and faculty in order to successfully integrate youth development programs into the school
schedule.
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Julie Yerkes

The New England School of English, Cambridge, Massachusetts ,
Teacher ofEnglish as a Foreign Language and Assislanl Academic Director, May 2000 - August 2005
Advised students to maximize their learning and achieve academic goals. Led monthly teacher development meetings. Taught
intensive English language program for students and professionals representing over 15 countries. Customized curriculum and
used various teaching techniques to meet students' individual needs. Promoted understanding and tolerance of diverse abilities,
views, and cultures. '

Training | Certifications

♦ New Hampshire Prevention Certification Board, Concord, New Hampshire
Certified Prevention Specialist. 2018—pnisent

♦ Prevention Solutions @ EDC, Waltham, Massachusetts
Substance Abuse Prevention Skills Training, facilitator, 2020

Professionajls Affiliations | Membership

♦ New Hampshire Prevention Certification, Board member, 2020

♦ New England Prevention Technology Transfer Center, Advisory Council member, 2020
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Julie Yerkes Student Assistance Network

Director

$  50,520.00
$109,475.00

Amy Daniels Subject Matter Expert $  50,192.00 $145,008.00

Ryan Barry
Technical Assistance & Training
Manager

$36,923.00 $80,000.00

Lauren Ferridge SAP Network Support $16,074.00 $59,704.00

Hannah Owen Budget and Finance Manager $28,673.00 $74,550.00
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Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HIJMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

J 29 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH
603-271.^ tiS0<^2-3345 Ext 9544

F»x:603-27I-4332 TDD Access: I•800-735-2964 nrww.dhbs.Bh4ov

May 16. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher t. Sunuhu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

, Authorize the Departmerit of Health and Human Services, Division for Behaviora] Health, to
ienter into ah amendment to an existing contract v^th JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
(\/C#161611), Bow. New Harhpshire for the Implemeritation of a facilitating organization to.oversw
New Hampshire's Stddent Assistance Programs, by exercising a renewal option by Increasing the
.price limitation by.$5.W,0lXi;fro,fn ̂ .^,000 to $9,200,000 and by e)rtehdirig the completioh date
from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2025, effective July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Cpuricii approval.
50% Other Funds, 50% Federal Funds.

The original contract was apprpyed by Governor and Council on July 27,2022, item #9 and
imbst r^iitly amended wilh;Gpveriipr"and Council approya! on December 7,2022, Item #8.

Funds "are anticipated to be available in the fpllowng account for State Fiscal Years 2024
and"2025, with the authority to adjust budget line-ttems wlthin^t price lirnitatlpn and encumbrances
■between state fiscal, years'through the Budget Offit^', if neected and justified.
05-95-92-920^0-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL' SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVlSiON FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUR^U OF DRUG AND. ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSldN FUNDS (100% OtherFund8)

State
Fiscal.

, year

Class if'
Account

Cla^ title i Job.
Number

1

Current
Budget -

Increased
(Decreased

) Amount

Revised
Budget

.2023 ^ 074/MP0589
Grants:for
Pub Asst &

Relief
92058502

$i;2ad.opo $0 $'i,2po,()po

;2024 !
■ ■ I.

074/5000589
GranlsTor
Pub

Relief
-92058502 i

$0 $1i475;00p $1,475,000

•2025 074/M00589
Grants for'
Pub Asst &

Relief,
.92058502

$Q $.1,475,000 $.1,475,000.

1

•.. .

Subtotal 200,000 $2,950,000 $4,750,000
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His Exceliency, Governor Chrtsl^herT. Sununu •.
ami the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

05-95^94-940010-24650(M)0 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL.ARPA
DHHS FISCAL RECOVER FUNDS (100% Federal Funds) -u-

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased
) Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074/6000589

Grants for

Pub Asst &
.  Relief •

O0FRF602
PH9S10A ■

$2,100,000 $0 $2,100,000

Subtotal $2,100,000 $0 $2,100,000

. K'

05-95-92

HUMAN

ALCOHC

-920510-33800000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPJ OF HEALTH AND
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND '*
IL, PREVENTION SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

.  Class/
Account

Class TItie Job Number
Current

Budget

"Increased

(Decrease
d) Amount

\

Revised

Budget

2024 074/5000589

Grarits for

Public Asst

and Relief

92057502

$0 $1,475,000 $1,475,000

2025 074/500589

Grants for

Public Asst

ar)d Relief
92057502

$0 $1,475,000 $1^475.000

'f

Subfotaf $0 $2,950,000 $2,950,000

' c

Contract

Total

$3,300,000 $5,900,000 $9,200,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to continue to operate as the Facilitating Organization by
developing and supporting an Infrastructure and provide program support to Student Assistance
.Programs across the State. The Facilitating Organization will ensure financial, operational,
technicar assistance and training to support* Student Assistance Programs including
subcontracting with school districts or other organizations to Implement SAPs.

The Department's goal is to aeate a stalevi/ide. geographically diverse Student Assistance
Program network by contracting with an organization that can provide technical assistance and
Iwst practice on how to effectively deliver and expand Student Assistance program services.

The Conlractdr will confimie to contract ,with subawardees chosen through a competitive
RFP process facilitated by the Contractor'and monitored closely by the Department. Currently 21
student assistance program and affiliated ^ofessipnal arp subcpntracted. The
continue to ensure each subawardee will provide services, in fidelity with the Project SUCCES?
model. 16 New Hampshire youth in high need communities with the goal of preventing and
reducing underage drinking, high risk drinking, and toe use of non-rhedical prescription drugs,
including opioids and illicit drug use.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Suminu
and the HonoraWo Council '

Page 3 of 3

-  Services provided by the subawarxJees will include; alcohol arid other drug screenings;
.individual support sessions; group support sessions; and referrals to drug and alcohol treatment
providers vi^en indicated by the screening. Additionally, each subawardee will provide students
,and parents with targeted drug and alcohol education to improve understanding of risks
associated with the non-medical use of prescription drugs,'underage alcohol and other drug use,
and the developmental milestones and brain development of adolescents. The Contractor will
incorporate community level media strategies to conduct outreach and marketing for the Student
As;sistance Programs, thus allowing the subawardees to focus on delivery of services.

Student Assistance Programs, statewide, will continue to work collaboratlvely wHh the
Coritractor and the Department to Improye the quality of services delivered to students and. to
collect data for the purposes of data-driven decision making for school-ba^ prevention
programmirxg.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Ensuring a minimum of 20 schools are providing SAP services by
September 1,2023 and 25 schools are providing SAP services by September 1,
2024

•  Erisuring 95% of SAPs fiilly meet the fidelity of Project SUCCESS by June 30,2023
and 2024.

.  Ensuring 80% of SAP counselors are trained in Project SUCCES.S by June 30.
2024' ' ' " .

V Ensuring 95% of sub-awarded SAPs report being satisfied with the quality of
support provided, by the facilitating.org^izalion.

Approximately 18,000 individuals will be served annually.

^  As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
"' ' agreement, the parties Jiave the option to extend the agr^ment for up to five (5) additional years,

contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and^
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for
(2) of the five (5) years available. .

^  Should the Governor and Council noiauthprize this request, students may ript reoeive the
' support and subsjance misuse prevention education needed during critical developmental years.

Lack of support services could result in higher prevalence rates of underage drinking, dr^ use,
misuse and abuse of prescription medication, and an escalation In adverse childhood
experiences.

Area served: Statewide.

'  ̂urce of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number # CFDA 93.959.
In the event that the Federal Funds or .Other Funds become.no longer available, additional

General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Ldri A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

Tiie Dtpartnient of Health and Ilunuin ̂ rwcts'Mifsionii to join conimtiniiieM and /onuiiea
• in providing oppdrltiniiies for eilietns to'achieve htoUh and independence.
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State of New Hampshire '
Department of Health and Human-Services

Amendment #2 r.- '

This Amendment to the Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program contract is by and between
the State oif New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. ("the Contractor").

•  s

WHEREAS, pursuarit to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 27.2022, (Item #9), as amended on December 7.2022, (Item #8). the Contractor.agreed to perform
certain services based.upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as .amended and In

, consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A, Paragraph 1.1, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
.Executive Council; and ' . ^

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agfeerhent.-increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and '

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregojng and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30.2025 -

2. Form P-37,. General Provisions. Block. T.8, Price Limitation, to read:

,$9,200,000. -

3. Exhibit C, Payment Terms. Section 1, to read: " _

1. This Agreement Is funded by: "• . ' *

1.1. '23% Federal Funds from the American Rescue Plan Act, ARPA Fiscal Ftecovery Funds,
CFDA 93.959

1.2.. 32®/o Federal Funds from Substance Abuse Mental Health Administration Services,
Substance.Abuse Prevehtlon, Treatment, Recovery Block Grant

1.3.. 45®/o'Other funds (Governor's Commission).

• 4. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms. Section 3 t.b read:

3. Payment shall be bri a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
.-fulfillment of this Agreement, «and shall'be in accordance with the-approved jtne items,'as

r, •specified, in Exhibits C-l, Budget through C*-3 Amendment'#2", Budget. ' "
5. Add Exhibit C-2 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and.incorporated by reference

herein. ' . ■

6. Add Exhibit p-3 Arnendment "#2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein."

JSJ Research and Training Instilute.lnc.

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A02

,A-S-1.3

Page 1 of 3

iContractor Inilials

bate
'5/18/2023"
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All terms and conditions of the .Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in iuil force and,effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023, upon Governor and Council
approval. ..

K*.

IN WITNESS VyHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below. -

-  Slate of New Hampshire "
Department of Health and Human Services

5/23/2023

Date

OocvSignK) tij:

n-'S- foy'
ipoMoiCQMaii

Name: s. fox

Title: Director

5/18/2023

Date

JSI Research and training Institute, Inc.;
•DecuSlonM by;

^  •̂ISOC2tC4«Cfl<W,

Name: Katherine Robert

Director

•V.

.JSI Research and Training Inslitote, Inc.

•■RFpr2023-8DAS-02-FAClL-0,1:02

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of ,3



DocuSign Envelope ID; 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

DocuSIgn EnvelOfM 10; F2529697-09BS>42B5-9CF1-92SgF39ABE73

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed.by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. v.-

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OMuSlpnad bjr

'5/24/2023

Date Name: Cuarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
•the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting) n

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research Twining Institute, Inc.

RFP-2023-BDAS^2-FAClL-01 ̂ 2

,A-S-t.2

Page 3 of 3
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RFP.2O23.BDAS-O2.FACIL.OVAO2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

-  Contractor Name: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

^  Budget Request for:
Budget Period

Ihdlfect Cost Rate (if applicable)

Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Pixh

7/1/2023 - 6/30/2024

3.06% -r,

Line Item Program Cost * Funded by DHHS

1. Salary &Waqes $250,196

2." Fringe Benefits $117,342

3. Consultants $20,000

4. Equipment $0

S.fal SuDolies • Educational $0

S.fbl SuDDlies - Lab •N $0

5.fc) SuDDlies - Pharmacv >i; $0

S.fdV SuDDlies - Medical $0

S.fel SuDDlies Office ' -  $0

6. Travel. $983

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/Communications.. .  $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other - Other (specify betow)

Other (please ̂ecify) ,i; -v $23,850

• Other (please specify) j /, $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specity) $0

9. Subredpient Contracts $2,450,000

Total Direct Costs $2,862,371

total Indirect Costs $87,629

TOTAL $2,950,000

Cohtraclor Initial

Date
5/18/2023
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RFP-2023.BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A02

New Hampshire Departnient of Health and Human Services

Complete one budpet form for each budget period.

Cohtractor'Name: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

'  Budget Request for: Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program

Budget Period 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2025 ...

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)l06%

Line Item
•  . * 1

Program Cost' Funded by OHMS

i. Salaiv & Waqes •" $257,700

2. Fringe Benefits ' ;  $120,861

3. Consultants $1,500

4. Equipment "■■■ $0

S.fa) SuDDlies -Educational $0
S.fb^ Subolies - Lab $0
5.fc) SuDDlies • Pharmacy a;-. $0
5idV SuoDlies - Medical .  $0
S.fel SuDOlies Office ■  $0

6. Travel ■' A " $1;000

7. Software .V $0

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/Communications V  $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq '
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) ;

Other (please specify) i '■ - $i;ooo
Other (please specify) ^  ,$0
Other (please specify) ^ , •$0
Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts - -  $2,486,751

Total Direct Costs i  . $2,868,812
■

lotal Indirect Costs !  ;■ $81,188

^  . . TOTAL i  $2,950,000

'.11

.K.

ros

Contractor Initial

5/18/2023
Date
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Cori'Au'Sbibl'KRt'
CoMmlolostr'

STATE OF iyE>V HAMKHCRE

DEPXktMENTOF HEALTH ANDiiUMAN SERVICES

DmSlQNFOR BEHAVJp^L.HEALTH

iigPLD^SANt^ECT.^NCORDl-NH 03301
" " 1603-171-9544 r-«66^52'lMSEiV^

Fii: ̂ 27l-4ji2 .;TDD A(cus:[l460.73»9M' ww.dbbtjtibisoY.

November 22. 2022

His E'xMlIency. Governor Ghriotoph'er T. SuhiTnu
I'and-the-HqndratteGounal

•Staje'iHpuse
Conppi^./Jw Hamps

REQUESTED ACTION

•Authonie.-tiiie^Pc^ of Health" and Human. ̂rvfees/Oryisio^^^ for ̂ Hawprai^Healih,^
•to'enterifitd a'Spjte'^ ame'n^enl."tb;ah ex^ p6nl.rbci,;d^<^fdl^.'throu^
bid .pWcess.; -with'^fSJjResea^ Inc. (ycit(l6,l6l 1)^;- Bow. New Hampshire.- to

., add furWing to^expdn'd.ajr^. ahhahM^ Prograrns training, .technical assistaiw^
■ and/lnfri^tr'udure,;.lhrp*^h .By'tncfeaslhg ,the price .njniuiioh 000,000.from'
" $2i3Q0,66p~to.S3;3dp;6lWiW^ •nd'ch'a'nge.lo the icontract- compietion date" of June 30, 2023,
effectiyeypdn Gbyernorai^^uhcilapproval. i.100%.FedefalFuhds- • .

The'original cohira.cl was approved by'.Governor and Gouricil-. ori July 27,;2022. Hem <t9.
..R^ritly; .the* NH. Fjscal.Cqfnm a^.epicd and approved Governor's Qffice^fpr/Emefgen^^
Relief ahdlRecbyery (GOFERR) funding toCcnhance'arid expand.l«Havioral healt^^ '
supports" jo .jfriiddle ;amJ higH" s^bbl. slOderits. this" amehdrriehT'vwll su'pjpqirt the r^qgrairi

, ehhahccment'ande^ ^ .

•'Funds are'B^ailatile in^Uie folioiwihg accouritsTor State Bscal.Year 2023, \mth the authqi^
-'io/adjust-budget• line'*jterns w^in•.Vhe.pnce limllatipn through the.'Bud^t.Office, !lf niwded- and
-jusiified.

, 65r9^92/92p510-338200 and $6cia!.Services^ of Hejil^ and Hufda
Sya> HHS':?6iyisipriiFor -Bahayip^^ of Drug'and Alcbhol; doveiribr;

■ eb'im'mUs i,on; F.u rid^

• Stated-

'.Fiacal-
Yebr-'

■ Class /

Abcourit* ij
ClasVtillq >  'Job

.{Nurhber
i<n

' Curr.ent
:: BudO^f

. Increased
(Decreased)
''Amount

•RevfS^
"Budget

202'3 piA-SOOSSp-
.  'Welfare

Assistance
'920^502

■ $i.;266;boo.
V  t .c

o•

■svioo.ooo-

'  1
• f

V-? »
-■ ■!

,

jtf,20p;WW' ■Jl?pp,ppp-

.;7V 9tHaiiih o'nd./VumiM Stt^ert ata}6in'eontiuMitia lofn'tUts
^•in provtdi'ig'op^rCunilin ond Zi'-
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«$ Exccliency. Governor Cl^tppher T. ̂niwii
'and.me Honorsple.Council
Pdge.2ol3

05-95-54'S.406l6-246Mp0p Health and Soda! Sen-ices, Efcp! of Health and Human
Svs, HHS: New Hampshire Hospital. New Hampshire Hospital. ARPA DHHS Fiscal
Recover Funds (10p% Federal Funds)

Stato

Fiscal

Year-

Class /

Account

V.

Clais Title
Job

. Number

Current
Budget .

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500589
Welfare;

Insistence"
00FRF602
>H9510A .

$1,100,000- $1,000,000 $2,100,000

■

• Subfotef $1,100,000 $1,000,000 $2,100,000

ToUl $2,300,000: $1,000,000 43.300.000

'1.

CXPLANATION

■piis request is Solo Source because the Depattment is requesting to add more than 10%
o1 the dollar amount of the original contract "n-is funding .will allow -the
Contractor to'provide additional trainings, technical assistance, and infrastructure for schools
currently participating in the Student Assistance Programs (SAP), as well as expand and ̂ ovide
the program in additional schools across the state, -nre expanded trainings will provide e^enco
based substance abuse prevenUon a.nd rnental health promotion pmgmms '<?
reduce' rislt factors that may lead to substance use, disorders. This funding was not ayailatjie to
the Depailment at the time the original conhacl.was approved by the Executive Council, lirnilipg.
the number of spools ̂ at could partiapatei In the SAP. ....

the Contractor Is currently the facilitating prganoaiion that oversees the New Hampshire's
Student Assistance'Program training'and tephnical assistance. As the facilitating organization.S,e^ConUa«m ^1ri th^ unique posit to .provide subawafd?

. behavioral fiealth in schpols., tharefore the Depaftrnent is requesting to provide the Contractor
vyith this funding.

lAriproxiriiately-50 student aVsistance program arid affiliated pfofessionais yvill be. serv^
durino State Fiscal Year 2023. The Department anticipates there vyill be 20, new sch^siSipteriienting '^P-^th eddiliorial schools determining r^diness for §AP in this contract penod.

■fhe 'Contractor will cbritiriue to ensure financial, opeiational,'technical assistance andtraining to support SAPs Including subcontracting with school distnij. o^ther organizalions toimplement SAPs.^ These, fuhds.vyill supplement an existing contract and^allow t|re Yendw to-potontially increase furidinrto current subawards, enter into,new subawards provid^.additionalttoining.'advocacy.' tochnical assistance, and sustaigability pl.anning for,the SAPs. •
The bepaitment will continue to rnoriitor services by reviewirig monthly reportsby the Cjiriiractor arid conducting quarterly,site visits to review program and Iinanc!al.dp^men5s,
ShoulS the Governor and Council not aulhorize this request, the P.epa"rtment,vrijl.bh unaW?

to oxoani) the number of SAPs across the-State and will be unable to increase sup[»rt andsubstance misuse'prevention educa.tibn, heeded during critical developmental ye.arsi Lack oy
support services could r^e'sutt in higher prevalence rates,of underage.'dn^ing. drug use, misuseand^buse-of■prescription medication, and.an escalation in adverse childhood expeneoces,

I;,.

.5 XV

T|#l\

g?



OocuSign Envelope ID; 36382948-90BA'-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

DocuSign'Envelope ID: F2529697-OgB5-42B&-9CP1-9259F39AeE73

'--■J

Ha Excellency. Govcnw CMslophef T. Simunu
and Ihe Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3 -
■'j .

'Area serv^: Statewide
Source of Federal Funds: GOFERR Funds ^

In Ihe event Biat the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Fundswill not t>6 requested to support this ^ograni. _ v
"  Respectfully submitted.

'tori A. Shibinetto
Commissioner
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^  '" y: state of New Hampshire
Depa'rtnient of Health and Human Services

Amendment#!

This Amendment to the Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program contract is by and between
the State of New.Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department) and
JSi Research and Training Institute. Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approv^ by the .Governor and Executive
on" July 27.2022. (Item'#9). the Contractor agreed to perfornri certain services based upon the terms and
cbnditio'ns 'specified.in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and
WHEREAS pursuant to Forni Pt37, General provisions, Paragraph 17,.and Exhibit A, PAregraph. 1.1. the ■.
^ntract may be amended Upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
"Executive Council; a_nd ^
VVHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price lirnitation, 'or rhodify the scope of services to support
continu^ delivery of these services; and ' . •
NOW THEREFORE; in consideratiprt of the foregoing and the rnutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Cpiitraci and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as ifollows:

■i. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block' 1.8, F^rice Limitation, to read: • ^ %
$3,300,000.

2. ■ Modify Exhitjit B. ScofiG of Services, Section 1. Slatemerit of Wbj1<. by adding Subsection 1,6.8, "
to read:" *

1 6.'8 The Contractor shall, upon Governor and Executive's Council approval of Arhendment#VVovide additional funding to current subavvaVds^'to increase the services outlined In •
t.7.6 and/or entefinto new subawards for .new .SAPs.. ..

3. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services. Section 1. Statement of Work. Subsection 1.7.6. to i^ead: '
1.7.6 the Corilractor shall proyide training and .technical assistance to each sul5avyarded

'sap to ensure'that all SAPs meet-all requirements set forth in this agreement,"lncJ^^i.n9
but hot limited to: :

■  1:7.6.1 Ensuririg'fidelity to the Project SLICCESS hfiodei.
17.6!2 Professional developrrient. i-i
1.7.6:3 ■ Confidentiality, privacy laws and mguto cv

'r. 1
1.7.,6.4 'Menloring.and coaching.
i;7.6.5 Capacijy develppment.consulting'.
1:7.6:6 .Restorative Justice.

^  "1:7 ..6,7 -Adyoca'cyTOl.
1.7.'6.8 The Power of the Personal Story.
1.7.6.9 r^t2CFRPart2

-ri 1.7.6.16 .Administratrve support functioris, as needed.
.

•1.7.6.11 Data'collection and ev.aluation.

^•7.6.,12 puality improvernent. ^

4. Exhibit C. PaymentTermsVSectio.r)^!. to read; ^
1. This Ag'reerrienl Is funded by:

■M. ■ K . . • ■ IN;JSI ResMfCh'ah!j.Tfflining A-S-1.3 ■ ■ Contractor Inlllals
RFP.2023:BQAS-02-FACIL-01rA01, Page 1 of 4^'

s.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 36382948-90BA^209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

Design EnvHope ID; 'F2529697-0985^2B5-,9CF1-9259F39ABE73

DoeuSigfl Envelope ID:_O38BFC8A.Ap4B-47O8-flBF5-AF97iXWe90.
■s •v^

1.1. .64% American Rescue Plan "Act, ARRA Fiscal Recovery Fundsp CFDlf^ #TBD
FA1N#TBD.

1.2. 36% Other funds (Governor's Comriiissibn).
5. ^^ify Exhibit G-1 Budget by replacing it in its entirety with, Exhiljit C-1 B.udget Arhendment #1,

'v^Vh Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

'■Wt

'fi'

:<k-;

.0'

\
rx*.^

JSl'Resea/^ ^dTrelnlr^ tnslityie. tnc.
RFP-2023-BbAS-02-FACIL-01 -AOI

A-S-1.3

Page 2 6U

^Contractor Inlilals

—M

locate10/27/2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

DocuSlgn Envelope ID: F252'9697-09B5-42B5-9CF1-9259F39ABE73

.DbcuS^ Envelope ID: D36SFCaA^A[We-i708-98F6-AFfl7ipCWB9a

'«• -

f-:-. ■

■; k> U'-

■' All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in (oil force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective Seplember,30,2022, upon Governor and Council approval, whichever

'  is. later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the ^rties have set their hands as of the date wntten below.
Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services ..

ClO/27/2022

Date

tA ■
I  S.

•Name; Kat^a'k'.'"Fox
Title; Director

•:;'r

ty A.

i-i-
10/27/2022

Date
4': fri-> • i'"-

p/- .

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc.
-'oouVi^.

Name:
Title: Director

'Av-

.'K»
i:'

I

IK.

;'»v

JSI Research ed Tfainlri^ IrislUute! Inc.
RFP* 2023-BpAS-p2-FAtlL-pi -AOl

, A^S-1^2
P^e,3 ol A '-{iC-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

OpcuSign Envelope ID: F2529697-09BS-42B5-9CF1-9259F39ABE73

OocuSlgn Envelope ID; b30BFCSA-AD4B-47O8-9Bf&-AF97lDC34B98

■ the preceding Amendment', having been reviewed by this ofTice, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution, v--

10/28/2022

r

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

'A

j.-;

'Date Na me '-iB's n no
Title: Attorney

'it.

•I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council Of
the State,pf New Hampsh'lro .al'the Meetir^ on: (date of meeting)
' Tl" ' Ui

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE-

t,,-'

Date Name:

Title:

W
• I.

f:C>
FJ

•'i-*;

JSI R'»eard> and Training In^lyle. Inc.-
RFP-2023-BDAS-02.FACIL-01 -A01

A.S-i.2

Page 4 ol 4
'.Vi



OocuSign Envelope ID; 3638294d-90BA-4209-829A-E2A63A8D87E2

DocuSlfln Envelope ID: F2529697-O985-4205-9CF1-9259F39ABE73

OodiS^Emi^ >0: OMBfC6A*D4lM70H»Fl^ei lOC34eiB
EtNbb C-1. Amendment «1 RFP-2O23«)AS<>2-FAC«.-O1-A0J

*  ' Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
CompWe one bitdgti form for »*ch btidgti poriod.

C.nnine.iarHimo: JSIRoseafcHsfuiTralntnglnslilute.lnc.

\  QuiiaotnoQKi06\for.PlicalOfganhetionfofStutlontAsslslancoPr^m
Budget Period July 1. 2022 throu^ih June 30. 2023 (SPY23) •

Indirect Cost Rate fif aoolicable) 3.72% 'i;.

*'• '*•

;• Line Item Program Cost • Funded by OHMS

1  Srdarv&Waoes
•V: St92.21S

2. Frinoe Benefits '' —"•
$90,149

'*< •

3. Cortsuttanis
S5.000

4-; Equipment $1

s rn> "SunnEns • Educaltonal S2.S00 f ,

•••" -M V; •

SiinnliM.Phaimftcv ?- '.$0

«./dt SnnnAAA • Medical
to /T;

S/el SuoollesOffice" •' W|

8. Travel
r  $7,326

7: 'Software " ...

B. (a)Othef • MeritelinQ/CommunicaUons .$0

8. Ib\Other - Education and Tratnlno $5,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specifv below)
suconiractof iralnino end conforence reouests

'•:! $50,000
"

-maft/j/in/rniinino momrenlel $1.000

.'V.- S  Hi

Other (oleese soedtv)' Jii ; ' $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts ^.•v- • $2,862,750

Total Direct (Josts $3,215,942

,  • V - Total Indirect Costs $84,058

;r TOTAL $3,300,000

""" ' ̂ /m

w.

»;•

-'I

%  '

10/27/2072

'. ) **• 1  .-fT

>3"!
rt'

•»

::: ?>i.:



DocuSign Envelope ID; 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

bocuSign Envelope ID: F252969'7-09B5-4'2B5-9CFl-9259F39ABe73

OoeuSlon'Envdope ID: b3aBFCeA.AD4B-4708-9BF5-AFfi7lDC34B9B
.. . K

OocuSlBn EfWtkipe ID; E4FMnA'2Ee>4UA.B79M2487E4A9F»

.JUL15'22>rdl-45RCV0

UrI 4. SklbiMlir

• K*ii* s. r«.<
Oirtfltr

V  StATe OF New HAMPSHIRE

OEPARTMENTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

01 mios rott beha vtOHA t he^ lth

IJ9PUA5AKT STREET. CONCORD. NH O.VXOI
40!i-ni «S44 riOO-6}IO.U5 CXI.9SM

Fi.\:,M>17i-4X12 TDD Afrtti: l tOI>-1.IS-i964 «vnu.8hM.nl>.ce>

♦, •

f/ July 12. "2022 "
His Excellency. .Govemof Chrislophcr T. Sununu
eodihe Honorebie Council ^

Stale House • " "
^ncord.New Hampshire 03301 '' *

REQUESTEO ACTION '

Aulhofiie-the Oepartmenl of.Heallhjand Human Services; O.ivis.ion forBchayroral HeaUh.
to enter into a'.contract with JSI Research & Training InsIilOie. .Inc. (VC# 739507). Bow.- New
Hdmpshire. in the'amounl of S2.300.00() for the irhplementation of a -faciliialihg organization to
oversee New HarhpsKlre's.Siudenl Assistance Programs./wl.ih the'optior)-io renew for up lb five
(5) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2023. .48%
Federal Funds. 52% OtheV Funds (Governor's Gomrhission). /

Funds ere available In Ihe fpttpyvihg account for Siaie' Fiscal Year 2023. upon
the availability' and .doniinued appropriation of furids In (he .future, operatirTg budget, with, the
authority to edjust.budget tine items within the price lirhiialion and encumbrances, between state
(iscatyearsthroughlheBudgelpHice.iJ needed and justified. i

05-95-92-9205ifl-33e20000 HeALTH AND SOCIAL SERWCES, OEPT OF. HEALTH AND
HONtAN SVS. RHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, 'BUREAU OF DRUG 'AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMlSSiO.N FUNDS {100% Other Funds)

tv;

State

Fiscal Year

CJass.-/
Account.

Class Title Job Number- Tola! Amount

.2023 074-500589 yVe'ita.r.e Assistance 92058502 '$1,200:006.

Subtotal ■ >1.200,006'

OS-95-94-940010-246500b Health AND SOCiAL SERVICES, OEpT OF HEALTH AND
" HUMAN.SVS, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAWPSHLRE HpSPITAl., ARPA

DHHS FiSCALRECOVER FUNb.SO00% Federal Funds)

"T: State :

Fiscal?
'yiear

Class /. ■

Acc.buht
%ciass Title -Job Number

Current

Budgbt

2023 674-566589'
Welfare

rA.s.sisiance •'
,  OPFRF602PH9510A

$1,100,000

:( ,Subfo,f«/..
. i • - —

SI.IOOAOP-
i'r- ̂  y:

.V

t'-Jt • '•

'■>w.

Thf DtfMfUntiil of Hr«lth Qud llumon Srri^ta'Miuton it f0>0«rt fOflinritiJi'lio •wrfr«nn"li>l
in proiidiiig cpp^v/nVifi fof (iUitni 16 oVA/cif hivllh and ind<tK>id<n<t.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

I •

DocuSign Envelope ID: F2529697.-0985-42B5-9CF1-9259F39ABE73
k,

.OodiSJgn Envelope, ID: D368FCBA-AD4B^7(»-9eF$.AFe7lOC34B9B

■ OocuSiSA e«*e>ope ID; E4FM«A-'2E«M9aA-6T9M2«e7E4A9F2>

\:-y

Ma EKceflency.'Govwnof Chrlatophef T. Smx/nu
' end HomWe Counca
Page 2 of 3

Toun $2,300,00

•' explanation '

The'pufpose. Of this request is for-iha (^ovisioh ofja Faciiita'iing Organization JFO) to
V  develop end supportinfrasVuctufO end provide progfam support io Student Assistance Progrenns

(SAP) across the Slate. The FO Wiil ensure linandal. operational, technical assistance and
training 16.support S'APs including iBubcontfaclif^ wlh school districts or oiher organizations to

-'implement SAPs." .

The Depaftrhenl's goal is to create a statewide, gcographicaiiy diverse SAP network by
\  c "conlracling with an organization that can proyide technical assistance and best practice on hpw
' ..j .'to effectively deliver and expand SAP se.rvicesT This wniract is the first step towards this eventual

.  outcome.

The Contractor will contract with subawardees c/»sen through a competitive RFp process
•'faclliiaied b^ the Conlreclor and monitored closely by the Departrheni. The.Cbniractor wiirensure
'each subawardee will provide services.' in lideliiy ynth the Project SUCCESS model, to New

•  Hampshire youth In high need communiii'es with the goal of preventing and reducing underage
;" vj . erinking.high risk drinking.iand the use 61 non-medjcai prescription drugs. Indyding opl^ds arid

illicit drug.use'. ' .
.  ̂ Services provided by the subawardees will include: alcohol and other drug screenings;-

Individual wpport sessions; group support sessions; end rcferrais to drug and.alcohoMreatment
providers vrheh indicated by the screening. Additionally, each subawardee will provide sludenls

"and parents .vyilh targeted drug ar^ alcohol education Io improve understanding of risks
associated wiihlhe non-medical use of prescription drugs* underage alcohol arid other drug use,
,ahd the developmental milestones and brain development of adolescents. The Coniraclof vwll
incorporaie oommunity level media strategies to conduct outreach and marketing for the Student \
Assistance Programs.'lhus allowing the subawardees to focus on delivery of services.

Student Assistance Prograrns, sialew^e, will Work collaborativeiy wiih the Cbnlractor 6nd
the' Department lo improve the quality of'services delivered to students and to colleci.daia for ihe
purposes of data-driven decision making for school-based prevention programrhing. While hiew
Hampshire has made gains In reducing subsiarice misuse and Increasing the perception of risk;
'the SlBio's rate? ere still higher wheh.compared to national rates:,'especially es.ll relates to
'^rijuana end the use of dieclronicnicoline.devices.

The Departmeiii will monitor services by: '•*
-r-.- • Ensuring a rhiniiTium of 10 SA^. are open and providing SAP services Jy

September 1,'2022'

Ensuring 95®A of^SAPs/lully meet the fidelity of Project SUCCESS by Junf30.2023

ISti

Ensuring 80% of SAP counselors are'trained in Project SUCCESS by June -SQ.-
2023

Ensuring 95% of subawarded SAPf report being satisfied with the,quality Of supporl
pfbwded.bxjhe facilitating organization.

$



/  DocuSign Envelope ID; 36382948-90BA-4'209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

DocuSIgn Envelope ID": P2529697-09B5-42B5-9CFV9259F39A8E73
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r.g:,

y

JlVs

;v:-;

VtVi
Hi»eicctt«w:y.GdvemofChrisiophefT.Sunurw
end iho Honorable Cou/Ki)

Pego.JofS &•!

The Oepartment selecled Ihe Contractor through a competiiive bid process using a
RcQuBSt for Proposals,(RFP) that was posted on the D€parimer)i s website from hAarch 31, 2022
through May 6. 2022. The pepartmeni receiyed one (1) response thai was reviewed and scored
by Q team ot,guajUied individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Erfiibil A. Revisions to "StarWar*! 'Agreement Provisions. Section 1.
' SubsecHon 1.1., ol the attached agreernent. the parties .have the option to extend the agrecrneni
for up to five (5) additional years, conUhgent .upon satisfactory delivery of. services, availablefuriding, agree'meni of me parties, add Governor arxJ Councit approval. . •

ShouldJheGoverftor and Council not authorize this request, students may not receive trie
support and substance misuse prevention education needed during critical developmental years.
Lack of support services could result in higher prevalence fates of underage drinking, drug use.
misuse aryf abuse of >rescripiion medication, and an escalaiion In adverse childhood
experiences. v-iv

«v • •

Area served:'Siatcwide «*.■
Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number P.TBD. FAIN TBO
In the evcfit Ihal the Federal or Other Funds become rib longer available. General Funds

wll not be requested to support this program. .
Respectfully submitted.

•i?:*
Lori A. Shibinetie "

Commissioner
I

\v,:

■'A

V:

•'' -'iTv
il.v.- .

?•
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y.'i

'V-

. '6:.



Oc«uSlgn Envelope (D. 36382d4B'^BA-4209^29A-E2Ae3A8087E2

pocuSiffn Envelope ID; F3529697-09B8^2eS-9CFv92Ser3%AOE78 ! -

ObeiiS^ Envetepe lb:,O388lfC8ArAp4B-470»-9Sr^,B7.l,OC>«B9B

?•; T
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: F2529697-09B5-42B5-9CPV9259F39ABE73 .■

'*• DecuStgn Envelope 10: D388rCBA-AD4Br4708-98FS-AF97lDC34BM

Oo^Slon Envelope 10: E4FU99A.2EeM9BA-e7M^2487E4A9F23
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

. Subject: RFP-202^BDAS-02-fAat-OJ (FacUitetingOffaftuallon For Studcnl Aljijianct Pregrom)

Voiicc: Thij ogrccmenuhd all of iu auachmenjs ihall berome public upon submiision fo Governor arid ,
£.tecuiiye Council for approval. Any informaiton (hat is private, confidential or proprietary must

_bc cleaHy identiricd Vihe agency and agreed to in wiling prior to signing the contrKi.

'■1.1

;V; r:i agreement
The Stale of New Hampshire and the Coniracior hereby muiuAlly agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS "

J.t Stale Agency Namc'

New Hampshire Department of Health and Hum-an Services

1.2 State Agency Address < >

129 Pleasant Sireft
•poncord^H 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

JSI Research i: Training |nsiiiuie. Inc.

1,4 'Coniracior Address

501 SouTh Street
Bow, NH 03304

1.5 Coniracior Phone
Num^r

•  - m(60)J.573-3300- ■'-

1.4 A^couni Number

05.95-92-9205I0-
33820000 and 05-95:94-
940010-2445000

1.7 Completion Date

'6/30/20.23 -

1.8 Price'Liniitation \y''
TP.

52.306.000

J .9 .Coniraciing OfTjcer for Stele Agency

Robert \V. Moore, Oincipr '''

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631 ' " ;

;I.II ConiraciorSignaiufc 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor SiRnaiory v.
.  - n..

KBXherine Rob^ntrector

1.13 Stale Agency Signature • 1.14 Name and Title ofSiaie AgciKySignaip.ry
tv-

^  Katja S. FOX oifector^ "-"'iv-

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Oepanmeni oMdminisinition. Division of l^e'fvjnhei fir/ri/)^//crr6ff)

By: I* Oirecior. On; [A I'-

I.-16 Approval by ilicAnorncy Gcncrol (Form.^Subsiance and £.Nccuiion)//opp//co6/cj , ^
B,: 0.- . (4„: 'W"" "

1.17 .ApproN'ol by ihe Governor and Executive Council fifi/pp/icoWej. '
*' * ' r*.

»C4:C Item number: .v G&C Mceiirig baic:
,  - W

vj

JA;,
'i'
'£*-'

".T.

■i-i

,-.V^
w-

Page (.of4

.V V

h r.^ Contra'cior Initials.>

\r.-<
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PoeuSlgn envelope 10: D368FCaA.AD4B^708-98F5-AFe71DCJ489a
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I:,

i'-:

•r?

If

2. SERVICES'TO be performed. The Sieie of New
Hpmpshift. eclinj ihfowgh fhe-ogency ideniified in block I.I
C'Snie"). cngegcJ conireciof idcnified in block 1.3
("Comneibf'') to perforrii. end ihe ConifDclOf Ihell perrorrn, the
work Of »lc orgoodj; or both. idcniiHed and more panicularly
dejcribcd in'the aiiached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by feference.(':ServiccJ'')- • '

3. EFFECTIVE.DATt/COMPLETIONOFSERVICES.
3.1 Norwiihicanding any prpviiioh of ihij ̂ Agreemeni lo ihc
conirary. .^d lubjcct to the ap'proval of ihc Governor and
Executive CdufKil of ihe.Sofe of NewHampihirt. If ipplkablc.
ihii Agreement, end ell obligoiions of the parties hercundcr. shall
'become* effeetive on the date the Governor #«>d e.veeuiive
Council approve'this" Agreernem u Indicated in block I.J7,
•unless no such approval is requir«d,-inWhich cose the Agreemcni
'shall become effective on the dote the Agreentent Is sighed by
the Stale Agency ti jh6«tt in block l?l 3 ("Effective Date". ).
3.2 If ihV ConiractOT coninicriccs iheVScrvices prior to the
^EfTcciive Date, all Services performed by. the Cootrocior prior to
■'the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk'of the
Coniractor. and in the event that ihis.Agrecmeni docs not becontc
effective, the State shall have no Habiliiy lo the Contractor,
including • without limitation, any obligation to .pay the •

•Coniractor for any costs Incurred ,pr Services pe.rformcd.
'Confracldf must complete all SerN-ices by the Completion Date

• specified in block 1.7. ^

4. CONOiTIONAL NATURE OF ACREEhlENT.
Noiv^ihsianding. any provision fof this Agreement to the
cbnirsry, all obilgaiions of the State hereunder, including,
williout limiiation. tlx continuance of payntcnis hcixundcr. ore
coniiilgent upon i^'ovaijabilityahd continued appropriation of
funds alTcctcd'by .any .state or federal'legisiaiive or executive

'aciidfi ;ihai' reduces'/ eliminates or okherwise ntod.ifics ibe
' appropriation or ovaijabilit)'of f""'<'i"8 for this Agreement and

the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B. In .whole or in
•pan.- In no event'shall the .State ,be .liable for any payments
. hereunder in excess ofsoch available fippropriated funds. In the
'event of a reduction or Ycrminaiion of appropriated funds; the
State shall hive the right to withhold payment until such funds

"bccomc-availablc. if evtr..>h<J shall have the right to*reduce dr-
terminate the Services under ihii.Agrecmcnt immediately ijpon
giUrtg ihe'tConinjctor rtoiice o^such reducUM or lerminoiion.
The State shall not be 'Cguircd to transfer funds frotn any other
accounl'dr source ro the Account identified-in .block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account arc reduced or. uiiavailable.

3. ••

5. CONtRACrr PRICEfFRICe UX»ITATI0N/
PAVMENT. . '■ J, _
5:1 The contract peice, method of payment, and icmi of payment
arc identified and mofe'parikularly dcscrlbed In.EXHIBIT C
which is itkbrporaicd herein by refcrtnce.
5.2'Thc payment by thc Siaie of the contract price shall be the

' ojily and'the coittplcic reimbursciitent to Ihc-Cohiracior formal)
„e.xpenie$,*dt«"hatcver nature incurred by the C^mroctor in'j^he
perforrnahce'hereof, antl shall Jbe,;.ihe only 'a.h^ the complete

compensation lo the Comractor for the Services, the State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the eontpici price.
5.) The State reserves the right to ofTsei from Ofiy-^arHounis
oihcrxrisc payable to the Coniraclor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N;H. RSA SO:?
through RSA SO:?-c or any other provision of law.
5:4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, arid notwiihttanding ufte.tpecicd circutntiances, in no
event shall the 'ioiol of all payments a.uthoVized.'or actuaily made
hercundcr. e.tcccd the Price Liriiiletion set forth in block 1.8.

6. CO.MPUANCE BV contractor WITH LAWS
and reculations/ equal employment •
OPPORTU.NITV.'
6.1 in connecilon with Ihc perforrnanee oTIhc Services, the
Coniroctbr shall comply with all applicable statutes, ;I&nvs,
regulations, and orders of fcden»r.state, county or. municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty .-upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited (0, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity taws. In addition, if this 'Agreeme'ni is
funded in any pan by monies of the United States^ (he Coniractor
shall comply uith all federal c.xecutive orders. rulM. regulations
and statutes, and uiih nri.v.rules, regulaiio'ns and guidelines as the
State "or the United Staict issue tt) implement these rcgoioiions.
The Contractor shall also comply wiih .all applicable inielleciual
property laws.
6;2 During the lerin of fhis Agreemeru. ihe Conirocior shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants "for emplo)'ment
because of race, color.-,religion, crccd, age.'sex. handicap, sexual
orieniaiion. Of national origin ond.wll take afTirmaiivc qciion to
pre^tnl such-discrimiiiaiion.-
6.3. The Coniractor agrees to pcnnii the State or United Stiies
access loony otihc Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the putpose of ascertaining compliance .with all rules, regulations
and orders.:ind the covenants, terms tmd co.ndiiions of this
Agreement.

7. PE.RSONiNEL.
7.1 The Cdniiacior shall ei'its own expense p^vide oil personnel
necessary lo perform ihe.Strvices.tThe Coiil'rccior warrariis.t^i
ail personnel engaged in the Services shajl qualified to

V perform the Services, end shall be properly.-liccnied and
^otherwise ouihoriied to do so under all applicable Uws.
,7.2 Unless otherwise authorised in .writing; dijring the terifi of
this Agreement, and for a.period of'six (6).fi»bmhs Bficr the
Conipleiion DaYc Injalock 1.7, the ConlrBCior-shsIl r\oi hire, antJ
shall not pcrtuit any lubeonirncior or'other person, fi rrii or
corporation'with^whom it is eng.nged ift.O wjnbii^ effon to
"perform ihe Serx'icei to hire] any person who is o State cntployce
or officiil,'wlio is miierially involved in tl»c ^procureniejtt,
-administration or performance o'f this AgreerMnlr This
provision shall sur%*iv"c terminationbf.ih.is Agreement.
7.3 The Conimcting Officc'r specified in block 1.9. or his 0» her
tticccssor, shall be the Stale's representative. In'ihe eveni.bfany
dispute concerning the ii)(erprcialion of; this Agrcenieni, the
'Cofttraeii.ng Officer's de.cision'shall be fi nal forj.he Stoic.

r.r--.
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S-CVENTOFDEFAUtt/REMEpiW.
8.1 Any ont or more of Ihe follomng ecu or cmijiions of ihc'

^ Coniricior.jhell conjiiiuie in evem or defiulihereiiiMJcr ("Evcni
orOefduli"): .
IJ.l failure "lo pcrromi ihe Servicci Miiifaciorily Of on

■ schedule;

8.1.2 failure lo submii any rcpon required hereunder; and/or f-
■ 8.1.3 failure lo ̂ rform iny other covenmi. term or condition of
- this Agreement.
'8 2 Upon the occurrence of my £^<01 of Oefouli. the State may
like my one. or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 8«vtthcContraciOfawrincnnoiiceipccifying '•

= D*fau1i and requiring ii to be remedied wiiKln. in the absence gf
agrea'ieror lesser specification'oftifne. ihirty'(30) days from ihc
dale ofjhc notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreemefti. effective iwp (2) days after giving the
Contracibr notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a iwlnen notice specifying the Event of
Default and stispending all payments to be made under this
rAgfcemenfond orderiiig that the portion of the contrici price
. "tx-hich would othenvije accrve lo. the Contractor durittg the

■  period frorn the date of such notice until such tinx as ihe State
determines that the Coniracior has curcd.ihe Event of Dtfnuli
shall never be ̂ id to the Coniracior.
I8.2.3.givc the Cohtnicio.r a wriiicn notice specifying the Event of
I Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
0"* lo the Cowrtcior.aoy damages the State suffers by rea^n of
any Event of Default; and/or
8;2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of

.Default, 'treat 'the Agreement-as breached, terminate tlx
'Agreement and pursue any of its rentcdics ai law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to ehfpree .my provisions hereof after
.'my Event of Defiuii shall be dccnxd a waiver b.f its righis vyiih

-  regard, to that Event of Default. or-,any lubsequehi Event of
I  Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall

be deemed a waiver of ihe'right of (he, State to enf^e each and
'oil of the provisions hereof upon any funhtr or oiher Eveni of
• Pcfauli bnihe part of ihc^ntractor.

j.tefthnNATlON.
9.1 'Npitviihsinriding panigroph 8. the State ntoy. ai its sole
discreiionj^iermin8le''ihc Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by i.hiny (30) jtays mluen no}ic«_io the Contractor ihii
the Stale is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 "in the event of on early ierminotion of this Agrccnxhl for
any rcosbh "Other than .the ̂ compjeiion ,'o/ the Ser\'ices. ,ihe

'  Contractor.shall, at State's jdiscreiion. .deliver to 'the
Conir8Ctingbf^ec^ not later than fifteen (1 $)day^'aftcr'(he date
of icfTninaiipn. ei repon ('Tetminaiion •Report") describing in
dciaft all Services p.c^fprmed, andlhclonlraci pHce eanxd^up
ond including'lhe daie^oflcrminfllion; The form. $ubjeci maner.
conieiii, and number ofiebpies of the terrhinaiion Rcpon shpll
be'idcnticario those of arty Final Report described i"ihc yiachcd
EXHIBIT 8.. In a(ldii,ion,-.n_i the'Staie's discretion, the'Contractor
shin, wiihiri 13 ̂ys.bf.noiice of early termination, develop .and
.. . .. . ... .

submit to (he State a Transition Plan for services uhder the
Agreement.

to. DATA/ACCESS/tO.>TlDENTULITV/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "duio" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or'acquircd or developed by reason of, this

• Agreenxnt. including, but not'limited to.bll siudies.Vepons;.
filet, formulae, surveys, ntapj. charts, sound rccO'dings.wideo
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic '*
representations, computer programs. compuier printouts, notes,
'letters, memoranda, papctS, ond documents, all whether
finishcdpr unfinished.
10.2 All'daw ond any property which has been received from
the State or purchase tyiih funds provided for thai purpose
under this Agreentem. shall be the prbperp- of the State, and
yhall be returned to the State upon demand or upon lemiination
of this Agrccmcni for any reason. . '
10-3 Confideniiality of data shall be governed by N.H.RSA
chapter 91,-.A or other existing lavv. Disclosure of data requires
prior wTiiien approval of the State. ^v,'

1 I.-CONTRACTOR S relation to the STATL 'in the
pcrformarice of this .Agreement the Contractor ii'in all respects
ail independent contractor, and is neither an agent, jtor an

' 'employee of tlx State. Neither the ConlVacior rior.'any of'iji
officers, cntpioyccs, agents or members shall have quihority jo
.bind (he State or receive any benefits, wot^tcrs' compensation or
other emoluments provided by ihc'Staie-io its crnploy.ecs.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONJRACTS.
12.1 Thc,.Cont'ractor shall not assign, or oihcnvise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wTittcn notice, w*hieh
shbll.be provided to (he State at leastififte'cn (IS) days prior'to
the asiignrneni, artd a wTinco eohserti of the..Siate. For pcrpdsts

. of Mhis paragraph. a_ Change of Control shall consittule
assignment. "Change .of Conlfbl" meoris (a) nxrgcr,
ebr>solid3iion..or a transaction or scrks.bf related transactions in
.which a third part)*, together wiih iij affilialcs, becontes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (5()%) or rnore of the
voting'shares or similar equity interests. or:combined «voiirtg
poxvc'r of the Coniractqr. or (b) the sole of all or substoniially oil
of the asxis pf^ihe. (Contractor.'
12.2 .None of the Scrv-icei shall be subcbhtrected by .the
Contractor'wilhout prior,.\vriiien notice ottd consent of the" Stale.-
The State is ciiliilcd to copiei of all tubcpniraeis'and assighmeiii
agreements and shall rvot'be bound by any provisions contain^
in a subcontract or on assignment agreemeni (o-w'hich it is'nbl a.

•  party-
rV -

\

j13, indemnification.'.Unless6iherwise.cxerr>pied by low,
the Cohirociof sha.n'indeninify and hold Karrrilcss the Sioje, its
officers, anti employees, from ond .against ony and all claims,
iiabilitics and costs'for any personal injury or properly damagei,
patent orcopyright tftfringemem, or o'thcr claims biserted egoinii
the Sta'tc, its qlticersbr cniplpj;C.C5, which arise out of (or xyhicjt
may be claimed to orise .out of) .the acts or omiw^Wfv^

^pf< I
-Gonlrbcior Iriiliels'-^ v'

iv'.
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Coninctor, Of jubconiroctor». ifKludihj boi nol limited lo ̂ ^c
'nt£ligence. reeklejj of inttniionel conduct. The Stan ihall not
"be liable for any costs incurred by the Conirociw arising under
this peregroph'l i. Notvvithsianding the foregoing, noihing hcrem
.contained shallbedeemMtocohsiiiuie au-aiverofthe sovereign
. immunity of the State, which imntgnity it hereby.feKr\'rt to the
.^SlBic! This covtnini "in ptragraf^ 13 shall survive the
termination of this AgrtenKnt . el

14. mSURANGE. ^ . •
■|4.1 The Contmclor shall, ni in sole^expensc. obum and
continuously maintain in .force, -and Shall require an)
subcontractor or'Miigncc'to obtain end maintain in force, the
.rollovknng insurance: ^ /
14.1.1 commercial general liability iniijrertce against all cja'mi
of bodily injury, dcath or properry damage, in amounij'of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence ahd.SZ.OOO.OOO aggregate
or excess: and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to iubparagraph 10.2 herein, in on amount,ooi less than
S0% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The polkici described in subparagraph 14.1.hcrem shall be

,qn ^licy fomis and,endorsement's approved for use in the Si.me
of New Hampshire by ihe N.'H. Depannieni of Insurincc. and
issued by insurers licensed In the State of New Hampshire.

;'i4.3 The Coniraeior .shall fumish to the Cdmracting Officer
ideniified in block l.O, Or his or her successor, a ccnificai^i) of
Insurance for alf iinsuroncc ,required "under this Agrecmcni.

• ConlfBctor shall also furnish to the ContriciingOfftccr identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor. ccrtifiCBie(s) of insurwKC
for all rcMCwal(s) of insurance required under this Agrcerheni i>o.

"later ihan.ten (iO) days prior to the expiration date of cdch
insurance policy. "The Vcniftcajcf'sy of 'Insurance and any

•. .rcnc«-als (hereof shall be aitacW and a>e incoii^ratcd herein by
reference.

y.':.,
i:7.

'x.st.v

I*';' •

IS. WORKeRS*COMPENSATION.^ .
IS.l By siting ihii-agrecrncni, the Comfecior agrees,'certiries
and wirranis that the Contractor is in'tbiiipliancc with or e.tcmpt,
.from, the requircnKnis.of N.H. RSA chapicr'281 -^A ( Workefs_
Coniptnsotien").
'I i'.l To;ihe extent the Contractor is subject to the rcqwiicmcnts
of N.H. RSA .chapter 2SI'A.. Cqmrnctorjhall maimoin. and.
require any su'bconiractof or assignee io secure and moirilpin,
.pD>tTKni. of .Workers'" Compensation in"conneciiqn «Sih
aciiviiici which'ihe person proposes to undertake pursuant to this

•-Agrccmeiii. Thc'Coniraeiorihatl furnish the Conlraeiing Officer
identified inblocic l,9.or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner dc'scribed in'N-H. RSA chapter
281-.A end any applicable reflewal(s) thereof,-which .shall be
attached arid are incorporated Kerem by reference. The State
Shall ndi' be responsible .'for paymeru of any AVorkcn*
Compensation premiums.or for any cthe/ claim w benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee' of Contractor,
vi4ilch'mighi 'a'fise under applicable State, pf New.Hampshire
Workers" Compensation laws..'in connection with the
performance of the Services .under this Ag'ccme'hl.

Poge

16. NOTICE: Any'^tice by a party hereto to the other party t
shall be deemed to have been dulydelivere'd or given at ihc.tlme
of mailing by certified mail.postage prepaid, in'a Uriitcd States
Post Office addressed to the" parties at fhe addresses given in
blocks I..2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AM tNOM ENT. Thii Agrcemeni may be ved
or. discharged only by an instrument in \rriiing signed by the
parties hereto^ and o.niy after approval of such amendment,
vi-aiver or discharge.by the Co.vernor and Executive,Council of
ihe State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
uftder the cireumsiBnccs pursuant to State law. rulc or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agrecmeni shall
be gbvemcdl inicrprctcd and construed In aceofdartce with the
latvs of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon "and
inures to the benefit of iIk parties and (licir ■respective $"uceetSOrs
and assigns. The u-ording used itt this Agreement is the wording"
chosen by the parties to e.spress their rtiutual intent^ and no rule
of construction shall be applied against'or in favor of any pany.
Any actions arising oui of this Agreement shall be brought and.
maintained!ih New Haritpshire Super'iqriCourt w1J.leh|^hall have
e.velusive jurisdiction thereof. ;;

19. CONFLICTjiNG TERMS. In the event of a conriki
between the lenn's of.tliis P«3? form fas niodified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or otinchmcriis and amendment thcrcofi ihc icrms of the
P»37 (as niodified in EXHIBIT A) shall.control. v

20. THIRO PARTIES. The panics hereto do not iriicnd w
benefit ariy third panics, arid this 'Agrceriiciti shali.^ noi be
construed to.confer any such bcnefit.

21. HEADINGS. The Headmgnliroughoui the.Agreement are
for, refcrence'pufposes only, and the wxirds corvtaincd therein .
shall in no wTty be held to explain. nXKJifj*. brnplify or aid .in the
imerpreiaiion, coosifuctiori or meaning of the provisions of this

•Agree'meni. •

22. SPECIAL PROVlSiONS. Additional or modifjing
" provisions set forth'tri the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.. ' '■'

'  I*? '

23. SEVERA_fii.LlTV. In the event an) Pf.the provisions of this
Agreement, are heW by a court of competeni'jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal Inw.-ihe remaining prbvl.sion$ of
this Agreement \«ij rernaln in fullforcepr^effect

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreenicni. which may be
.  executed in a number or,coiinicrpari5,.'cDcK of which' shall be

deemed "an o.rigif>a|, constiiutci the jeritire^ agrec^rncni tirkf
understanding.bciween the panics, and.iupersedes bll .pridr"
agreerhems and understandings with respect io!ihc subject matter!.
hereof.

s-:
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New Hampshire Department ofiHealth and Human Services
Facilitating Organization For Student Assistance Program

EXHIBIT A

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Oelegation/Subcontracls. is amended by adding
siibparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as (h'e
Contractor and .the Contractor is responsible to ensure subporitractof
compliance with those conditions. The Coritractbr shall have wrirteri"
agreements with all subcontractdrs. specifying the work to be performed,

■4' and if.applicable, a Business Associate. Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Porlabilily andj Accountability Act! Written

y  .. . agreements shall specify how corrective actidn shall be nianaged. The
'  Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's perfo/mance on an ongoing

basis arid take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor, shall
annually provide the State with'a list of airsubconlractors provided Tor
under this Agreement and notify the, State of any inadequate

j.^. . subcoritractor performance.

i't--

f'C

•' Revisions to Standard Aqreoment.Provlsions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions f
1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services.' is amepded by adding

subparagraph 3.3 as follows:
3.3. The parlies rnay extend the Agreement (or up five (5) additional years

frorp the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available .funding, agreement of.the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

ftFP.202>60AS^2FAC<l.-0l V' CoAlr»clo» Iffiiab - .'.v
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EXHIBIT B

•5/,.

Scope of Services'

1. Statemenfdf.Work

1.1. Utilizing its C

1.2.

1.3.-

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

enter of Excellence on Addiction, the Contractor shall act as a
Facilitating brganization .(FO.to develop and support infrastructure .and
provide program support to Sludertl Assistance f'rograms (SAP) across the
Stale. The FO. shall provide financial, operational, technical assistance and
training'to suppprt'SAPs. Including subconlracling with sch^pol districts or other
organizations to implement SAPs.

The Contractor^shal! ensure services'are available statewide.-

For'the purposes of .this Agreement, all references'to days shall mean buslriess
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

The Conlraclor shall distribute funding in accordance with all applicable slate
•and federal laws an'd regulaiions.vla a corTlpetiHve bidding pr^ess.. The
Contra.ctpr, in collaboration with the Department, will develop and conduct the-
compeiitive bid process including a funding rubric for school districts and other
organizations to" apply lb jmplernenl SAPs based on the Project SUCCESS
model in identified. NH middle and high schools including:

1.4.1. .Universal or School Wide Preventiori Slralegies;

P/evention Curriculum Based Education in a minimum of two (2)
grade leyelS'(e.g.: seventh grade and ninth grade); s

Using iHe; Glotjal Appraisal of Individual Needs-Sho'rt'Screener
(GAIN-SS) to, screen students for behavioral health Issues.who are
referred lo the p'rografh;

. . .

1:4.4. >Using the screening results to assign'students to individual or group
couriseling sessions;

Providing parent education and consullaiion ph substance .misuse*
and mental health issues relative to. adolescents; and -

i'.4:6. . Providing cbrisultation to school staff and administration as heeded.

The'Cbntractor shall ensure the Department approves grant applicalions and
agreements priorjo awa.rd"!

SAp Request for Applications Requirements

1.6'.1. The Gbnlractpr shall enter mto siibaward agreements with a minimum
i.-: of l 6,(iehj school distHcls. wilhin 60,(sixly)'days of the effective date

bf the Agreemenljo suppbrt.lhe provision of quality SAP within. NH-

1.4.2.

-1.4."3.

The'Conlracior shall:

1.6.1.1.
■:'.W

RFP-202J:8[»ASW-FACfl<»

JSi^Rcjearch 6 Inc. •

Develop a. SAP Request for Applications (RFA).t.hai includes,
but is not limited to: - ^ot

., Com/»clor.l^tijl».

.P&Se'l pi 14 Dele
7/l3/202>''
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Se^ices
Facilitatins Organization for Student Assislance Program

^  ' EXHIBITS

Region RFA applicant shall serve.

'  ' iV- s- V6.1.1.2. . Target population.
.  ̂ ■ 1.6.1.1.1 Number of student'l

T6.1.1..,4. Name of school district.
1.6".1.1.5. Number of middle schools^where SAP shall be

;i., implemented.

1.8.1.1.'6. Number of high schools where SAP shall be-
.i' irnpiemenied.

1.6.1.1.7. Oemonstralion of need for SAP in appiicanl's
-  ./ dislricl supported by relevant local daja.

'  .. 1.6.1.'1.8. Goals of SAP irnplemeniation.-

*"' . 1.6.1.1- Develop SAP Program Impremehlatioh Readiness
iji: " ■ ' ■ " Assessment. The Contractor shall.revievy applicants*;

i .6.il.2.1. * Experience working with the target pppulation;
1.6.1.2.2. School districts" current approach for substance

use prevention and rnehlal wellness;

liH.2.3. Capacify to implement-the SAP program With
fidelity.to Project SUCCEiSS; ,

/(-

4t

•M,

.  1.6.1.2.4. Commitment to completing the detiverabies;
1  S"?

'1.6.1.2.5. Relationships with: ;

V6..1.2.5.1. tommunity-based orgariizations (CBOs);

■1.6.1.2.5.2. The Substance Misuse Prevention Coordinator ih^.the
local Regional Puialic Health Nehvork;

1.6.1.2.5.3. Local" coalitions; and
1.6.1.-2.5.4.- .Qiher prevenlion-.and menlat health orgarilzalioos.
16 13 Ensure commitment to a sustainabitily'team of the applicants

applying to.J[he SAP RFA. Applicants' sustainability team
shall: ' ' -
16.1.3.1. Include, al minimum:

• ■ ■ - iij

i.e.l.S.I.I. One administrator. f
1.6.1.^71.2. One parent.
1.6.1.^.1.3. One teacher or guidance cguns.eior. ' ^ .-is
1.6.1.1;1.4. Repfesehiative' from the regipnal' Social .Model '• "Program (SMP).'or local co3lition.,or,Alc6hpl,Tobaccb'

m

-M

■ ■■ - ■ :riv>iran<v Inllllh

RFP.a»J.B0ASO2-FACIV-pt. . T/.im022
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'•V;. .t'V

.'u-

and Ojher OrVgs service providing orgarjizalion
-  (ATOD).:

1.6.1.3.1.5. SAP Counselor.

1.'6.1.4. Be required'to meet quarterly with SAP progVams to: .. '
1.6.1.4.1..,. Rcyiewdata. v

1.6.1:4.2. Make suggestions (pr quality improvement.

1.6.1.4.2.1. Develop a sustainability plan that considers:

1.6.1.4.2.1.1. OVganizational capacity.

i.6!l.4.2.i.2..Environmental supports.

1.6.1..4.2..V3. Poirtical suppprtsand partnerships'.
1.6.1.4.2.1i4. Communications and public relations..

1.6.1.4.2.1.5. Program evaluations.

1.6.1.4!2.1.6.pundirig.'

■l.6.1;4.2.1.7.Securing of future funding. ... ■'

1.6.1.4.2.2. Ensure the SAP is reporting on adherence to.
soslainabilily plan. "■ "*■

i;6.1.5. Request and ensure a signed letter of commitment, is
received frorfl school district superintendent, that includes,
but is not'limited to:

1.6.1.5.1. Commiiment supporting SAP implementation,

1.6.J,5.2.

1."6.1.5,3.

1.6.1.5.4;
'i':

A communication plan' to h'a'ndle issues of
concern or grievances. .-a

;1:;6.-1.5.5. .Assurance .that SAP Counseiof(s) will haye_
'access to:

1.6.1.5'.5.i.

1.6.1.5:5.2.
vV f

1V6.1.5:5:3;

• FfFP:202>86A«YFACil-Oi'
jsi ReMtfCh A TrtlA^Wlliu^t. Uic.

A private'physical space within the'school .to conduct
screenings wjth individuals or-groups.
Laptops.

Desks.

"•t.: Page 3 oil J -tf Date
7./13/2022

'■1.

i'

with fidelity including an outjjne of the core
components of SAP.
Commitrnent supporting SAP implemenialion .
with fidelity .from' the lOrganizatipn leading the
SAP iniplementatibn; ~ '
Designated direct report-staff merribers within
the school dlslrici. v
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;l.r

rr;r-

M"!

t?-

iv:

1.6.1.5.5.4. Chairs.

1.6.1.5.5.5', Telephones.

1.6.1.5.5.6. Seating.

1.6.1.5.6. Student data such as class schedule ̂ and
guardian contact information. 4-

AcKnowledgement that suslainability must be^a1:6.1.5.7.

1.6.1.5.8.,

consideration in eve'ry step to the process.

Commitment to, aljowing for participation In the
SAP Community of Practice and other

'  professional develbprnent progr^ams. • ^

1.6.1.5.9. Request a detailed budget that includes;

1.6.1.5.9.1. Percehlofcash of in-kind match that the school district
>vill provide; ^

1.6:1.5.9.2. An explanation of what funding sources and resoyfces
make up'the in-kind match, if applicable; .

1.6.1.5.10. A proposed.slaffing plan, (hat Includes:

1.6.1.5.1,0.1. The number of hours a week and year dedicated to the .
Student Assistance Program in each proposed middle
or high school; . ..

1:6.1.5.10.2. Perceritage of hourly-rates to be .covered by the
rjj funding request;

1.6.1.6.10.3. The ̂ Student Assistance. Counselof.-ed.uc^liori ■ and
, "experience; and

1.6.1.5.10.4. • S.chool staff members that will be part of the SAP-Team
Iri addition lo the Counselor.

•  'I.6.2.;- The*: Contractor-. sha[i: ensure the appfication is .distributed^ apd
availablestatewide.

1.6.3. the Contractor shall, .in collaboration with the Department,, develop
.  and implement a i^scori.ng rubric.lo„assess SAP applicants';

1.6.4. The Contractor shall; in collaboration'with the Departr^ent, develops a
(earn to assess and review the SAPiappIicants. The Conlracltor shall; ,

'1:6.4.1. Ensure that the scoring team is comprised with no sitting staff.
members of SAP programs iri effect.- ^

■* ' ' *
1.6.5. the Contractor shaljprovide a copy of each executed SAP subaward

to.the Department wHhln five (5) business days oj.the effective date
.-j; of the subaward agreement.

■  ■■ ^ ^

RFF.202>:BOAS4>2.'FAC!L.Or ..Coruradodnlilils
7/13/2022
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EXHIBIT B
■ ■L

■X-

1.6.6. The Contractor shall modify current subwards as required or enter
into new subawards for new that are located in underserved
geographic regions, as approved by the Departrneni.

1.6.7. The Contractor shall ^comply with applicable federal and state
-regulations and laws, including but not limiled to. i^SA'21jG and 2

.►ijfj', CFR 200. ' ' •!
1.7. Responsibilities Of Facilitating Organization in Subawardee Oversight ^

1.7.1. The Contractor shall adhere to standards proyided.by the Department
to enisurc su^award agreements are managed at an acceptable level,

.y . including but npf limiled to frequency and content of programmatic
•  and financial reviews either on-site or remole.ly... v r*— • . • j..

'  1.7.2. The Cohlractpr shall collaborate with the Department's ^evaluation •
provider.to develop and implement an evaluation plan,(or SAPs and
ensure its selected methodologyjs adhered to by subawardcd SAPs.

1.7.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the D'epanmen'l on a quality
assiu'rance "and Improvement plan of SAPs.

-  •

1.7;4'. The Contractor shall provide logistical and other support, as directed • '•
by the .Department, tOifacilitate a Cornmunily of Practice-that allows

^  :■ SAP staff to establish and strtnglhen cooperation; colja^ratlon and
Informal mentoring among SAPs'. TheContractor shall:

1.7.4.1. Organize regular ongoing meetings of the SA? Community.
,  of Practice; j S-

•1.7.4'2. Ensure meetings are advertised to'all SAPs and are
^  accessible;'

1.-7.4.3. Increase besl practice knowiedge rel.ativ.e to'.effective SAP
i.i- services with Fidelity to the Project SUCCESS model; i;;.

1.7.4.4. Develop and share culturally corfipeterit SAP strategies antf'
• materials;- ' .

' V'7.4.5. Foster and grow Implementation [of sustainability strategies;
1;;7.4,6. Build collegiality and informal mentoring among" those

deliveringLSAP services; and.
i-l.7.4.7. Support a netwoffc of SAP professipnals throffghout New

::: Hampshlrei

T;7.5'. The Coniraclor shall provide Technical Assistance and Training
(TA/T) and ensure SAP staff adhere (o all applicable laws, including

-3 but^'hbt limited to-the Family Educational Righ'ts and .Privacy Act.
(FERPA).the Health Insurance .Portability and 'Accountability Act
(HjF^pA). and 42 CFR Part.2. and establish conndenlialily protopols

j:

/vC'

RFP-aMJ-BOAS^S-FACn.^!
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■  EXHIBJTB V.
f.fr- : ^ 1

>' for students, school staff, administrators, and parents.

i''FJ

1.7.6. The Contractor shall provide Jlralnjng and technical assistance to each
subawarded SAP to ensure that all SAPs meel .all requirements set

;J" •{ forth In this agreemenl, including but not limited to:.

v-V . Ensuring fidelity to the Project SUCCESS model,

1.7.6.2. Professional development.

1-7..6'-3. Confidentiality, privacy Jaws and regulations.

1.7.6:4. Mentoring and coaching.
I

•i:- . v«'.^ 1.7.6.5. Capacity development consulting. ' "j ..v

is 1.7.6.6. ' Administrative support functions..as needed. i-h

1.7.6.7.. Dala collection and evaluation. "*■

1.7.6.8. Quality improvjemenl.
1.7.7. The Contractor shall provide TA/t to SAP counselors In the Project

[i SUCCESS model and Ihe administration oftheGAIN-SS with support
:i; from the Department's Training and Technical Assistance providers.

~  "1.7.8. The Cdnlractor shall provide TA/T-to SAP to jdenilty services that may
be bidable (0 Mediceid, Medicardi.or private insurance:

1.7.9. The Contractor shall provide TA/T to school Supenntendents and
.  buildirig .adrhinistratofs on the internal organizaljonal structure

rv needed to support SAP staff. The Conlractor'shall ensure staff are
S-V: jnlegraled within the school system and have access.toj

'  1.7.9.1. A* designated direcl .report staff member within tiie ~
'ho 'j-. subawarded school district or orgariizalion;' ^

1.7.9:2. A private physical space within the .school to. conduct
screening, individual and group sessions; '■

i.7.9/3. At a rhininhum.^ laptops. -desks, .ctiairs, telephones; -ahd^.
^  seating .equipment .for students and parents; and,

1.7.9.4.. A cprnmunication plan to handle issues, of cgncern or . *'
grievances. * -v': ''

Thp'Jonlracior shall provide TA to SAP suljawardeps who have staff "
with requirements of supervision to meej lice.hsure on howtp access
such .supervision. .

1 r;7:11 • Jhe Conlracto; shall have ai a minimum one (1) staff member located
-:7 . In New Hampshire, to provide iMpefson TA/T'pf corisulialior)-at-a

nnfnlmum, of one ('1) work day a mo.nth or more .f.re.quenlly as needed.
1:7.12.. The Contractor shall wprk with each SAP to ensure seivi^r  - . • I /

■RFP.202J.BOAS.02-FACIL-01 Conuaciof (rtUah.
.  • 7/13/2022

■■Z JSlR«carehftTi»W-*gt«jau'.e.lfl<. Page 6 0.1.14 OHe-
*  s ' •.y. Cy

"rU-:.

01*
re



DocuSign Envelope ID; 36382948-90BA-4209-B29A-E2A63A8D87E2

DocuSign Envelope ID;'F2529697^BM2B5-9CF1-9259F39ABe73

pOCUSjgn Envelope lO: pMBFC8A.AO4B^r08-fl9FSAFfl7lOC34B.9B
DocuS^n Envelope 10: e4FM99A.2e89-«S4A:87»^24«7E«A9F23

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization for Student Assistance Program

EXHIBIT B ^

!;--v

Ih

available and can be sustained,beyond availability of Department
funding.

1.7.13. The Coniracidr shall collect the required data frorn the S'AP
counselors and and. enter the data in the Department approved

.  database on a monthly basis. Jhe Contractor shall:

i.7.13.1. Provide the Department with aggregate monthly sumrhary
prograim reports.'The required data will include but Is hot
limitedto;

1.7.ill.1. Demographics of individuals served by strategy: .

17.13.1.1.1. Gender;

IJ.'lll.i.iz. Age; -
j.7.lll.V3. Race;

1.7.13.1.1:4! Ethnicity; and

■1.7.13.1.1.5. Individual or Farhijy Military Status;
1.7.13:1 .-1.6. Dosage and frequency of individual participation in

individual and group sessions; ,

■ 1.7.13.1.1.7. Aggregate GAIN-SS screening results-
'1.7.13:1.1.8. tslumber.and type pf referral to inlernai or external

behavioral health resources.or programs; and
■  ■ '*.1

1.7.13.i.i.9., Number and type of uniyersa) ecliyilies. parent
ediicallon and consultation- and school staff and
adminlslralion.

17.14. The Contractor shall provide program,management and oversight of
the SAf*s as well as implement a quality Jmproverhent process

iS • developed in collaboralicn wilh Ihe Oepartrhenl. ^
I,.?'. 1,5'., The Con.lractor shall proylde a Contlhuity of dpera'tions Plan (COOP) '

to ensure the essentjal functions of the program continue in.the event
of adisruption.of'nprmal.operations.The COOP must be submitted to.

'  anct approved by the Department,within 30 days of the :Agreement'^
effective date.

17.16., BackgroundOhecks and Attestations
1.7.16.1. the' Contjactgrshall require the sub-awardees. conduct:

cfirhinal background checks^ at its own'.expepse. and hoV
,. 'uliiize any staff, ' Including subcdritraclors. to. fulfill the,
'  bbligaliqns of the.Cpntraci who have been convicted of any

f.^ 'Prime-'of dishphesiy. iricludrng but/npl'lirniied to criminal
fraud.-.or'oihewlse.cpnvi'cted of any felony ormisde/ineanor

RFp:2b23-BDAS02-FACIL<t

jSI Rosea/ch'S Tfiinlng imttiuio. Inc;
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v-t'

o'ffense lor which incarceration for., up. to 1 year is an
authorized, penalty. The Contractor 'shall. prornoW and

iV maintain an awareness of the importance of securmg the
State!s Information anHong the Contractor's employees and
,agents. :i

•  * V- .
1.7,16.2. The Contractor agrees it wlil require suO-awardees iriitiate a

criminal background check re* investigation of all workforce-
assigried to this,Agreement, every "five years. The five-year

-  .. i' period will be based on the. date of the last, Crlminai
Background Check conducled by the Contractor or its Ageril.

'• ^ i.7'16.3. .The Contractor must ensure any staff and/or volunteers
^  involved in delivering services sign an attestation agreeing to

access, view; store, and discuss Confidential Data in
accordance with federal and state laws and regulations and . -

1.; ■ the Department's Exhibit K.'TiieConiractormust.ensure said
>: individuals have ,a justifiable business need to access

confidential data. The Contractor must'provide attestations s:
upon Deparimenl request. »

1.7.16.4;. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Depar^enl to
conduct a Privacy Impact Assessment (f'lA) of Its .system if' ■
Personally Identifiable' Information (PH) is cpllec'led/ iused,

(.3; '• accessed,- shared, or stored!' To conduct the* PIA the
Xonlrpcior must -provide the D'eparimenl access to

.  applicable 5ys;tems a.nd documentation sufficient to allow the

Department to assess, at minlrnufTi, the follovyjog:. 'i-

1.7.16.4.1 How Pll is gathered and stored;

^  1.7.'16.4.2. Who will have access to Pll; 7-'"

IV. t-7:16.4,3. ' How Pll will be used in the system; *
'  1 .i7.1.6.4.4, , How individual consehVwJjrbe achieved and"revoked; and

:5'j ' 1.7,16.4.5.. Privacy practices.

V.7*i

;1.7.16.5. The Department may conduct foUovy-up PIAs In'the evehT
(here

(echnc

of Pll.

there are either significant process changes or riew
technologies jmpacting'th^ collection,,pxocessing or storage , /"!!"'

'^ ^.l,?.; . Websifejand
1.7.17.1. The Contractor agrees that if performance of services on-

behalf of the Deparfmenl lnvolve using .social mecJia 6r.a,
.website' for marketing Id solicit information-bf individuals,^or

-  fi'i' ir-i Confidential .data, the 'Contractor must work .i^e?!the

,! . .. w
RFP-202i8OAS4J^FACIL-H3» Cenifaaor tiiitliia .-iS - v»
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EXHIBIT 8

vts

5;;:

i;j5

<?'•

1. V

v'.V,-

department's Communications Bureau to ensure that'any
social media or website designed, created; or managed on
behalf of the p.eparlment meets all of the.Depadment's and
NH Departfhent of Information Technology's website and
social media requirernents and policies. ^

V7.17.2. The ^ontraclor agrees prolecied health infornriation (PHI).
personal Information (PI), or other confidenfial information
solicited, either by social media or the website maintairied.
stored or ca'ptured shall not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided in the Agreement. The solicitation or
disclosure of PHI, PI, or other confidential infoxrnation shall
.be subject to the Informatiori Security Requirernents Exhibit,
the Business -Associates Agreement Exhibit and all
applicable state rules and slate and federal' law. Unless
specifjcaily' required by the Agreement and unless clear
notice is provided to users of the website or social media, the
Coritraclof agrees that site visitation wili nof.be tracked,'
disclosed or used for website or social media' analytics or
marketing. ;

'1.7.1,8. The Contractor shall provide baseline data for each SAP location
within 90 days of the Agreement effective date to the,,Department. ,

. Baseline data must include:

V- I.7.T8.I. Number of staff at each SAP with content experts identlfted.
i

-9'.
VA--

r.ci

ncluding but not.limiied to;
'1.7^8.1.1. Bachelor of Social Work^
T .7^.18.1!2. Licensed Social Worker.

1.7.1.8.1/3. Master of Social Work.,
1.7..18,1.4. Licensed.Afcohot and.Orug Counselor..
1.7.18.1,5,- Master,Llcensed Aicohcl and Drug Counselor.
l:y.-i8.T;'6. Psychologist.
'"1:7.16.1.7. PsychiairisL
■i .7.1,8.1.8. CertifiedRecovery Supporl Worker.-
■1.7.18,1\9. Staffing; plan at location of SAP including direcf reportin.g

.delineations and narrie of Superintendent;

'1.7:T8.1'.-10. ScHoo'rio'calion. The Contracldr shall identify:
1.7.18.1,.1Q.1. ■ If school is a tfiiddle school or-|iigh schodl;
1;7.lB.;i.1.0,,2. SAP.seryice hours; and

RfP-aOlieOA^f-FAClUOV ^ V CofltfeclorJri;ii»J|
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W-i

1.7

1.7

■'^7'

ir-:.

J■ .')

/i'

1.7

1:7

.1.7

m

ij: 1.7.24. The Conlraclor shall manage> the finances and human'res^qesrequirements-olMhe SAP subawardees relative ;lo their dutle^j^d
RFP.ib23-BbAS4rFACtl.^i

jSlRiie*f^6Trein^ buDti/le..tnc

ConUKtof IrtiWj

.P«0el0on4 DM«

1.7.10.1.10i3. Total number of students per school.

1;7.18.1.10.4. • Annual llernjzed budget;
•1.7.18.1.10.5. Funding sources or contracts other than this

•- Agreement;

1.7.18.1.10.6. ''Percentage of staff and volunteers (hat have beer>
trained in Project SUCCESS;- and

. . . _ J, '
1.7.10.1.10.7. Status of an organizational sustainability pfan.

:19; The Contractor shall support the ability of eactLSAP io implement and
sustain* the program(s) which includes, but is not limited I9: «•;

1.7.19.1,. Providing technical assistance on engaging stakeholders for
.  ensuring SAP financial viability "and future sustainabilily;

1.7.19.2. Assisting with marketing and promotion of the,program; and
.1.7.19.3. Education and advocacy for locali stale a.nd^ federal

programs to sustain and/or expand SAP.
.20. The Contractor shall actively promote the availability, purpose, and

value of SAPs across New Hampshire. The Contractor, must ensure^
promotional activities Include, but are,not limited to: .

1.7.20.1. Developing promotional materials approved by the
. fr Department; '

1.7.20.2. Disseminating promotional and marketing materials on a
variety of platfprrns including websites, social media,
television and ra'dip as approved by the Departrheht;

1.7.20.3. Publishing a quarterly e-newsletter;\and
1.7;20.4. Presenting at local, slate and national meetings, workshops'

and conferences vyith or without the Departrhent and as
appr.ovedby the pepartment.

21.. The.'Conlractor shall,,in collaboration'with the Department, develop.a
■ program incubator model ,In order to increase iridependence "from

Department funds and Sustainabilily of existing SAP programs.
.22. 'The Contracibr must . subrnit subawarded SAP' invoices to the

Deiiarlmenl on^a.rnonthly basis, in^accordance wjlh Exhibit C of thjs
Agrejement. ."S

.23. The'Contractor musfprovide TA/T to SAP to ldentify'services fha_t may
be bijlable to Medicald. f^edicare. or private ihsufance.

7/13/2022
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,  J: pil ^
'  ffe'spo'nsifcijlities. The.ContraclOf shalll; '

1.7.24.1 Ensure proper use 61 financial data.
1.7.24.2. Approve all.costs charged to specific projects for each ^AP; .

'  A. 1.7.24 3. Review monthiy finaricial reports for accuracy..

1.0. Xhe Conlraclcr shall participate In meetings with the Department on a monthly . .
basis, or.as olhervvise requested by the Department'.

1.9. the.'Contractor ensure, s.taff, par1icip.ate in required training on Project-
SUCCESS, technical Assistance, and use. of ihe GAIN-SS training tool as.
required by the pepartrnent,. which the DepartmenI will allow Inyoice for and
provide connection to training evaluatdrs.

"  ■ ' Vj , .A '••••
1.10. Reporting- . .. /v-- ,'•>

.  j jt-
A  <1.10.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department to

•ensure adherence to contract provisions anid maintaining fidelity to
the Projecl SUCCESS model which jnclU'de. but are hot lirniled_lo;

15- 1.10.1.1. Collecting data from each subawardee and aggregating the .
data to sehd to the 0!epar1ment.,which may include.^but is not
limited to: ..... ....

.'-M 1.-10.1.1 :V. Youth Risk Behavior Survey. ••• •
11'01'1.2. National'Survey oh Drug Use.and Health.

:ivi "
-;r. •:) l!l0..1.1.3. Behavioral Risk Fa.ctor Sufveil|dnce Survey.- , ■

1.10.1.1.4. NH County Health Rankings. " xih
.  . . • ; . , . . . . .. V ■ vf '

The Contractor may be required to provide other key data.and metrics
'  .totheOepartrnenfinaforfViaispecifiedbythepepartmenl. w j

- 1.10'3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports to the Department thai
conrain: , ?■;

1.10.3.1. UpdVtes on current status for each SAP under subawa'rd; & ■
g  , I.Vo.3.2. Number of SAPsperidirigimpIefTnerilailop of services, reason.

•  for delay in irnplementatioo. .arid plart to begiii
f?: implernentation. ... '

1.10.3.3; Nuniber of SAPs.whOfaTeirnpterrieriiing SAP service
y. 1.10.3:4. Nurnber of and types of trairiihg'irri0lemented each quarter.

"  i.10.3';5. Nurnber 'Of and types-of technicai assistance provided each
quarter. /

Vi

y-y..;

RFP-2023-8bAS62-FAClL-Ol Cenificlo'WlUlj
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r: ' EXHIBITS -

• - K'i}

■V;'.

-

■Vi 1.10.3.6. 'Summa^ narrative of .SAP Communllies of .Practice and
"  -other-SAP specific meetings. W

1.'10.3.7. Activities undertaken to prornote the availability, purpose .an^.
value of SAPS.

1.10.3.8. Progranrimatic highlights such as success of the SAP
^  programs as deterrtiihed by the Selected Vendor.

1.10.3.9. key findings from evaluation of participant and prbgrammalic
data,-including but not lirhited to demographic and prograrn
satisfaction data.

1..10.1l0.Recommendations for program improvement. t;
1.10.3.1 i.Monthly aggregate' data reports as defined in Subparagraph

'1.10.1. '
•1.10.3.12:Monthly financiallnvoices with supporting docurrientation. ;♦

1..10,.4. The ponlractor must provide any additional data as requested by the ^
Department in^aformat'Specified by the Departrnenl. "

-  r . • -v
1.11. Performance Measures . •

l.ll.i The Department will monitor Contractor performance by ensuring:
1.11.1.1. AminimumoflOSAPsarecpenandproyidingSA'Pservice^ t--

by September .1.2022; ' '
1,11;-1.2. 95®/i of SAPs fuiiy meet the, fidelity of Project SUCCESS by

June 30,2023; ^ ^ i:-.
1 11.1.3. 80% of SAP counselors are trained in Project SUCCESS.by

t. Juhe.30/2023:ahd„ f
1.,11.1.4. 95% of subawa'rded SAPs. report being satisfied with the

'  quality of support provided by the -Facilitatii]g Organization.

2. Exhibits Incorporated
•2 1. The Contractor -shall use and disclose Protected Health Irifdrmation m

/  compliance vvith the Standards for Privacy of Ifidiyiduallyjdentlfiable Health
• ilnforrhation (Privacy Rule) (45 CfR Parts T60 and- 164) under the Health

'■ insurance Po'rtability.jand ,Accountability Act, (HIPAA) of 1996,- and in
iaccprda'nce with the' aVlached Exhibit t. Business Associate Agreement. wh[ch

':h3s been executed by the parties-. ,

.i2.2. The Corilractor shal! manage all confidential dafa related,to this Agreement in
;accprdance' -with :the Jerrhs of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security ^
Requifements. ?. ...

'^2.3. The Cpritractor shall.comply with ail.Exhib'its 0 through K, which are.afe^d
RFP.-20J3-BOAS-02.FAC(V-0» '' v-.^; l/HTz^ZZ
.-jSlReic«f^5T»;ainlt^hiinirte. inc. Pi9ei2oM4 b4le-:L-^— li.-i
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EXHIBIT B

hereto and incorp^oraled by reference herein. •

3. Additional Terms-

■3.1; Impacts .Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
•&' '3.1.1. The. 'Cdntractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal '

le§i$tdtion or court orders may have an Impact on the Services
described herein, the Stale ffas the right to modify Service priorities
and expendilure reojuirernenls under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

■3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Complianc©; Culturally'^and LinguisticaUy
Appropriate Programs and Seivices i

3.2.1. The Contractor shall subrhit. within ten (I'O) days of the Agreement
,..r, ' Effective .Dale, a detailed description of the communication access

and -language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs "and/or services to individuals with,
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
'\ois\ individuals who are blind or have low vision; and Individuals who
have speech challeriges. •

Ci-edits and Copyright Ownership
3,3'1.:/ Airdocuments. .notices, press releases, research reports .and other

materials prepared during or resulting frorih the pertbrrnance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the follpwing staterrient. "The
preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed, under a.n.
Contfacl with the State of New Hannpshire.Oepartrnenl of Health and
Human Services, with ^funds provided iri part by the Slate of New

&. Hampshire and/pr such other fundlhg sources as vyere available or
reQuired, e.g.; the United States Department of Health .and Hujpan
Services:"

3.3

'3.3.2. All nrialerjals.produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior- approyal from the Department before printing, .pr'oduciioh,.
dislribuiiori or use. •• ^

3 3 3_ jhe Depa„rtmcnt shall retain copyrighf -ownership for any and all
bfigirial materials produced, including, but not limited to:"

Brochures. " .3.3:3.1.

33-3-2.

^:3:2i:3'
0.3.i4.
f3:3.3.5.

Resource directories.

'Protocpls or guidelines.
Posters.

Reports.
i!

u.V

'3.3.4.- The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced ufid^He
RFP.202j^O'^2-FACil.4> '' CoWwuof Irtiiab —
■JSi^heieoith'S'-Tfilrtifl ln3Uiulc.,tnt
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EXHIBIT B

Agreement wilhout prior written approval IromM.he Department.

4. Records

I,;. .

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are nol limited to: ■ < ■ ■

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs arid other.expenses-incuffcd by the
Conlractdr in the performance of the Contract.,and all in.corne received
or collected by tke Contractor.

4.1.2.-All records must be maintained in accordance • with accounting
procedure.s .and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses. and which are acceptable to the Departmeni, and

•  Jo include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and .original
^evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials. inventories, valuajions df inrkind contribuliohs.
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder; the.
Department, the United Stales Departmeni of Health and Human Services, and

:v any of their designated representatives ;shall have access to all reports and
'  records maintained pursuant to the Agreemenl for purposes of audil.

exarriinatlon. excerpts and .transcripts. Upon the purchaise .by the,Department
-of the maximum" number of units provjded for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitalibn hereunder, the Agreemenl and all the obligations'

' of'the parties heyeunder. .(except such ' obiigatioris as. by the terrhs of the
. Agreenient are to be perfdrmerl after the;end;of the term of this Agreement-

'W. ■ and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall ternninate, provided",
howevdr. Ihat'if, upon review 6T the Fjnal Expenditure Report the pepartmenl
shall disallow, a'hyex'pen'ses claimed'by the Contractor as. costs hereunder the
pepartment'shall relain-the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amoynl of such
expenses as are disjailowed^oj' to. recover such surns frpm the Con'tracldf.

J;l

:^r
•  JC

RFP-2023-BOAS>C2-FAaL-6r •
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-v. Payment Terms-.

•1: This Agreement is funded by: ^
^, 1 .1. 48% Amerrcari Rescue Plan Act. ARPA Fiscal Recovery F.unds, CFpA

«TBDFAIN#TBD'

'■ . 1,2. 52% Olher funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Departmeni has identified: g;
2.i. The Contraclor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR '§200!331..
2.2. The Agreerhent as NON-R&D, iri accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3! Payment shall be'\on a cost- reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in. the fulfillment of this. Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line iteriis, as specified in Exhibits C-1,. Budget.■V

. 4"..- The Contractor shall:
t*.

' wc 4.1. .Submitsubawarded SAP invoices to the Departrnenl on a rrionthly',basis
in a format,approved by the Departrnent that rhay be combined in one
invoice ip account for all subawarded SAPs. •

4.2." CplFaborate wilh the Department .to rectify any Issues related to the
-invoices.

JC

".A'.2. . Retain supporting documen'tatiori that may include, bul ls not lirhiled to,
.r; tifT\e sheets, payrdil, .records, receipts for purchases.- and^ proof of

^  -s .-elrpendllures; as-applicable, to'ensure compliance in the event of'a
potential audit. %

5. The Coritfacldr shall subrhit an ifVvoice>vllh;suppdr1in9 documentation to the •
bepartfTi.enl no later than the twentieth (20"^) working day of the rnonth following

T;* ti- the rnonth in which the .services wcre..^proyided. The*Contractor sKall .erasure •
• S 'f 63ch invpice: ' ;

, "5.1.' Includes the fiontractbr's Vendor Number issued upori registering with
New Harnpshire Qepartmenl of Administrative Services. -

•c '\.-i . 5.2: Is submitted In a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department. r-

-5.3. .Identifies, and requests paym'ehl for .allowable costs, in'cufred in jhe
previous month.

^.4. ;|Hpl.ud,es siflDp'odlrig documeniatipn of allowable cost^ witiv each invoice
5^: thai may include, but^are not lirhited to, time shebTs, payrbirrecords,

receipts fo.rpurchases, and. proof of expenditures, as applicable. . * . '^ ■v
^5.5. Proylde'ihvbice's'fof eaVh sub-'contracior. idehliried In'this Agfecpnent.l.h

a.'foirnat'approvedby Ihe'Departnheht. „ ' ^bs
.4- , . f "yS-

. . .RFp:2023:B0AS-02:FACIL-0^ ''Conlfecly >nlim» ^
:• V-7/13/2Q22 ''K-jS) Reseorchfi Trftirting iiuliiutc. Inc. Page 1 ol,3 ■
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EXHIBIT C

%

Ev

6.

7.

i'iK"

iV--

T
VJ

5.6.

jK;-v

vi;:

he Department has the right Mo .request ffom the conjrac'tor
supporting documentation of aliowabie co.sts,- from each sub-,
contractor that may incjode, but is rot (irhited. to. time sheets,
payroll records, receipts for • purchases, and proof" of
'expenditures, as applicable.;^ -

Ensure*.timesheels, an'd/br time cards submitted support the .hours
erhployees worked for wages reported under this contract'li^ accordance
..with:" -

5.6.1. Per 45 CFR part 75.430(i){i) Charges to Federal awards for
salaries and .wages must-be based on records tfi.at a'ccuratefy
reflect the work performed. r;...

. 5.6.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which a'(e availableMqi
the Department upon request.

'i'; •
S.7.. Is completed, dated and returned to the Departnheht with the sjupporling

dpcurnentation fpr-allowable expenses to initiate payrnent.

5,8. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,-.
• and is.emailed to dhhs.invoicesforcontract$@dhhs.nh.gov or.rfiailed to;

Program'Manager . . .
. Department of Health and Human Services
105 "Pleasant Street

. Concord, NH 03301

The,.Pepartrhent shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
-of -receipt, of-each Irivoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

The.fmarinvoice and supporting documentation fo_r.authorized-expenses shall " •
be due to the< Department no later than forty ,(40) days after the cbhtracl
cbmpfetioh date specified In Form P-37, Genera.) PVpyisjons Block 1,7
Completion bate".

Notwllhstaridin'g Paragraph 17 of the General Prpvlsjons Form Rr37. .changes
limited to,, adjusting'"'amounts within. the price" limilatioh ahS' .adjusttng ,

■'.encumbrances between Stale FiscaLYears and budget class lines through the '
Budget..Office-ma'y be made .by written agreement of both pailibs, wilhdut
obtaining approyal of the Governor* and Executive Cpuncil, if needed and
jusllQed'.
Audits

i9.-l'. TKe\COritraclor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov l)
any of theJ61Jowir>g conditions exist: • ii-

RFP-202J-BDAS-02.-FACIL.01

JSI Re>earcn & InallMe. bK.-

.  r". ■ '

y;/; 'Conifer ln)li»l»'inlli'al* v.

2Gi-

'vf-

w
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EXHIBIT C

•::So

'ii"

g'-

1.' •

i:' 9.2.

Sf'

9.1.3.

9.3.

9.4.

Condition A - The Contractor .expended $750.000'Or more In
fed'eralfunds received asa subrecipientpursuanl.to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal*year.

9.1.2. Condition S - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant tp the
. requirements of NH RSA -7:26. Ilt-b. peKaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,0.00.000 or more.

,Condition.C - The Contractor is a public company and required,
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
subrhit an annual financial audit.'

If Condition A exists, the. Contractor shall submit ah annual Single
^udil performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to ;dhhs.act(g'dhhs.nh.9ov*'within 120 ,days after 'the close ,of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with' jhe
recjuirements of 2 'CFR Part 200. Subpart F of the Uniforni
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards. . '

The Contractor shall submit a copy of any. Single* Audit findings.
.and any associated corrective'.'action plans. The Contractor
shall subrnit quarterly progress reports on the status of
Implementation of the corrective action plan.

If Condition 6 or Condition\^ exists. Ihe Contractor shall submit an^
ahhual .finahcial audit performed by ah independent CPA 'within 120
days after the close of the Coritractqr-s fiscal year.

In addition :to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the CqntVactor that the
'Corftractor shall be held liable for ariy'stale or'federal audit exceptions,
and shall'return to the .Oeparitment ail! payrpents made under the
Agreenient to which exceplion,;has\been takeri, .or which'have been
'fallowed because .of such an exception. - -

9.2.1.

•S ' 'Si

'B

RFP:2023-BDAS'02-FACIL-<ll '

3S1.RMejrc>> & TfsSrring In^tliute. lhc.
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Exhibii C-1. Budget

.'.V 'f-

r.*

Now.HampsMro OopartrTtent of Health and Human Services
'■'< Comp/cfc one budge! form for'each butfpcf period.

-  ... - .r r.nntrartftrfjai^: JBI Research Training InstiiuleJ.nc.
' v- i  Budget Request for:

"  Budget Period
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

SAPFO
*• !^

*  < J July 1. 2022 through Juno 30. 2023 (SFY23)
t.

1.78% •V

\v».
Unettem

■•v -

Program Coet -
Ifunded by OHHS

Prograrn Cost •
'Contractor-Share!

Match

TOTAL Program
Cost

V: '
1. Salarv'S VSteqes' • ••

$100,054 $0 $t00.0S4

I . V*

2. Fringe'BencfiU.. $46,923 so $46,923

3.' Consultants ' ^  $0 so 50

/ 4.. EouiomRnl- $0 so so

S (a) Sunollfts - Educational 10 so -  so

S.fb) Suoolies-Lab " , v.. $0 $0 so

S!rt RiioiSliea'.Pharmacv $0 •so so

S.fdi Suooltes • Medical $0 $0 .  so

5.fe) SoDOlies Office ^v- so so so

6. Travel •
:S275 .  so $275

7. Software . . ' $0 , >0 so

B (a) Other • Markelino/Communlcations $0 so so
'  '■i

8. !b) Olher - Education and Trainino /> SO .-■-so • so

8 fr.t Other-Other fsoccifv below)
TA and Jralnina Providers ,  . . . S42.470 .$0 t.-." 542 470

is- m •. i-V "SO so so
so so •  SO

•  ■ -so . ■

9. Subrecioienl Contracts ■  S2.070.000 $0 .■S2.070.000

:5t . Total Dirock Costs '52.259.722
f

-- so •S2.259.722

;• i Totallndlrecl Costs •r •" S40.278 $0 540.278

h :  'r TOTAL S2.300.000 $0 $2,300,000

-ffi

.,,s5 :^^-v
'<•; .V

".'•Vf <
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€.

:>

5^

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPiACE'REQUIREMENTS.

•the Vendor Identified in.Seciion i.3.ol the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160of the'Orug.Free.Workplace Aclol.1988(Pub. L/100-690;TlUe V. Subtitle D:-4t '
U.S.'C..701 el s^.j. and further agrees to have* the Contractor's representative, as identified In.Sectlons
1.11 and l.l2.oMhe General Provisions execute the follovinng Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES . CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF EOUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implerr^enting Sections 5i 51-5180 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Ac! ol 198B (Pub. L, -100^90, Title V, jSublitle D: 4'1 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The Januaiy 31..
1969 regulations were emended and pu.blished'as Part II of the May 25. i996'Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certifjcabon by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees arid sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintaln.a drug-free workplace. .Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-graniees and subrconlractors) lhat'is_a Slate
may elect to make one certjficalion to the Dcpartment'in each federal fiscal year In Ijeu of certilicates for
each grant during (he federal fiscal year covered.by the certificalion.. The certificate set oul below is a
materiariepre'senlaiion of fact upon which'relianco is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
'certification of violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination qCgfants.'or government wide suspension or debarment.. Contractors using'this fom should
send it lb: '' ' ' i

■  7.ii

vi-'

Commissioner

NH Departmerii of Health and Hurhan Services
129 Pleasant Street '
Concord. NH 0330Vj6505

•• W y .

1.2.2.

12.3.

1.2.4.

The'grantee certiriesjhal it i^ll or wjll continue io provide a dnjg-free workplace by:
1.1. ' Publishing a stetemeni notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or iisebf a conlrblled substance is prqhibited in the grantee's-
workplace ar^-specify'mg the actions^ihatvrili be taken against employees for violation of si^h
prohibition; • ' . "

-"11.2. Establishing an brigoing drug-free awarenDSS program to inforrfi employees about,
1.2.1. Thedangers of drug abuse in ihe-workplace;

The grantee's policy of mairilajning a drug-free workplace; ^
Any available drug.cbunseling,. rehabilitation, and employee assistance prbgrarns; and
,The pc.halt[es that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations ' '
occurring in the wort<placc; ^

Making H a requiremen't-thal each employee to be engaged In the performance bl lhe grant t^
g'weri-a.'copycf.lhe statement regyiredby^pa/agraph (a);" ,
NolifyTrig'the.eniplpyee in the slaiemenl required by paragraph (a) (hat. as a condition.of
employment under the granf. the employee will" .•>:
1.4:1.. AWde by Iho terms or.ihe.siaiefnerii; and . ^
1..4.2. Nolify'.lhe enripioyer in wfiiing of his'qr her conviction for a vjolalion of a cfimlnal drug

.statute occurring'in-the^,workplace no laTer ihan'five caiendar.days alter such ^
convlciion;' • ''itv

1.5. Notifying the agency in wrjiing',.within ten calendar days after receivirig notice under
•subparagraph 1.4,2 frbfri aii .employee or .bihenAnse'receiying aclualnotice oi such cprivtetipn;"
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including posiiibn title..to every grant

-  officer pn'^qse grant aclrylly ihe convicied cmpibyee was working.^uriless the FbderaJ^ag'ency^

. V.3.
w:.

.1.4.

t. •^'

■cuomvnoro

Eichlbil 0.-- CeniTolionregiidlAg Dnig T't*
^WorXplica RequiiimeiUs

■Pigcj oIj2'

Vehdof inHiils

I'll.
fi- "One..

7/X3/2022

iff?-
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Exhibit D

ArV^' hag deiighated a central poinl.fof the receipt o( such notices. Notice shall include the
identincatiohnurnber(s)ofedchatfectedgrani:

■  ■ Taking onepf.the, following actions/within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
'  ' . < . . •.!. -1 i_ liiKA ic'cnVAnuirlJirl,V,V,. subparagraph t.0.2'.wilhrespecllqanyemployeevirhojs'so.cbnyicted.

^  Taking appropriate personnel action against such an ennploycc. up to and including
•jo " lerrninalion, consistent with the requirernenls o| the Rehabililalidn of 1973.^ as

w  amended;or- " . •
P i.6;2. Requiring such erhployceio participate" satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or.rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a.Federal. State, or local health.

t  . law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; . 9:
-i x fi^akin'g a ,good faith effort to continue "to mainiairi a drug-free .workplace through

'• Implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2. 1.3,1.4. fi rid 1.6.

2. The graritee rnay insert-in the space provided below the site(s) for the perlormance of wort doije in
'  ' connection with.the specific grant. ^ 5:

Place of'Performancefslrcet, address, cily.county. slate, zip code) (list-each locatiori)'
.•''V

t  •• fiji' :• .. i?:'i

theck O'If there are .workplaces on file that are not identified here. •

7/13/2022 ■ I fcaUAJ:
-  Robert

D

Vendor Name: 351 Research & Training, institute*. Inc.

ate
Title: oSractor

V.vf.

^.{ ;A-'

iri'n'.'-i
S'A'rt *1-

jl;'"

'.1 i:

•  . .i?"
i}y -i- '>i :>>.

i/V

■h

I

!r?«TV''j

.47
.VJS'-' •

e*M>il'0-t«n>re*lioni«aaibingDfUB 'Vooboi Im'ljBb;

C^vDKHS<uoru

A41 » ft l«

WoApUttlRegw'en^nla ' " 7/13/2022^ p^_
•pigeZolZ ' . ... 0%; -i

iwy;
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IPi-T

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING K

The Vendor idenlified'in SecHon-l'.3 .ot the General Provisions agrees to wmp}y wth the provisiohs of
Seclion'3t9oI Public Law V0M21. Governmerilwide Guidance for New Reslncltons on Lobbytng. and
31 U.S.C. .V352. and further agrees to have the Contrector's reprcserttaiiye. as identified In Seclions l;i i
and V12 of the General Provisions execute the (ollpvvln'g Certification: . j ^
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE . eONTRACTORS*» .»• i-i ^ r* ' • *

Pr^foms (Indicate eppllMble progroni covered): ..•Temporary Assistance to Needy Famifies under Title lV-A
•t'ChlW SupfWrt'Enforpefnenl Program under Title IV-D -•Social Serwces Block Grant Program under-TlUe XX ^
•Medicaid Program'under Title XIX

•XornniOmty Services Block Granl under Title VI
•Child Care OevelopmenfBlock Grahl under Title IV

I  -•

The underslgncd 'cerlifies/to the best of his or her Knowledge and bellaMhal: * ' ,

i. No Federal appropriated funds have -been.paid or will be paid by or on behall of the yndersighed. to
any person for Influencing or attempling to influence an officer or ernployee ol any^gency. a Member
of Congress an officer or employee of Congress, or ah employee of a Member of Congress in
fconnccuon with (he Warding of any Federal contract conlinuaiion. renewal, amendment or .. ^
•modification of any Federal contract, grant, loart. or cooperative agreemeni (and by specific mention •
sub^ranlee or sub^riiractor). .A

2.. If.sny funds other than Federal appropnated fut\dshave been paid or will be paid to any person for;.
Influencing or aUemptJng to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress.

?  ion offcer or employee of Congress, or ah employee of a Member of Congre.ss in connection wilh this
'Federal COTtracL-grant.'loan. 6; cooperative.pgrcemenl (end by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). Ihe uhdcrsig'hed sh^l cpmpleje and submit Standard Form LLL. (t^sckwure Form to .
Report Lobbying.'in accordance with.ili Instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit .E-I.)

3 The undersigned shall require thai the language.oVthrsccrliflcaljon be included inthe award
:• ' document for.sub-Dwards eCall tlprs (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and cpnlrecls under grants,

ibansvand cpoperative agreements) arid that all sob-recipierits shall certify and^disclosc accordingly.,
This certification is a rin'alerial.represeniatlon of fact upon wtiich.reliance was'placed wheri this trarisaction
was madb of entered Into. Submission of this certification Is o prcre.quisite for making .or e.ntering into this

■  irabsflction'imposed by Section 1352. Tille 31. U.S. Code, ^ny person who fails to fije the re^^^
certificalion shall ba subject to a civil penalty oi nol less than SIO.OOO and nol moro than SIOO.OOO for .
each such failure. :•

Vil';

f/.j'

-  -fr

1* •• i"
•'Vi

VendorNameijJSl'Research & Training-institute, inc.

7/13^2022

7^0^UgtM«kt:

Dale

rkv

.cuo>tt<vno7i>

Wlht .Robert

oirectbr" '

ExMSu'E - Cen.KICilion Regardift^ LoMyfng
,Pl90 I of ^

r."*
vendor lAfiish

•7/13/2022
IDilfl- • •

,•1
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. ••

^CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION J}
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS >'V;' '7-, ' '

The Cdniractor'Idenlified in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees to comply.wiih the provisions oi
Executive Office ol Uie.Presideril. ExecutivejOrder 12W9 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Delwrmenl.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
•representa^e. es identified in Sections t.i 1 and i.i2 o'f the General Provisions execute the foilo^ng
Certiflcetion: ' ' v . ' '

instructions FOR CERTIFICATION ^
t. . By signing and submjnir>9 ttils.proposot (contraci), the prospective prfma^ participant is providing'the. .

certiftcatidn Ml out t^low. ■

2. The inabili'tyof a person to provid_e the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered "transaction. If necessary, the pfospeclive participant shall submit an
explanatidh of why it cannot provide the certificat'ion.^Jhe certification or explanation will be
considered in,conf>eclion Wiih the NH OepartnSent ol.Heatth and Human Services' (OHHS)

.determination v^eiher'to enter Into (his transaction. "However, failure of the prospectrve primaor'
participant io furnish a certiftcaiion or ar^ exptariation shall disqualify-such person from participation in
'thisjrahswtipn. •; .;j r- y:

,i> •
K-.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of (act upon which rdiance was placed- -
.when OHHS deterrhlned (0 enter into Ih.is transaction. If 11 Is later dele'rmined ll>al (he prospective
prirhary'participanl kndwi/>gly rendered an erroneous certificatidh. in 'addilioh to other remedies
available lb .the Federal Governrncnl.'DHHS may lerrninate this transaction fpfpause of default.- -

•4. The prospective primory'participaht shall provide immediale.wriucn,notice to the DHHS.agency to i/;; ,. •
whom this prdposa).(contract) is.submitted if al any time the prospective primary participant learns
(hat its certification was erroneous when submitted or has becortte erronepus.by reason of changed . ' '

'circumstances. •

f  . .. . ". i;j,
5. The terms'covered iransactioh.''debarred.*'suspended."incli9ible." Slower tier covered

lransaction.'''parllciparit.* "person,* 'primary covered transactiori,' "pnncipai.* *proposai.* and
'volunlarOy excluded.* as used tn.this clause, have the meanings set out in the OefiriiUdns and sa..

■  > Coverage'sections of the rules Irnpiemenling Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76_;'See the vA </ K
y. attached def/nilibns. - " •

6. The pfbspective.primaiy participant agrees by"submitting" this pro'posai (contract) that, should the. ^
'  proposed covered transaction be .entered into." it shall not knowingly enter Into any lowef'tier covered

;  .-.iransaclion wiih'a persort who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluniarily'excluded
'from.particlpaltOA^jh this covered trerisaction. unless authorized by OHMS.

7. the prospective prirnafy participarti (urther agrees by submitting Ihlj" propose! that it will include the [■
clause tided •Cdrb'fi.caliori Rcgar'ding Oebarmenl* Suspension. Ineligibilily and Voluntary'Exclusion-- ■ 7^ ;
Ldwr:TiefCovcred..Tra'ns'3Ction5."*.pr6vided.bydHHS. without modifrcalion, in all lower .tier cpye^Bd ''
transactions and in all solicitations (or.lower tier covered transactions.

t:, Jh

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely u'ppn'^a certification of a "prospective participant jn. a.
lower tier cbVefed iransacjiion'lhal it is not debafred.isuspencled. ineligible, or involuntaril/excluded
from the covered iransaclion. unless'it kr^ows that the ccriincation Is erroneous. A participarit riiay
decide the mbthod and. frequency by which it determines the errgibilily of Its principals. Each

'  participant may. t>ut is,n'pt'requjre"d to.'check the'Nonprbcuremeni LislJ(oi excluded parties).

'9. NolHlng coriiained fn the.fpregoihg.shall be'cohslrued Io require establishment of a syslerh.o! recordsJn order to fehder'-lti good faith the certification required by this.ciause. .The kn'owledge'andffj^ _
i'fir, " - . ■ .''2 . i ll

'  'ExWbil F T Certifetlion R<9»fding Otbimienl. Sujpenjion Ctmiridor JniitibV :
-- ' Aa<>Oihe'.ReiponslbllilyM»Ue'» ...^ ; 7/13/2022
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!-■

•  "'Information of a paftidpanl Is not required to exceed thai wtilch Is normally possessed by a prudent 'v:
person Iri' the ordinal^ course of business dealings. ^ ;;

10. ExcdpUor transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions.-if a panicipant in a .
' cpvej^ transaction knowingly enters'inloe.lowerdcr covered transaction with a person wtio Is. suspended, debarreij. Ineligibte. or voiuntarily exduded horn participation in this transacUon. in . •

addition to other remedies avatlable to the Federal governrhenl. ;OHHS rhay terminate this transaction
for cause or.'defaull .q ' ■ ' \^

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ,
11. Tlieprospectiyc prtmary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, iham end Its

.  piindpals: • , . • ' •
:/.j 11.1. ere not presently debarred, sus^nded. proposed for debarrnenl, declared incliglblfi. orvolunlartly fexchided from covered transactions by any Federal depariment or agency: . •

'  -11.2. have'not with'ln a three-year period precedlr^ this proposal (contract) been convicted of of had _
' ■ a dvil judgment rendered againsttherntof comrribslonof fraudor aicrfminal offense In

•.r: connection with obtaining, attempting io obtain, pfperfo/ming a public (Federal. .State .or local)
tranMClion or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Staje enlitrust

vf '- ' statutes or ^mrhlsslof) of cmbealemeni; theft, forgery, bribery. falsifiMtlon or destruction of --jif-
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; ••

11.3. are not prosanlly indicted for otherwise crimlnally of dvitly charged by a govemme,ntal entity
.(Fed'eral, Slate or local) v^lh commlssion of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1Kb)
of this cci^jficaiion;" and

n .4. have not within a ihree-year periodReceding this epplicalion/prdposal.had one or more public
y, iransactipVis(Fcdcral..State Of local) terminated for cause or default . •.

"12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to einy of the staterner^ts in this ^
^  certification, such'prdspective participant shall attach an'explahalidn to this proposal (contract). '

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS _ , . ,, i
13 'By signing end submitting.this lower tier profX)sal (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpanl. asdefined.in:ii5 CFR Part 76. certifies^to the best of its iuiowle'dge and beliel that it and its prindpals: ^

13.1. are nol presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared ineligible, or'
voluntarily excluded frorn participation In this trpniaclion by any federal depsrtmcht or agency.

'13.2. where Ihe prosp^Uve tower tier participant Is unable to certify lb any of the above, such*'
vr. 'pfpspefctive participant shall attach en explanaliori to this proj30sal(conlfacl)._

•■v' 14. Theprbspective lower .tier partdpanl further agrees.by subrfiltting ihispropos'el (coniract) that it wiil
■ . ' Indudethis dausecnlitled.'Certificalion Regarding Ocbarrnehl, Suspension, jneligibilily. and

vbiuniary Exclusion - Lower Tier Coveri^ Transactions."'Wthoul modifrcalion In^all lower tier,covered
iransaclions end'in ejlVbl.i.cilatjons for l.o^r'lier covered transaciibris. ^ i'.

!.<ir

::Vf;

7/13/2022

ConiraclprName: >si aesea.rch. i'Trai.nlng institute, inc.
"• " ' • ' '

Oaia • N8Hf#:KVtWHne Robert jfj..
vi: Title:

•Ipe Robert

. Oirecto.r-

!.'fs

exNbli F o C«nirie«i>on''Rigfc<)ine OcOa/meM. Suip«nijon Coniriclo' jretlab

i{v .^0?

'And Other RoipoAslbniyMitle'r*' ... 7/13/2022
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rfOTipicATlON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
.cpfiFHAL nondiscrimination. equal treatment of fafth-based organizations and
.;viv • .• WHiSTLeBLOytfpft PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified fn iSection l :2 of the General Pr;(>vi$ions agrees by signature of the Contxaclor-srepresenialWe asidenlified in Sections \Mpn<i lVl2 ot the Generel Provisions, to execute the following
'certification: • ' ■ . .

Cbr^trector wifl comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors To cornply. wilh any applicablfi
jederal nondiwrimina^on requirements.^which may.indude:

the Ornnibus Crim'e CohUb! and Safe-Streeis Aclof i?S8 (42 U.S.C. Section 37B9'd) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under, this statute from discriminating, either m employment practices or m
"the derivery' of services or benefit, on the basis of race: color, religion, natiotial pngin. and sex. The Act .
requires"certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenife Justice DelinquerKy Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which" adopts by
reference, the clvfl rights obligations of iKc'Safc Sireets Act'. Recip'ienls of federal funding u^er this
statute arb prohibiled from discriminating, cither in employrrient practices'or in the delivery of services or
beriefrts. ori th'e basis of race, color, religion, rialional origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
'Employment O'pportunily Plan requirements;. ; • *. ^ •.<'

■ the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.q/Seclion^OOOd. whicti prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance froim di.scrimlnaiing on the basis of race, colof. or national origin "in any program or actwity);
Vthc RehabiBtallon Act of 1973 (29'U.ic-. Seclion 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assisiande from discriminating on the basis ol'disabitily. in regard to employment and the delivery of
sereices 01 benefits, in any program or.acliyity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990(42 u:S..C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity lor persons with diMbllllies in employrTjenl. Siaie and.local -

: gdyemmenl serv'ice'i. public acconvnodalions. commercial facilities, and txanspprialion; .
-ihE EducaliOfS Amendments pi 1972 (20 U.S.C. Swtions 1681.'1683. l'685^86). whteh prohibits-
discriminaiion on the basis .of sex in federally assisted education programs;
.iheAge Discriminaiion.Acl of.'1975,(42 U.S.C.'Settions 610^-07). i^lch prohibits discrite dn;the
basis of age in prbgrarns or activities recciv'mg Federal financial assistanpe. It does ri'ot Include,
cmploymenl discrimination;

■ -28 C.F-.R. pi. 31 (U.S. OeparOnenlof Justice Regulations-OJJOP Grant Programs); 28C.F.R. pl.^2
(U S bcparirr^enlof Jusllcc'Regulations Nondiscrimination; Equal Emplpyrneni Opportunity; Policies
Ina Pfocedu'cs)-'Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of iHeJaws for fajth-based and community
drganiialipfis); Executive Order No. 'las^S.^which prcvWe fundamental principles and policy-malung
criteria fbr.pertnerships.with failh-ba'sed and neighborhood organizations;

-  C.F.R. pi.- 38 (UiS. Dcpaiime'nl of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Oroanizalibns)- and Whisileblower prolectlqnSi4l'0..S.C. f4712 endiThe Neilonal Defense Aulhoriratlpn
Act (NDAA) lor Fiscal Year 2013 (Rub. L. 112-239. enacted January^. 2013) the Pilot Program lor

; 'Ehhancemeni of Cpniract Employee Whislleblowef Protections, which protects ernployeesjgainst
reprisal for certain whistle blowing ecliviiies in connection with federal grants and contracts.

Ib The certificate set out betowls a.-material representation ql fact upcri which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant.. FaUe certification or vio[ation of ihexert'ificalion shall be grounds for
suspenision of payments, .suspension or/ermination of grants; or government wide suspertslqn or
debarmeni.

v.l;'

.vr.

•>^1'

■fr>{

A'»U'

•  -".i
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Contracior.'inhlab
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'.I,

i-Vi ■

s!:/

•v?.:

in the evenl a Federil ofSiate court or Federal or Stale admlnislfalive afiency rrtakeVa rmdingpf ,
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race. colw. reitgion. national
aoainsl a recipient of funds the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to ^
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department ol Health ar>d Human Services, and ■
to the Department of Health an.d.Kuman Services Office ol the Ombudsman.

.  * , ; '

The Cor^iUactor identified in Section 1.3 df the General Pro^^slpns agrees by signature of '
^represenifltive as kJcntified in Sections i.l.i.and 1.12 ol the General Provisions, to execute the foljpwing ^
•cerlificolion: ' , .

■ 1. Byslgr^ing and submitting this pro^ial (contract) the Ccniracfor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indjcaied above. . ; .

:  . V . ^ '
Contractor Name: )SI Research A Training insti tute^, anc.

7/13/2022, ,1 ... ••

Date
f^am^V'atareV.ine Robert

o- •- oireccor -j

r
V';.

r. -

-•> ff
-'W.'

m

ExhtolC
'Cor^tracior laliiab

..htfe-

CcwflinM^«wAv»^ PVrtiWv » r«»P.4 »toKUc.*»>*b»V-g^ T.ymvr, tf r«iV>a*»W -MVvHilMi 7/13/2022
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CERTIFICATION R6GARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103.227. P^ C - environment^" Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994
(Act), requires th'ai smoking nol,be permitt^ecJ In any portion of any indoor faciUly owned or leased or ■
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education.
Of library senrtccs to children under the age of 18. il the services are "funded by. Federal programs either.

'  direclfyorthroughSiaieor tocalgovernmenis. by'FcderalQrant. coniract. loan, oftoanguarantee. The
•  . law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, fadiilies funded solely by
•is' Medicare or Medica'id funds, and portions of facilities used (or inpatiem drug or atcohpt ireatmeni. Feiiu/c

to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of o civil monetary pcrtalty pf up to
StOOO per'day and/orilhe Imposition of an Bdministraljve compliance order on the responsible enll^.

'The Contreclor idenUfied in Section .1.3 of the GeneralProvisions agrees, by signature of the Contractors
represenlaUye as Identified in Section and i,l2pf the General Provisjons. to-exccute.tho following

•t;4, certification:' -

•' '1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable eff.orts to comply
with all aooticable provisions of PoWlc Law 103-227, Part C, kr^own as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994.

"fi

7/13/2022 I

Contractor Name.: 3.SI Research & rrain-ing institute. Inc.,

Director-

!-•> • * in

.•ii ^ 3: v;vj;
i  ♦! 1

'A 'r-

'■•'i

f-

fi-

fl.-.

•t.'i

..

J  I
•6xt^iW^I^-,Cehirwt«onR»g»rting CohVaaorlnh'nls^ _

'  EnvWonmenielJobaew Srnolic 7/13/2022
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORtABIUTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT'
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT .

ThefconlractoridenlinecJ in Section 1:3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
•wrnply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104^191 and

•  -with the Slandards'for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health .Information, 45
.CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subcdnlraclors and agents of the Contractor that

•' receive-, use or have .access, to protected health infbrrnation under this Agreement and -Covered
Entity' shall rnean ihe.Slale of New Hampshire, Oepartmenl.of Health and Human Services.

f;

(1) .Qefinilions. .

a. 'Breach', shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section 164,402 of Jille '45,
Code of Federal Regulatibhs. •• -

t) "'Business Ajssociate' hasThe meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. '^Covered Entity'has'the meaning given such term in section .160.103 of Title 4"5,
Code of Federal Regulations. ' •

.(j. ■f^^yionalecl Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
"  ,in 45. CFR Section 164.501. ■ .

e. 'n^in AQore'calion' shall have Ihe^same meaning as the.termj'data aggregation' in45 CFR
Section 164.501.'

-  V • . ^

f  r^gaHh Care boeraiions' shall have the same meaning as'lhe terrn 'health care operations
;jn45CFRSectior)lW..501. '

g. 'HITECH 'A'ci':means the Health Informaliori Technology for Economic 'and .Clinical Health
Ac!. TitleXII], 6ublitld D.Xarl 1 .& *2'of the Af^encan Recovery and Reinvestment Act of-

" 2009. ■ ' ~

h. 'HIPAA' means'the .Health Insurance Portability and Accouniability Act ofj996. public Lavy
■  104-,191 and the Slajidards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health

•  [rifdimaiion.,45.CFR_Parts ijSO. .162 ^ 164 and amendmenls lhereto:

'i. 'Indlviduar "shall have the sarhe meaning as the le'riri 'iridividual' "h45,CFp Section'1^.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a perisonal represeritalive in accordance with 45

y; CFf\ Section V6;4.50%): "

i  'Privacy Rule''shairmean.the Standards for-Priyacy of Individually Idehtifiable Health
Information at,45 Cf^R Parts T60 arid i W. prprnujgated under HIPAA t)y the United States ^
Departmenj pf.HeaUiVand.Hujnan Services.

k  'Pmtected Health Iriformalion" shall have the same rhepnirSg es lhe term ;prpfectedheaimlnformalio.ri'l_h45CFRSeclion'160.103. limiledtdlhe..informalionc/ealedqrfeceiv^^J. -
""BJ^s'iness Asso.ciatVfrom of .on behalf of Covcfcd'Enlijy. " {

^U- ■ \ Exhtolll .. . '
;t ... Iiuut»fie4 Pw^WltyAcI , -• . . .

•6u»he»»Ajiod#te Xo'eemeni '.7/-13/2022 ,
'  .P»oflio»6 D.I#— V-
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t. 'fteauifed bv Law' shal.rhave the same rrieanlng as the term "required by law' in 45 CFR
Seclion-1&4.-103.'. . .r: ^ I -r:-:

'  m. 'Secretary" shall rhean the Secretary of Ihe Oepartment of Heallh and Human Scryicep or
his/herde'signee.

■f-

'.ye'ii

n. 'Security Rule* Shall mean the Security Standards for the Proteclion of Electronic Protected
' Health Information at 45 CFR Part ^S^. 'Sutjpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Pfbtecled Health information' rrieans prctecled.t^ealth information that is not
secured by a technology.slandard thai renders protected health informalion unusaWc.
unreadable, or.indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed^or endorsed by
a standards developing organization ihai is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute'.

p. Other [Sefiriitions.- All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
"established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 'IS^.ras amended from time to time, and the
HITECH ^
Act. *■

(2) Business AasOclale Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informaliori.'
a. ■ Business Associate shall not use. disclose, rhaintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHl) excepias reasonably necessary to provide the sewices butline*"d under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Assbciate.^ihcluding bufnol limited■|d"all
its' directors, officers. employees and agents, shall not use.-disclose, rhainlain or transmit'
PHI in'any manner lhat'would cdnstitule a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule/

b. 'Business Associate may us^e or disclose PHI:
■  j. • For the proper management arid adminisiraiicn of the Business Associate;

II.. • As required by law. "pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
HI. For data aggregatiori purposes forjihe health care operations of Covered ''

•iEnlily. ^
!f. .■>

•«1'r
kV

,  c. To'the exteril Business Associate Is permitted under the AgreeniBrit to disclose PHI to a
nthifd part/.-BusineSs Associate must obtain. pfior:to making any such disclosure, (i) * ,
/easonable assurances from ^Ihe third party thai such PHI will be held 'confidentially and "'

•  'vsed or further disclosed only as required by .law or for Jhe purpose for which II was
-disclosedto the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify.Business
Associate; 'in accordance With, the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Noiificatlor)
■Rules p(!any'breaches-of Ihe'confidentiajjty.df. the PHI. to Ihe.eirteril it has obtained
.knowledge of such breach. •: ^

•'Pi - • - •
" :er. The'Business'Associaie shall not. unless sijch:dis*closure Is reasonably.necessary to

provide sei^ices u'nder Exhibit A "of the Agreernent. disclose any^PHI In rcsppn^se to a
."request fordisclos'ure on the basis thai.U"is required by law, without fi"fst.noiifying ^
'Cove'red Entity so thaf Covered Erility has'an opportuniiy to object.to the disclpsure^an'clnb seek appropriMe relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure. lhe,Bu§|^^^

£^]bltlyzou - XonUldW WtWi'
. Healh lAjuiindi Poft«tiCJy Acl

bvjlrteisAiiociiio Ag/Mme/V . '.y./lViOiZ-
■p««2"oi8'} .Dale:

' ** ^

i.;.
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Exhibit I

'Associate shall retrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
rernedies.

e. If ihe Covered Entity notifies'lhe Business Associate thai Covered.Entily has'agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security .

' ■ ■ safeguards' of PHI'^rsuanl to the Privacy and Security Rule. ihe'Business Associate
shall be t>ound by such additional restrictiohs and shall not disclo^ PHI In violation of

■ such additional reslriclions and shall abide^by any additional security safeguards. ^
:i •-

(3) ■ ObllQations and Activities of Business Associate.

-a The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediatelyafter the Business/Sssociate becomes.aware of any use or disclosiure of protected
•health information not provided for by the'Agreement including breaches of unsecured
iprotecfed heaUh informalipn and/or any security iricldent.thal may have an impact on the
jprotected health information of the Covered Entity. ' s:

b.. ■ 'The'Busine'ss Associate shall irnmediately. perform 3 risk assessment when it becomes
■  :aware of a'ny of the above sUualioris. The risk assessment shall include, but not be

limited to: ■ *'

V  o The nature and extent of Ihe protected health information involved, incl.uding-lhe
types of'identifiers and the likelihood of reHdehlificalion;

,,,.0 The unauthorized person'used the protected health inforrnation or Ip.whpm the
disclosure was rnade: . c-

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed • -
0  The;extent to which Ihe risk to the protected health informatign has been

niiligaied. ' '-'i ,, ^

ThVSusiriess Associate shall complete the risk assessment wilhin-48 hours of the
breach and irnmediately Vepdn.lhe findings 61 .ihe risk assessment if) Writing to the
Covered Entity.

c.; * 'Xhe'Business.Associate shall comply'wilh all sections of the Privacy. Security.'and '
'  .BreachNotifibalion Rule. i:< ■*

"^ 4. Business Associate shall make.avallable all of its internal piolicies arid procedures, books
" t j.and records relating lojhe use and discigsure of PHI received frorh, or created or ;vr

.received by the Busiriess.Associaie .'bo behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for "purposes of determining-Covered Entity's cdrnpliance with.HIPAA and lhe.Pfiyacy and ..
^'Secunty-Rule. .. * >*■

.  c. Business Associate shaiirequird all of iis business associates that receive.-use or have ■ _ ^access-to PHI under the "Agreement.'tqagreeln writing to adhere io'lhe same . ; "
vi?: restrictions and conditions on thf use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including y;,?

r, i^e duty to-reiurri or destroy.lhe'P.HI as provided'under^Seciion 3.(1).; Jhe Covered Entity :■<
'  'shall be considered a di.recl ihird party beneficiary of the Contractor's t^slne.ss awgciateagreements wilhConb-riclor's'interid8£J busiri"essassociai€S.,who will be re'ceivih9.^1 ■

'V70I4 ExMMI CfiriV*db''tnUat»:
KeUiM/wufiftce Pori»l)«cty Ad i , _ . •
Bv»in«»dAuo^teAflroemenll, ;7/l)/20?2
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■ V;. •
V  •" . pursuanfto this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnificalion from such

^  "business assodales who shall be governed by standard" Paragraph #13 of the standard" -jr.
contract proyisions'(P-37} of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of **-

^  ̂ prolected,heallh informaUon.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
5-- . Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all

records, books, agreement's, policies and procedures relating to the use and disctosure
of PHI to the Covered "Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Er^ilty to determine
Business Associate's.compliarice wiih the terms of the Agreement.

yjif

•{ S; "g.- Within ten (10) biisines.s days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,Business Associale'.shaTi provide.access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Eniily. to an individual in order,to meet the '

■  reguiremenls,under'45CFR Section 164:524.

-  . h. Within ten (10) business days of'receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set.- the Business Associate shall maVe such'PHl avaiiable lb .Covered Entity for
sMeridment and incorporate any such arnendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligallohs urtder 45 CFR Section 164.526. <i' . ■ ..

•(;, Business Associate.shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to ^ T..,"-
such disclosuresas would be required for Covered Entity to respond to'a request by an

^  'individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI.in accordance with 45 C.FR Section
;  164.528. ^

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a.wrilten request from Covered Entity for arequest for an accounling of disclosures of f^,Hl. Business Associate shall make available iw?
•  to Covered Eniily suchjnfornialion as Covered Eniily.may require to fulfill Its obligations "

io provide an accounting of disclosures with respect toPHI .in accordance with f5 CFR
Section 164!52.i3. • V

ii tn (he'eventany'individual requests access to. ameridriient of. or accounting.of PHI
directly from^lhe Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two' (2)

'' business days forward such request topbvered Entity. Covered Entity shalj ti3ve the
fesponsiblljly of responding to forwafd'ed requBSts. However. If forwarding t.he
indivlduare'roquesl to Covered Enlity would cause Covered Entity oi the Business • -
Associate'-td'violate HIPAA and lh© Privacy arid Security Rule. Ihe.Business^'Associale -j
shall insiead respond to the"individual's request as required by such law and notify
Cpvercd Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Cr-

j; Within=ten (10) business days"'6f termination of thd Agreerhent. for any reason, the
Businyss Associate shall retafri or-deslroy. as'specified by Covered Entity, all PHI. •
received from, or created:0r received by'lhe Business Associate in connection with the"
Agreement''and shali not refain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or ,

^  d.estmclion. is not feasible; or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in"
the Agreement. Business Associate shairconlinue" to extend the protections of the
Agrcerfient.'to'such PHI and limit ("uriher uses and .disclosures of such PHI to Ihp^

.>,t V J

'purposes that make the/elurn or 'destrucilon ^feasible, for ^pjpng as Biu^iness
-.4^1' :j/20V« Eihtolf ;Conlrtpoj.lft5llaU

%

./I

• H«»llhUuufin«Po'j«biSlyAcl
/  figilneis Atiod»l_e'Agreen*ftl 7-/13/2022
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Assdaalc maintains such PHI. If Covered Ehtily. in its sole discretion, requires that the
*  Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the" Business,Assodaie shall certify to

Cbver0 Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. j,-; ;■
(4) Obliaations of Covered Entity...

a:.-; -Xovered Entity shall notify Business Assocjale ot any changes or Itmiiation(s) iri its
Notice'bf Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section

.  1,64.620. to thd extenl lhat.such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or'disclosure of PHI.

b.- Covered Entity shall prornptly notify Business Associate of any changes in.iorfevpcation
-  'of per'missio'n provided to Covered Enlity'by individuals .whose PHI may be used or i/.

dis'cldsed by Business^Associale under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164:506 or .45 CFR Section 164.508. •

.  iC-'s 'i'"

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any'restrictions ori the use or
disclosure of PHI thal'Coyered Entity has agreed to in accordance with.45 CFR 164.522;
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate'.s use or disclosure ol
phI ■ . • . ' ' ^ .. "-

fS) Terminaliori'for Caiise ♦

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and condiiions <P.-37) oi thTs.
^  Agreement'thc Covered Emily may immediately terminate Ihe Agreemenl upon Covered'-

.J-' ■er)tily's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement-set forth herein as Exhibil l. The Covered Entity may eilherimrnediately..
terminate the Agreement^dr p'rovi'de an opportunity lor Busjness Associaie to cure
alleged'breach within a timeframe"specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines Ihat'j^eilher termlnatibn riof cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violaiion to' the Secretary. y... . , v;

\iC

^  (6) Misceilanebus • ^ (§}
'* ' . r ^

a. Definitions and Redulatorv References. All terms used/but not otherwise defined herein,,
• shall have the S;eme.meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
■», from lime to time.^^A refe'rerKe in the Agreement, 'as emended to include thjs ExhibiiJ; to

a Section in the Privacy and Secuniy Rule mean'sjhe'-Section as in effect or as
V  amended. . .v

■  *'■ •' • " ^
y.-: b. , Am endment■ - Covered Entity'and Business Associaie agree to take'such aclion'as is:

necessary to isrnend the A'greemenl.Vrom lime to tirne as is necessary for Covered
fi ' I Erility to comply with the changes in Ihe'requirernents of HIPAA,1he;Priva,cy. and
^  Security Ru'le. and applicable federal arid stale law.-

'  ' i'
C: Data Ov^gr^hio. TheBpslness Assddale ackhbviledges that it his no ownership rights'

vwth respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.
.V

d. -Ir^terDfetatidri. The parties agree thai any ambiguity In the Agreemeni shairbe reetrtved,
lo^permii'Covered EntiFyTo^cornply wiih'HlPAA, the Priyacy^and Security.Rule..

.  > I

srjow ip*7iblll. Conif^qHntliihv
:He<Rh lAtuia'rM.PofUbililjr " ..'•'I
Bui««u As»od»lc Afl»ccm«Al 7/13^2022 if?*
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ni'

.Seareaalion II any tern of condition oMhis Exhibit I or the application theteol to any
' Wson(s)or dVcumstance is held mvalid, such invalidity shatt not atfect other^ems or
conditions which.can be given eHect without the invalid term or cond.tion; lo this end the
lerrns arid conditions ol this Exhibit I are declared severable. ^

■Sufvivat. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure ol PHI, .r^u'" or
dSivGdiion ol PHI, extensions dl the protections ol the Agreernpnt rn sectipri (3)1, the
delense and indemnification provisions ol Seciicn (3) e and Paragraph ! 3 ol the,
standard temis aniJ.conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination o.f the Agreement. .

.U'
I  r.V!

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. Ihe panics hereio have duty executed Ihis Exhibit I.

Ocpartmenl ot Health and Human Services

"^ignSure of!,Aulhdnz€d Representative
-  xecja S.- Fok

. 'Name of Authorized.pepresenlative
Director

_lua

Title of Authorized Representative

7/U/29^2

• Date

)SI Research & Training institute, Inc.
Contra,clor-

Signature of Authorized Represental«vc
xatherlne Ro'berc ■ •
Name ol AulhorizecJ Representative,

. birector -s'
Title Of Authorized Representative
7/1V2022 ,

Date

i-v.
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Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA.rcQuI/ed data by the end ol the month, plus 30 days. In Mtiich
the mrd^Of sward amendment is made.;
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees'io comply with the provisions of.
The Federal Funding Accouhtatillity end Transparency Act, PubDc Lew 10^202 end Public Caw 110-2S2,

- and 2 CFR Pert 170'(Reporting Subaward end Executive CompensaUon'lnformation), end further eg^s
to have the 'Contra^rts reprssentsliye. as identified in Sections .1.11 arfd 1.12 of the GenerBl Provisions
execute the following Certification;
The below.i^med Conlr^or agrees to provide needed Information u outlined above to the NH
Departrr^ht'of l^afth and Hum^ Serylc^ end to comply ell applicable prpvislorts of Ihe'Federaj
.Finandcd AccountsbSity and Transparer^ Act'

CERTinCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUHTAStLfTY AND TRANSPARgNCY
'ACT (FFATAICOMPUANCE k

The/ederel'Funding Acwuhlabjlity and'Transparency Act (FEATA) requires prime awardccs of individual,
r  Federal grants ^uel to or greater than 125.000 end awarded on or after October 1.2010. to report on

data related to executive oompensation and associated first-tier'sub-grants of 525,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but sub^quent grant mbdificetions result tn a total award equal to or'over

.  • $25,000, the award Is su^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In eccordanca with 3 CFR Part 170 (Repotting Subaward and Executive Compensatloh Information), the
Department of Health arid Hurhan Services (OHHS) rriust report the foltovring Informauon for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Nomeofenbly
2. Amount ol award
3. Funding agency •. •:
4. NAICS code for cotitracts t CFpA program numtMf for grants
5.. Program source

'6.. Awardtitlede^ptjveoflhepurposebfthefundingaction -
.7. Location of the eriiiiy • . ■ '
6. Principle place of ^tformance
9. Unique idfintifler of-the entity (UEI d) >.v

■  10. Total compensation and names of the top five e/tecutivas If:' ' .
10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revehues ara from the Federal govenvncnt, arvj those

revenues are greater than S25M annually end
.10.2. Compensation Irtformatlon Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

*

Contractor Name: i>Sl .Research & Training Zns.tltute, inc.

7/i3/2p22'^
'Date

r~ow»*M«»r
Robert—^

■Title: 01 rector i

;«• \

CUO«<VtiWl>

vt;-'-

.tiiJ

I 0» r.

EjeilMJ-CatUncaUohRogtreing the Fedenl Funding DontrMottnUab.
AeeoufUaWltyAndTfiMparoftcy Aa(FFATA)-CompOiftoo !7/13/2022:,.
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FORMA

As,lKe Cdnlractof idenlified in.Sccl>on'1.-3oflhe'Genef8l.Provlslons. IcerUfy that Ihe res^nses to the
beiow listed questions are true and accurate.

i  LkTNULLR6FL6"
1. The UEI (SAM.gov} number (or your entity is: ■

2. in your business or,organization's pfecedir>g completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

rece'rve (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grer^'ts; sub-grants,'Snd/or cMperath/o.agrecments; ond (2) S2S,000.000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/qr

•cooperat^e Dgreemenis?

^  - YES t

If.the answer iotfS above is NO, etop here ^ '

If the.answer to 02 above is YES, please.answer the f'oDowing:

3. Does the public have.acce'ss to information aboui'the compensation of the executives In your

business or organUdljon through periodic reports filed under section 13(d) or 15(d} of the Securities

• Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(s), 78o{d)) or section 6i04 of the IniernalRevenue'Code df

1986?'

NO * VeS ,v;u

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03.above Is NO, please answer the following:-

4. The names and compensation of,the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
torannization are as foQows:tprganizatioh are as fonq^;

Tr

m-

Name:

Name:

Narne:

s*

Name:

.Amount:

Amount:-

Amount:

£ •I'M

i.-y.

v.-

— ■!

..^ounl:-;,

.Amount:

m

Vv-

k
'ft*-;'-

X'''

■'A-*

%

S  :
ciyDk^iiO)!]

£)Mbl> J - Conmutlon Rvgtnjlng lh« Fotftral Purging ^, Cofilradei (nUah
AmunlzbEiyAndTr»nipar»ncyAd(FFATA}Compl8noe .-y, '

.  ■ ' Paoa2ol'2 Dale

rr-"

■7/15/2022
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. .Definitions

f.«

2.' "Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meanirig 'Compulef Security
Incident* in section, two (2)'of NIST Publicatiof) 800-61'., Computer Security Incident"
•Handling Guide, National institute of "Standards and Technology. U.S: .Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidenlial information' or "ConfidenUal Data* means all confidential information
•'diWiosed'by brie party to the'other such as ay medical, health', firianciai,-public
.asslstarice benefits arid personal Infornnallbn including without limitation. Substance

c. Abuse Treatment Records; Case Records. Projected Health InforrTiation 'and
•  Personally Identifiable Iriformatiori. ...

Corifidehtial Ihformaliori also Includes ariy arid all information owned or managed by
fhe State NIH - created, received frorri br on behalf of the Department of Health"and
• Human Services" (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing corilracted
services -;bf which collection, disclosure..proleclion. and'disposition Is governed. by
stale'Of federal'law-or regulation. This inforrfiation includes, but is not limited to.
Protected Health Informalion (PHI). Personal Informa'tlon (PI). Personal" Financial
Infprfnalioh (PF.I), Federal Tax .In'fofma'tion-.(FTI). iSocial Security ".Numbers. (SSN),
Payment Card..ln9uslry (PCI), and'.or other sensitive and confidcritial Information.'

The following terms may bejeflccled and have ihe described.meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means, the-loss 'of control. corTjpxomlse. unaulhorited disclosure,
unauthorized™ acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar terrn Tele.rring to ^
situations where persons other than authorized" users "and, for an other than
authorized purpose .have access or poterillar access to, personally Wentinabie . ,
Information., "whelher- :physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information. * Breach" shall have the same mearilng as the term 'Breach" .in section
164.402 of Title 45. .Code of Federal Regulations. ^

Ck-

4. "End User" means any person or-entity (e.g.. contractor, coniraclor's ernployee,-
business ■ as'sociale.-subcohiractor. •olhef downstream user, etc.-j ̂ lhat receives
DHHS data'or derivative data Jn accordance .wih the terms of "this Contract.

5.. "HipM" mearis the Health-Insurance Portability and AccoyniabiliiyAct*6fj!99S snathe •• •
reguletions'fvornulgated thereunder. c;

6. 'Incid'eni: me'ans an:acl.th'8t pptenlialiy vlolates-an-'explicll or Implied security'policy,
(Which includes aKemplsXeithe/jaiJed.or successful) to gain unaulhorlzed,access to a
■sysiem or its.'data. unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of

system for the'processing bi-storage of..data; andlchanges to sysiem hardware.
iS firmware, br .software characierlstics .without the .owner's knowledge. Instryctl.on. or

consent. Inddenls Include'ihe loss 61 dala.lhrpugh theft or device misplacement, loss-
pr misplacement of hardcopy documerils. 'and misrouling of physical..of ?{eclrpnic
\

VS. (.Alt Update 10*09/18 '-)■ ExN*bhK, ConUedwInWeii:
1^1

'DHHS (nIormaUon
Stcurtty Re^vrffcmcnii 7/13/2022ij: .-i stcuniy KC^Wfcmcni*

«  =■• 'Pege-iot9 Oeie
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DHHS'lnformation Security Requirements'^

.  J

,mail. all-of which may have the poteniial to' put the dala .at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure. modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any .netwofl^ or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Oepartment .of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unerTciVpted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidehilal DHHS data".'

8. •Personal Information"'(or ."PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, .social security nurriber. 'personal
Informatidh as defined in New Hampshire R_SA 359-C79, biornetriCi records, etc.,
alone.' or wtien combined with other pe'rsonal "or Ideritifying information which is linked
or linkable lo a specific Individual', siich as da.te and place of birth, rholher's maiden
nameVetc. , i:

' *41 »

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards lor Privacy'df tridividually Identifiable Health
.  inrormatio'n at 45 c!Kr. Parts'160 and 164. promulgated under'HlP^ by the United

States Department^ol Health and Human Services. .

10. 'protected' tHeatlh Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in 'the
■%; definition of ^Protected iHealth InformationMn the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

160:i03.

11. "Security Rule"' shall mean .the Security Standards for the Proteciion of Electronic
Prolecteid".Health Information _at '45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and ramendrnents,

V-''-. thereto.

12. 'tJnsecured Protected Heallh information' means Protected Health Iriformaiion.lhal Is"
not secured by a'technplogy standard that .rerKJers Protected Health; Information
'.unusable,- unreadable, or '-indecipherable • to unauthorized individuals and -is'
•developed or .e'ndorsed by a siandards developing organization th.al lS accredited by
the American National Standards l.nslilute. •

.RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE.CONtRACJG^R

A. .Busiriess Use, 3nd;pisClosyre of Conridenitial Informaiidn. vj;.

r---

vs. Lflsj.updatA )0rD9/18

The .ContracTpr must not. use,'disclose. maihTain'or;transmil Confidential Information
except as'reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further,.Contractor,
'induaing txj'l nolUimited to ail its directors.' pfficers^ernplayees and-agents, must not"
iiise. disclose, maintain or trarismit.PHI in any mannerlhal would conslUute a violation
:of- the Privacy and Security Rule,-

the ConTractcTr" must' not disclose .any Cohfldenllal information- in"-response to a
-

i-i'

i-} '1^:^

ExhIbli.K
IDHHS

Security R^iiretnenU

Contractor trdilals

Gate
7/13/2022
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3.

ft.

5.

6:

request for disclosure-ori the basis lhat it is required by law. In response to a
subpoena, etc.. svithout first notifying OHHS $6 that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

If OHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bound, by additional
restrictions over'and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy end Security Rule, the Contractor must t>e bound by such
edditioriol restflclions end must not disclose PHt in vio'letion of such additional,
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

The Contractor agrees that OHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End'
User must only, be used pursuant to the terrns of this Contract

'The Conlractor.agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are'not indicated in this Contract.

The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the.aulhorizeb represenlaiiyes
of OHHS for the purpose'of inspecting to connrm compliance .with the .terms of this..
Conlract. • *- '

METHOp'S pF SECURE TRANSfUflSSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User.is transmitting OHHS 'data containing
Confidential Data behveen-applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an-expert knowledgeable tn cyber security and .that said
appjicaijon's encry^lon' capabilities ensure.secure transmission via the Internet. .

2. Computer bisks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks,
or portable storage devices, such as a thurnb drive, as a rnethod of transmittjrvg DHHS
data.

3.

:4.

.5.

Encry^ed Email..End User may only employ ema.ll to ..transmit ConfidenjJaf Data-if
email is encrvoted and beirto sentMo.and .beirtg re'celved'.by email a'ddresses of
persdns'authorized'toreceive.such information. ^ . v.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employlrig the Web .to transmit 'Confidential
bata. the secure socket layers^(SSL) .must be used .and the web site must be
secure. •.:SSLencfypls'dB"ta transfpitte'd yia a Web site.

File Hosting Servfces. also known as'file Sharing Sites. End tjser may not use .file
hosting services, such, as "Dropbox or *|3obgle -Cloud Storage, to tra'nsrhil
Confidential Data.- ,

'6. G^round.Mail Service. End User may onl/lransmit'Confidential Data via cerf/77eb ground
mail within the cohlinenlal U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

•  -'f •' ,
7. Laptops .and- PDA. If ..End User Is ernpioying portable devices to transmit

Confidential bata'said devices rhusl be encrypted and passwo'rd-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may hot transmit Confidential Data via an-open
T

vs. les(up4ite Exrushk
OMHSIrtlprme.Oon ,

Security ReqU.refneNi

C6flir«ci04 (AKI«I)
1 V. '■Ul

Dtt'e
.7/a3/2022'
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•■■v:

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual, private network (VP.N) when
remotely transmilting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote' User Communication. II .End User, is employing remote communjcailon .to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network ̂ (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laplop from which information will, be
transmitted or accessed. - ^

10. SSft File Transfer Protocol .(SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer .Protocol, jf
End' User is employing 'an SFTP to transmit Confidehlial Data, End .User will
structure'.the Foldex and access privileges to prevent iriappropriale disclosuYe of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Conndenllal Data will

:• ^ be coded fpr-24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e'. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).. ^ ti'

'It. Wireless Devices. If End .User is transmitting Conndehtial Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.'

111., RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IOENTIFIABlWRECORDS
The.Cohlr'actor will only retain the data and ar>y derivative of the data for the duration pfjhis
Contract. After such lime. the'Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever forrh. it .may exist, unless, otherwise required by ljaw. or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parlies must:

A., .Retention

t.

ih

•liV"'

2'

1.3.

4.

5.

the Contractor agrees it will not store, .transfer or process data cotledled in
connection with [he ser;^ces rendered u.nder^ this Contract outside of the United
Slates. This physic'al.'location requlrerti€nt~s,l)aJl also apply,in ihe'irriplcmentation of

<ctoUd cbriipuling, cloud seArice or doud storage capabiljlies. .and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery.locations.^
The'Doniractor 'agVees to' ensure proper, ^security monitoring capabilities arje in
place to detect potential security events ilhat can Impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department confidential lnformetior> for conlraclor provided systems. '

The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness an^ education for its End
Users in support of protecting Oeparlment confidential inlormaltpn.
The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies qf-Confidentlal Data
in a secure location .and Identified in section"IV..'A.2

The/.Gontractpf agrees ..Confidential Data stored' m 'a'Ctoud must' be. in a
Fedr^MP/hilTECH compliant solution and comply with aill applicable.statutes and
regulations-fegafdihg the privacy and security., All servers and devices must have
currenlty-supported'and hardened ;ppefallng systerns. .the latest anii-vlrSi; aniw
hacker',-anti-spam, ariii-spyware.'and anli-malware utilities.-Tfieenvironrhe'nt. as a

■vs. Lsti updii* ioro9/t8
pHHS iniocmStidn

S«civity Re^utrcmcts
-Ppge4 0l9'

ContrtdMjnAilt};

.Oite

'"is

liy.

4 . C*'.-

7/13/.2022
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y, whole, must have aggressive'lntfuslon-detectio'iT and firewall proteclion.,
g  The 'Cpnlraclor'egrees to and ensures its complete coopefelion .wilh the Staters
"  Chief Iriformatipn Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting

inUastfuclure. / -v

B. Disposition
\

1. If the Contractor will maintain arty Confidential Information on its systems (or.ils^
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for

V  securely disposing of such'data upon,request or contract termination; and will-
'  obtain Written'ccrtificaiion for ar>y Slate of New Hampshire data destroyed by the

; Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. Whe'n no longer .in use, electronic media containing State of

Jv, New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
^  - in accordance with Indusli^-acceplcd standards for secure deletion and media

saniiization. or otherwise" physicaliy destroying' the media (for example;
F* .degaussirig) as described in NIST .Special Publication 8OO;80, Rev-1,-.Guidelines

for Media" SanlUiaiidn. National Institute of Standards and. Technology. U. 8.
'Odpartment of Commerce. The Contractor will document "and certify In vwriiing at

.  .time of the data destruction, and will provide written certificalion.to the Departmenl
upo.n request! The Written certification''will Include all details necessary to.

svw "-;;t demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validaied. Where applicable.
;5: *' regulalory and'professlonarstahdards for retention requirements-will be |oinlly

evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to deslructiori.;

,.-r 2. Unless* otherwise specified, wilhin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
;  'Contract.'Contractor agrees to,de'stfoy .all hard copies of Confidential paia using 0
'  ̂cure rnethod such as"shredding.

-3 ^ 3. Unless-otherwise. specified, wilhin thirty "(30) days, of the lerminatiori of thls
' ConUacl. Contractor agrees to cornplelely destroy all electron'ic.-Corifideniial Data

by means of data erasure.-alsb known as [secure data wiping. •

IV. PIJOCEDURES FOR SECURITY

' A. Contradtdr agrees to safeguard the'DHHS pats-received untier this Contra^.- and.any .
derivative data oj. flics,, as follows:

1. The Cdnlracioi vviU .maintain proper security controls to protect 'Oepartmenl;
confidential mforfnal'ion c'dllecte'd. processed'; managed, and/or stored in the;deliverf

p> of cdnlracle'd.services!: \ ^

2. The. .Contractor wiir ,maihlaln policies and procedures to prolecl^.Oeparlmeni
'  aorilidenlialvnformation'thfoughodi the information lilecycle. where applicable, (frorn,

creation, transformation, use. .storage and secure destruction) .regardless of .the
media used 16 slore the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, elc.). ^ ^

'  • ' ■ f<^
SecuriiyReqU.'.e'ocftiJ . 7/li/202c
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3. The Contractor will maintain -apprbpfidte aulhehticalion and .adcess cpntrojs to
contractor systerfiS that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential infofmation,
where applicable.' '

4. The-Contractor will ensure-proper security monHoring capabilities are in place 10
detect potential security events thai can impact State of-.NH systerns and^br
Department'confidenlial Information for contractor provided systems.

e  -S. 'The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
.. u. .Users in support of protecting department conrideniial information.

fT'j 6. .If.,the "Contractor-will be sulT-conlracling any core functions of the"engagement
supporting the .services Tor Staie^of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintairi a'

..iV program of an iniernal process or processes that defines . specific security
expectations.i and monitoring compliance to security requirements thai at a minimum

vt match those for the Contractor, including'brcach notification requirements;
fv . I

iZ. The Conlractor^v^ll work .with the Dcparlrnent to sign, and comply with all applicable
St'ate df/^ew Hampshire'and Oepari'meni system access, and authorization policies

-"^^vand procedures, .system's access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslemfs). Agreements will be.,
completed and signed, by the'Coniraclor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to

'^r . ' syslerpaccess being authorized.

iin:-.

8. If the Deparlment determines the Contractor is a Business Associate'pursuant to' 45
CFR '160.103.-Ihe Cqntractdr will execute a HIRAA Business Associate'Agreerneril^
(BAA) With the Department 'and Is responsible for maintaining ■compliance.,with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will .work with the Department at Its reques''t to .complete a System
• Management Survey. The'purpbse of the .survey ls..to enable the .Pcparlment and'-

Contractor'to rhonilor for any changes in risks, threats; and vulnerabilities that may
'Occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will -be completed

•  anboally. .0^30 aliernate'time'frame at-the Departmeriis discretion with agreement, by
the Cprilractor. or the IDepartmenl may., request the, survey be completed when the
•scope oMhe erigegemeii'l between the Department and the Contractor changes. vc

10. The Contractor'will not'store, knowingly or. unknov/ingly. any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the Uriited Stales Crnless
prior express written consent is 'obtained frorn the" Information Security jDffice
leadership mcmber'wiihin the Departmeht.

.11. Data Security Breach Llablllry.- In the eVent of any security breach Contractor .shall
make efforts to investigate (he causes- of !the breach, promptly take measures to
•prevent future breach ;ahd minini'ize any damage or" loss res'iilting from the breach.
The' Siale shall recover from .the "Cpntraciqr all. costs of response ind recovery from

V5. Ui$»up<lale-10Wl8 .Coftlfaeto/
'  ' DHHS InlorfMUonS«C\*1firh««^em«r4"i • •7/U/?02i
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the breach, including but noflimiled to: credit monitoring services, mailirtg costs and
OTSis associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. '

12. Contractor must, cbmpty with ail applicable statutes and regulations regerding the'
privacy and security^ol Confidential lnformalior>, and .must In all other respects
mainlairi the,privacy and security of PI and PHI at aJevel and scopo that Is not less
than the level and scope of requiremeiits applicable to federal agencies, including. .
but riot iifriited to. provisions of the Privacy Act pi -1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS- '.■■■
Privacy Act .Regulations (45 C.F.R...§5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 .
Q.F.R. Parts 160 .and -164) that govern protections .for individually identifiable, health v.
Information and as applicable under Slate law.

*•' . r •

t3.'Xoniracior agrees to establish and maintain appropriale.admlnisirallve, technical, and
physical safeguards- to protect the confidenllail^^ of the Confidential Data and to
prevent uhauthbrized use or "access lo.it. The safeguards must provide a level and ,
scope' of security that is not less than ,thc level and scope of security requirements • .♦
established by Ihe Stale of New Hampshire. Deparimenl of Inforrnalion Technology. ;•
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.g0v/doiUvendof/index:htm
for the Department oflriformalion Technology policies, guidelines, standards..*and
procuremenliriformalion relating" to vendors. • ,

'7 ■ •
14. Cdnlra.ctor 'agrees to maintain a .documented breach nolification' arid i.ncident

Tesponsp procesl The Contracloi will notify the State's Privacy ".Officer .and .IheState's Security Officer of ;any security breach infjmedialcly, at the emairaddresses ^ ^
'provided in-'Section Vl. This-includes-a confidcnlial. infofmalioh breach, computer
security incident, or,suspected'breach v/hich affects or includes ariy State ^of .hiew •
Harnpshire systems that connect tb-the State of New Hampshire "network;

yK

r/

ir-

.15. Conirector must restrict -access..10 iHe^-Confiddhlial pal.a obtained under this
Coniract f|o only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform'their "otfidal duties "in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. "

16. The'Contractor must iensure (hal ail'End.Users:
a. cornply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV _ A. above.

Irnpierhenled to protect' Confidentiai Informatibr) that .Is furnished by DHHS
ufider this Contract frofn loss, theft or,inadvertent disclosure.

b. isafeguard.thls Information el elHimes.
c. :ensure that laptops and other eleclrbnic devices/media containing'.PHI. PI. or

'  ,PFXarecnciypl0 andpasswofd-'pfoiected.
d. send emaiis containing-Cdnfidential Informallbh only if .e'ricrvpted and .being

•sent' to and being received by email 'addresses 'pf p'ersqns iaulhoriied to
•' ■ receive such'informalipn.

V

|i'.

,-1'

-Secuiliy Requi«emert» *7/15/2022
P*QC7 01.9 ' 0>te. •
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i-.

4a-

e. limit disclosure ofthe Conridenliai Inlormation to the extent perrhitted bylaw.

f. Cdnfidential Information received under this Contract and indhridualty
Idenllfiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that Is-
physically and technologically secure from: access by unauthorized persons
duriri'g diity hours as well as norvduty hours (e.g.. door, locks, card keys,

vivj biometric identifiers, etc.). . •

•g. only authorized .End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, iricludmg any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,

"v such data must be enwypled'.al all'times when in transit, at rest, or when
'1%'; • stored'on portable media as required in section IV above.

"K in all other Instances dohfideniial Data must'be malntained.-.used and
disclosed using apprdpriale safeguards, as determined by a riskrbased

5. .assessment o( the circumstances involved.

i  understand lhat,their|Usef credentials (user narne and password) must not be
shared with, anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used lo.access-the site directly or indirectly through,
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversighl and compliance of their End Users. OHhS
reserv'es the right to conduct onsile inspections to monitor compliance with "this
Contract" .'including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIRAA. r; :
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such lime the Confidential pala
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. '''

V. LOSS.REpORTING

The Corilractor must notify the State'.s Privacy Officer and' Securily Officer of any
-Se.curlty Incidents and Breaches'Immediately.^ at the email addresses provided in"
Section VI. ...

.The Contraclof musl further'handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance vrtlh llhe agency's documeoteO Incident Handling and Breach .Noiiflcatipn
'procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - .306: In a.ddition to and
•notwithstanding. Contractor's •compliance'with all applicable obligatioris-aijd procedure^;
Contractor's procedures must also address how the GonlracloriWill: _

1. .Identify Incidenls; • ^

2. Determine if personally ideritifiable information is inyclved'lh Incidents; '-*■
3. ,Ftepor1 suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-p7,
fi. Identify and convene encore response.group to determjne the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Iricidenls; and r,^i^- .

••s
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,5. Determine whether Breach 'notillcalion is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach, no'tification rnethods, timing, source, and contenis from among different
optior)s. .and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well-as any mitigation
measures. " ' J

Incidents end/or Breaches that implicate Pl^ must be addressed and -reported,' as-
applicable.'in'accordance svilh NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS"TO'CONTACT

A. DHhS Privacy Officer:

,  pHHSprlvacypfflcer@dl^s.nh.90v^

B. BHHS Secufily Officer:

OHH$lnfprrh3lionSecu'rilyOffice@dhhs.hh.gpv
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